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Automatic Data Processing Limited

Strategic report

Principal activities
The Company’s principal activity 1s the provision of employer services
Performance review

Turnover for the year was £36,730,655 (2014 £50,294,000), an increase of 12 8% due 10 continuing expansion of the
Company’s customer base, wider take up of different service offerings, strong customer retention and inflationary
price mncreases

Results

The results for the year are as follows

2015 2014

£°000 £°000

Profit before taxation 1,594 3,703
Profit after taxation 2,035 3,204

Profit before taxation has decreased largely due to reduced gross margins, despite the increase 1n turnover, combined
with higher administrative expenses Gross profit 1s 63 0% (2014 62 9%)

Review of financial position

Fixed asset investments increased by 124 3% year on year due 10 an expanston of the Company’s money movement
activities to more chents 1n more geographies Current asset investments increased by 106 9% year on year for the
same reason

Cash at bank and n hand decreased to £3,723,000 from £10,350,000 during the year This relates solely to the
company’s bank balances and does not include client fund bank balances

Creditors falling due within one year have increased to £501,825,000 from £242,657,000 in 2014 Withwn this total,
client obligations have increased to £479,099.000 from £223.112,000 in 2014 This 1s explained by an increased
client base over the financial year

Other key developments

The Company continues to be an authorised payment institution for the purpose of its payroll disbursement services
The Company’s activities continue to be regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

Future devetopments

The Company continues to invest in developing products and services for the evolving needs of the payroll market
The directors do not anticipate any significant changes in the Company’s activities in the forthcommng year

Key performance indicators

Automatic Data Processing Limuted s ultimate parent company 1s Automatic Data Processing Inc (*ADP Inc ™),
which 1s incorporated in the Umted States of America ADP Inc 1s one of the world’s largest providers of business
outsourcing solutions, with almost $11 illion m revenues and approximately 630,000 chents

Automatic Data Processing Limited 1s pant of the Employer Services Diwiston of ADP Inc ADP Inc manages 1ts
operations on a divisional basis ADP Inc provides a detailed review of the financial results and business
performance of the Employer Services Division within its Annual Report Filing on Form 10-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commussion which can be accessed via the Company’s website at www adp com For this
reason, the Company’s directors believe that further key performance indicators are not necessary for an
understanding of the business




Automatic Data Processing Limited

Strategic report (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties

Competitive pressure 1s a continued risk for the Company The Company manages this risk by providing value added
services to its customers, whilst continually reviewing and updating 1ts products

The Company’s principal financial assets are cash, trade debtors, money market funds and bond investments The
Company has no sigmficant concentration of credit rnisk, with exposure spread over a large number of customers The
Company has hmited liquirdity nisk and 1s able to take advantage of the ADP Group’s treasury management function
to manage hquidity nsks should the need anse Price nisk 1s managed with an annual review 1n line with inflation and
market trends

A nisk for the Company 1s 1ts provision of payment services which 1s regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority
(“FCA”) In particular, the United Kingdom's Payment Services Regulations impose potential habihty on the
Company for 1ts conduct There 15 a nisk that failure by the Company to comply with regulatory requirements could
adversely impact ADP, through compensation to customers, settlements, penalties or other sanctions, or requirements
to implement changes 1n the Company’s business operations

Automatic Data Processing Limited, in line wath the strategy of the ADP group of companies, employs a range of
business management tools and processes for the effective management of the business

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

e

S Finnegan
Director

29 Apnl 2016




Automatic Data Processing Limited

Directors’ report

The directors’ present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015

The Company has chosen, m accordance with section 414C (11) of the Companies Act 2006, to include such matters
of strategic importance to the Company 1n the Strategic Report which otherwise would be required to be disclosed in
the Directors’ Report

Directors

The membership of the Board throughout the year and since the year-end 1s set out on page 1 The directors have no
benefictal interests in the share capital of the Company or any other company within the UK group

Going concern

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position, and its nsk management procedures are set out tn the review of the business and nisk management sections
of the Strategic Report

ADP Netherlands B V has confirmed 11s intention to provide such financial support as necessary to the company to
enable 1t to meet its habilities as they fall due for a mimmum penod of twelve months from the date of these financial
statements ADP Netherlands B V 1s the immediate parent company of ADP Network Services Limited, whach 1s the
parent undertaking of Automatic Data Processing Limited

Accordingly, the directors, having considered the letter of financial support received from ADP Netherlands B V and
the ability of ADP Netherlands B V to provide the financial support, consider that 1t 1s appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis i preparing the financial statements

Dividends
The directors do not propose any dividend for the year (2014. £ml)
Political and charitable donations

During the year the Company made no political donations (20§14 £ml), but chantable donations of £11,780
(2014 £2,665) were made

Employee involvement

Information on business developments and operational matters 1s disserminated 10 staff through quarterly briefing
sessions, occasional staff events, presentations and additional wnitten bnefings as matters anise The Company
regularly consults with employees for views on matters affecting them Automatic Data Processing Inc , the
Company’s ultimate parent company, makes available a share purchase plan 1in which all employees can participate to
encourage employee involvement 1n the Group's performance

Disabled employees

It 1s the Company’s policy to encourage the employment, tramming and career development of disabled persons If
employees become disabled, every effort 1s made for them to continue 1n employment or receive appropnate traimng
In order to safeguard 1ts employees, the Company pursues a policy designed to provide secure working environments
and traming standards




Automatic Data Processing Limited

Directors’ report (continued)

Auditor
Each of the persons who are a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that

e 5o far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware,
and

+ the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director 1 order to make himself/herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information

Thus confirmation 1s given and should be mterpreted in accordance wath the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act
2006

Deloitte LLP are deemed to be reappointed 1n accordance with an elective resolution made under section 386 of the
Compamies Act 1985 which continues in force under the Compames Act 2006

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

g

S Finnegan
Director

29 April 2016




Automatic Data Processing Limited

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (Unuted Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period In preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
+ make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, and

e prepare the financial statements on the gomg concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate 1o presume that the company
will continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other uregulanties




Independent auditor’s report to the members of Automatic Data Processing
Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Automatic Data Processing Limited for the vear ended 30 June 2015 which

comprise the profit and loss account, the statement of total recognised gains and losses, the balance sheet and the related
notes | 10 24 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in thewr preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters
we are required 1o state to them 1o an auditor’s report and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our
audut work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being sausfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit tnvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures n the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether cavsed by fraud or error
This mcludes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
imformation in the annual report to 1dentify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to 1dentify
any information that 1s apparently materially incorrect based en, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired
by us n the course of performing the audit 1f we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies
we consider the implhications for our repon

Opmien on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements

s give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 30 June 2015 and of s profit for the year then
ended,

* have been property prepared 0 accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opmnion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opmion the information given 1n the Strategic Report and Directors Report for the financial year for which the

financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report i respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you

1f, m our opinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us, or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

s we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

L

Hadleigh Shekle (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, Umited Kingdom

29 Apnl2016




Automatic Data Processing Limited

Profit and loss account
Year ended 30 June 2015

Turnover
Contimuing operations

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution costs

Adnumnistrative expenses

Other operating income

Operating profit

Interest receivable and similar imcome

Interest payable and simlar charges

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax credit/(charge) on profit on ordinary activities

Profit for the financial year

Note

18, 19

2015 2014
£'000 £7000
56,731 50,294
(20964)  (18,659)
35,767 31,635
(2,569) (2,484)
(33270)  (29,248)
1,544 1,028
1,472 931
148 2,772
(26) -
1,594 3,703
441 (499)
2,035 3,204




Automatic Data Processing Limited

Statement of total recognised gains and losses
Year ended 30 June 2015

Profit for the financial year

Gains/(losses) on available for sale investments

Deferred tax on losses on available for sale investments

Revaluation gains transferred to profit and loss on disposal of available for
sale nvestments

Deferred tax on revaluation gains transferred to profit and loss disposal of
available for sale investments

Actuanal loss relating 1o the pension scheme

Deferred tax on actuanal loss

Deferred tax on pension movements

Tax rate change impact on deferred tax

Restricted pension asset

Deferred tax on restricted pension asset

Total recogmised gains relating to the year

Note

19
19

19
19

21
21

2015 2014
£2000 £000
2,035 3,204
2,451 (617)
(490) 123
{90) 91)
18 18
(3,136) (1,046)
627 209
(461) (353)
- 4
914 (775)
(183) 155
1,685 831




Automatic Data Processing Limited

Balance sheet
30 June 2015

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets

Investments

Debtors amounts falling due within one year
Deferred tax asset

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current liabilities

Provisions for liabilities

Net assets excluding pension liability

Pension hability

Total net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital

Profit and loss account

Revaluation reserve

Other reserves

Total shareholders’ funds

Note

11
12
16
13

14

15

21

17
18
18
18

19

2015 2014
£'000 £'000
1,640 1,419
258,086 115,073
259,726 116,492
217,460 105,092
28,925 19,115
826 926
8,688 12,965
255,899 138,098
(501,825)  (242,657)
(245.926)  (104,559)
(889) (773)
12,911 11,160
(2,218) (2,286)
10,693 8,874
20,500 20,500
(12,988) (12,784
1,684 (205)
1,497 1,363
10,693 8,874

The financial statements of Automatic Data Processing Limited, registered number 00949665, were approved by the

Board of Directors and authorised for 1ssue on 29 Apnl 2016

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

MU‘“

S Finnegan
Darector

10




Automatic Data Processing Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2015

1. Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies are summarised below They have all been applied consistently throughout
the current and preceding year, as detailed below

Accounting convention

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for available for sale
investments which are recorded at fair value, as permutted by the Compames Act and i accordance with
apphcable Umted Kmngdom accounting standards (“UK GAAP™)

Going concern

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors hikely to affect its future development,
performance and position, and its risk management procedures are set out 1n the review of the business and
nisk management sections of the Strategic Report

ADP Netherlands B V has confirmed 1its intention to provide such financial support as necessary to the
Company to enable 1t to meet 1ts liabihities as they fall due for a runimum penod of twelve months from the
date of these financial statements ADP Netherlands B V 15 the immediate parent company of ADP Network
Services Lumited, which 1s the parent undertaking of Automatic Data Processing Limited

Accordingly, the directors, having considered the letter of financial support received from ADP Netherlands
B V and the ability of ADP Netherlands B V to provide financial support, consider that 1t 1s appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis 1n preparing the financial statements

Share-based payments

The Company has apphied the requirements of FRS 20 Share-based payment In accordance with the
transitional previsions, FRS 20 has been applied to all grants of equity mstruments after 7 November 2002 that
were unvested as of 1 July 2006

a) Share options

Share options are granted to employees at exercise pnces equal to the fair market value of the ultimate parent
company, Automatic Data Processing Inc’s common stock on the dates of grant Share options are 1ssued
under a graded vesting schedute, generally vesting rateably over four or five years and have a term of ten
years Compensatton expense for share options 1s recogruzed over the requisite service period for each
separately vesting portion of the share option award Automatic Data Processing Inc has granted rights to 1ts
equity instruments to certain employees of the Company This share based compensation 1s accounted for as
equaty-settled n the consolidated financial statements of the parent UITF 44 requires the Company to record
an expense for such compensation (see note 4) in accordance with FRS 20 with a corresponding increase in
equity as a coniribution from the parent

b) Employee share purchase plan

Prior to November 2005, ADP Inc offered an employee share purchase plan that allowed eligible employees to
purchase shares of common stock at 85% of the lower of market value as of the date the purchase price for an
offering was determined or market value as of the end of such offening In November 2005, the employee
share purchase plan was revised, beginning on 1 January 2006, whereby ehgible employees can purchase
shares of common stock at 85% of the market value at the date the purchase price for the offering 1s
determined Compensation expense for the employee share purchase plans 1s recognized over the vesting
penod of 24 months on a straight-line basis

11




Automatic Data Processing Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2015

Accounting policies (continued)
¢) Time-based restricted shares

Shares 1ssued under the ime-based restricted shares programme have a two-year vesting penod Awards are
forferted if the employee ceases to be employed by the Company prior to vesting  Compensation expense 1s
recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of 24 months, imtially based on the fair value of the
award on the grant date and subsequently re-measured at each balance sheet date during the vesting pertod
Employees are eligible to receive dividends on shares awarded Time-based restricted shares are settled in cash
and cannot be transferred during the vesting period

Financial instruments

Fmancial assets and financial liabilittes are recogmised 1n the Company’s balance sheet when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Fwnancial assets

All financial assets are recogmised and derecogmsed on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial
asset 1s under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established
by the market concerned, and are inihally measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those
financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are imitially measured at fair value

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categones financial assets ‘at fair value through
profit or loss’ (FVTPL), ‘held-to-matunty’ investments, ‘avatlable-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets and ‘loans
and receivables’ The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and 1s determmed
at the time of 1mitial recognition

Effective interest method

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or recerved that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected hfe of the debt
mnstrument, or, where appropnate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on imtial recognmtion

Income 15 recogmsed on an effective interest basis for debt mstruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted m
an active market are classified as ‘loans and recetvables’ Loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment Interest income 1s recogrused by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term recetvables when the recogmition of interest would be immateral

12



Automatic Data Processing Limited

Notes to the financial statements

Year ended 30 June 2015

Accounting policies (continued)
Available for sale investments

Listed investments and money market funds held by the Company that are traded 1n an active market are
classified as being AFS and are stated at fair value Investments classified as avarlable for sale are recognised
at fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes 1n fair value recogmsed directly 1n the statement of
total recognised gains and losses, until the investment 15 disposed of or 1s determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised m the statement of recogmised gains and losses 1§
in¢luding in profit or loss for the period

Impairment of financial assets

The Company’s financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date Financial
assets are impaired where there 15 objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the mitial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
affected

Objective evidence of impairment could include

» sigmificant financial difficulty of the 1ssuer or counterparty, or

s default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, or

& 1t becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or financial re-organisation

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, i addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Company’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments 1n the portfolio past the average credit period, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on recervables

For financial assets carned at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment 1s the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
ongmal effective interest rate

The carrying amount of the financial asset 1s reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial asscts
with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount 1s reduced through the use of an allowance
account When a trade receivable 15 considered uncollectible, 1t ts wiitten off against the allowance account
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously wnitten off are credited agamst the allowance account Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recogmsed 1n profit or loss

When an AFS financial asset 1s considered to be impaired, cumulative gaims or losses previously recognised m
the statement of recogmsed gains and losses are reclassified to profit or loss in the period If, 1n a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurnng after the impawrment was recogrused, the previously recognised impairment loss 1s reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment 1s reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recogmsed

Financial habilittes and equity

Debt and equity mstruments are classified as either financial habilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement

Equity instruments

An equity msirument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest 1n the assets of an entity after deducting
all of uts liabilihies  Equity instruments 1ssued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct 1ssue costs

13




Automatic Data Processing Limited

Notes to the financial statements

Year ended 30 June 2015
1. Accounting policies (continued)
Financial Lkabilities

All financial habihties of the Company are classified as other financial liabilities
Other financral habilines are imtially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs

Other financial habilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective nterest method, with
mterest expense recogrised on an effective yield basis

The effective interest method 15 a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial hability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant peniod The effective interest rate 15 the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropnate, a
shorter peniod, to the net carrying amount on 1mtial recogmtion

Derecognition of financial lrabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabihities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, net of depreciation and any proviston for impairment Depreciation 1s
provided on cost 1n equal annual instalments over the estimated useful hives of the assets The pertods
generally applicable are

Computer mstallation 2 — 3 years
Fixtures and fittings 7 years
Leasehold improvements Over lease term

Research and development

Research and development 1s charged to the profit and loss account as incurred

Repairs and renewals

Expenditure on repairs and renewals 18 charged to the profit and loss account as incurred
Taxation

Current tax, including UK corporation tax, 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the
tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s provided 1n full on timing differences that result in an obligation at the balance sheet date to
pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise based
on current {ax rates and law ‘Timing differences anse from the inclusion of 1tems of income and expenditure
1n taxation computations in pentods different from those 1n whuch they are included 1n the financial statements
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that 1t 1s regarded as more likely than not that they will be
recovered Deferred tax assets and habilities are not discounted

Deferred tax 15 charged or credited in the income statement, except when 1t relates to items charged or credited
n the statement of total recogmsed gains and losses, in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with 1n the
statement of total recognised gams and losses

Foreign exchange

Monetary assets and habihties denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions All differences are taken to the profit and loss account

14



Automatic Data Processing Limited

Notes to the financial statements

Year ended 30 June 2015
1. Accounting policies (continued)
Leases

Rental charges under operating leases are charged to profit and loss on a straight line basis over the perieds of
the leases, even if the payments are not made on such a basis

Turnover

Revenue, which 1s stated net of Value Added Tax, 1s recogrused as services are performed and once the
obligations to the chent have been fulfilled Revenue relating to implementation services for a new client 1s
recogmsed when the implementation services are complete, which 1s normally at the time of the first payroll
processing

Interest income on collected but not yet remtted funds held for chents is recognised 1n revenue as earned as
the collection, holding and remittance of these funds are critical components of providing these services

Cash flow statement

The Company 1s exempt from the requirement of Financial Reporting Standard No 1 to prepare a cash flow
statement as 1t 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Automatic Data Processing Inc and its cash flows are included
within the consolidated financial statements of that company which are publicly available

Pensions

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for qualifying employees Pension costs for
this scheme are charged to the profit and loss account 1n the period in which they anse

The Company also operates two funded defined benefit pension schemes and one unfunded scheme For
defined benefit schemes, the amounts charged to operating profit are the current service costs and gams and
losses on settlements and curtailments They are included as part of staff costs Past service costs are
recogmised immediately 1n the profit and loss account if the benefits have vested If the benefits have not
vested immediately, the costs are recognised over the period uniil vesting occurs The interest cost and the
expected return on assets are shown as a net amount of other finance costs or credits adjacent to interest
Actuanial gains and losses are recogmsed immediately in the statement of total recogmsed gains and losses

Where defined benefit schemes are funded, the assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Company, in separate trustee-admimistered funds Pension scheme assets are measured at far value and
liabiltties are measured on an actuanal basis using the projected umit method and discounted at a rate
equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to the
scheme habilites The actuanal valuations are obtained at least tnenmally and are updated at each balance
sheet date The resulting defined benefit asset (to the extent the surplus 1s assessed as recoverable by the
Company) or hability, net of the related deferred tax, 1s presented separately after other net assets on the face
of the balance sheet Further mformauon on pension arrangements 1s set out tn note 20

2 Turnover

An analysis of turnover by geographical market 1s given below

2015 2014

£°000 £°000

United Kingdom 53,549 50,073
Europe (excluding United Kingdom) 1,584 221
Rest of World 1,598 -
56,731 50,294

15




Automatic Data Processing Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2015

3.

Information regarding directors and employees

2015 2014
£°000 £°000

Directors’ emoluments
Emoluments 228 687
Amounts recervable 1n respect of long-term incentive schemes 23 4
Company contributions to defined contribution pension scheme 13 4
264 691

The above amounts do not include any gains made on the exercise of share opuions The directors’
emoluments disclosed above include those of the highest paid director of £135,898 (2014 £587,270) of which
£7,302 relates to penston contributions (2014 £ml) The highest paid director did not exercise share options
during the year The remaiming director, who 1s also an employee of the company, recerves remuneration for
their services as a director of the Company Two directors are a member of a defined contribution pension
scheme (2014 one} No directors are members of the defined benefit schemes (2014 none)

2015 2014
No. No.

Average number of persons employed (including directors)
Systems programmers 50 25
Production/operations 147 25
Customer support 352 337
Administration 33 35
Sales/marketing 102 231
684 653
2015 2014
£2000 £°000

Staff costs during the year (including directors)

Wages and salanes 30,069 29,357
Social secunty costs 3,301 3,480
Other pension costs 2,334 2,289
Share-based payments (including National Insurance Contnbutions) 148 86
35,852 35,212

Excluded from the above analysis for the average number of persons employed by the Company are
employees whose costs are fully recharged to related compames During the year, the average number of such
employees was 131 (2014 110)

Performance-based restricted shares

The Automatic Data Processing Inc Group 1ssues to certain employees, performance-based units (“PBUs”)
that require the Group to pay benefits to the employee at the date of exercise The Company has recorded
lLiabilities of £1,979,592 and £1,751,066 1n 2015 and 2014 respectively The fair value of the PBUs 15
determuned by the ADP Inc EPS growth over the performance penod The Company recorded total expenses
of £1,614,528 and £275,128 1n 2015 and 2014, respectively




Automatic Data Processing Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended 30 June 2015

4. Share-based payments

The Company charged the following amounts to the profit and loss account 1n 2015 and 2014 m relation to
equuty-settled share-based payments

2015 2014
£000 £000
Share options 134 66

These amounts have been credited to equity as a capatal contribution 1n accordance with UITF 44 “Group and
Treasury Share Transaction” (see note 1 accounting policies)

Movements on share options pranted and weighted average exercise price during the year are as follows

Outstanding Exercisable

At At At

1 July Lapsed/ 30 June 30 June

2014 Granted Exercised transferred 2015 2015

Number Number Number Number Number Number

Share options 41,390 7,955 (18,126) 36,152 67,371 48,152
Weighted-average exercise price (§) 44 62 86 61 44 70 4470 52 55 44 51

Share options

The fair value of each share option was estimated on the date of grant using a binomial option pricing model
The biermal model considers a range of assumptions related to volatility, risk-free interest rate and employee
exercise behaviour Expected volathities utilized in the binomial model are based on a combination of implied
market volatilities, histoncal volatility of the Group’s share price and other factors Simularly, the dividend
yield 1s based on hustorical experience and expected future changes The risk-fiee rate 1s denved from the U §
Treasury yield curve mn effect at the time of grant The binomial model also incorporates exercise and
forfeiture assumptions based on an analysis of historical data The expected life of the share option grants 15
denived from the output of the binomial model and represents the peniod of time that options granted are
expected to be outstanding  Detauls of the key assumptions used are disclosed 1n the consolidated accounts of
Automatic Data Processing Inc

Share purchase plan

The employee share purchase plans are open to all employees and provide for a purchase price equal to the
daily average market price on the date of grant, less 15 per cent The shares can be purchased during a
two-week period each year

5. Operating profit

2015 2014
£000 £000
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):
Rentals under operating leases
Plant and machinery 13 44
Land and buildings 1,387 1,119
Depreciation {note 9) 769 907
Impairment loss on trade debtors 327 194
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (159) 7
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s
annual accounts 85 78
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for other services tax comphance 16 16
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Notes to the financial statements

Year ended 30 June 2015
6. Interest receivable and similar income
2015 2014
£°000 £°000
Interest recervable on available for sale investments - 2,660
Other finance income (see note 21) 148 112
148 2,772
7. Interest payable and similar charges
2015 2014
£°000 £'000
Interest expense 5 -
Other finance charges 21 -
Interest payable and similar charges 26 -
8. Tax (credit)/charge on profit on ordinary activities
2015 2014
£°000 £000
Current tax
UK corporation tax - 471
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years (52) -
(52) 477
Deferred tax
Ongmnation and reversal of tming differences (389 (104)
Effect of changes in tax rates - 126
(389) 22
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year (441) 499

The differences between the total current tax shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard

rate of UK corporation tax to the profit before tax are as follows

2015 2014

£000 £7000

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,594 3,703

Tax on loss at standard UK tax rate of 20 75% (2014 22 5%) 331 833

Non-tax deducuble expenses 36 12

Depreciation 1n excess of capital allowances 159 70
Movement in shori-term trming differences (369) (438)

Group relief claimed for nil consideration (155) -

Prnor year tax adjustment (52) .

Current tax (credit)/charge for the year (52) 477
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8 Tax (credit)/charge on profit on ordinary activities (continued)

In the 2013 Finance Act 1t was enacted that the UK corporation tax rate would be reduced from 23% to 21%
effective 1 Apnil 2014 and 20% effective 1 Apnl 2015 These reductions were substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date and the tmpact thereof 1s therefore reflected in these financial statements

9. Tangible fixed assets

Computer Fixtures Leasehold
installation and fittings improvements Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £°000

Cost
At 1 July 2014 5,735 737 1,408 7,880
Additions 613 377 - 990
At 30 June 2015 6,348 1,114 1,408 8,870
Depreciation
At 1 July 2014 4,862 540 1,059 6,461
Charge for the year 565 54 150 769
At 30 June 2015 5,427 594 1,209 7,230
Net book value
At 30 June 2015 921 520 199 1,640
At 30 June 2014 873 197 349 1,419

10. Fixed asset investments

The movement 1n long-term marketable securities classified as fixed asset investments 15 as follows

Marketable

securities

£'000

At fair value:

At ] July 2014 115,073
Acquisitions 200,612
Matured (47,081)
Disposals (12,856)
Revaluation 2,338

At 30 June 2015 258,086
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11.  Available for sale investments: funds held for clients

The hustoric cost of chent funds held as at 30 June 2015 was £479,099,000 (2014 £223,112,000) An
equivalent hiability 1s recognised on the balance sheet as chient obligations

Chent funds are pnmanly invested 1n money market funds and government and corporate bonds which are
recogmsed at fair value Fair values are determined using quoted prices and as such all available for sale
investments are classified as Level 1financial assets in the fair value hierarchy

Cash and cash equivalents
Funds due from chents
Short-term marketable secunties
Long-term marketable securities
Total funds held for clients

Total client liability (Note 14)

The marketable securities comprise

Money market funds
Corporate and government bonds

Cumulative

Historic unrealsed
cost gains  Fair value
£000 £000 £000
4,965 - 4,965
694 - 694
217,347 113 217.460
256,093 1,993 258,086
479,099 2,106 481,205

479,099

2015 2014
£°000 £2000
179,864 84,212
295,681 135,953
475,545 220,165

Cumulative farr value gains of £2,106,000 (2014 loss of £256,000) have been recognised directly n the

staternent of total recogmsed gaimns and losses on these investments

Matunties of long-term marketable securities

Due after one year up to two years
Due after two years up to three years
Due after three years up to four years
Due after four years

2015 2014
£000 £000
29,939 24,629
43,976 20,770
57,736 24,191
126,434 45,483
258,086 115,073
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Notes to the financial statements

Year ended 30 June 2015

12.  Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
2015 2014
£2000 £2000
Trade debtors 12,120 11,364
Amounts due from fellow subsidiary undertakings 8,728 3,298
Corporation tax debtor 66 -
Interest recervable 5,022 2,747
Other debtors 754 319
Prepayments and accrued income 2,235 1,387
28,925 19,115

Trade debtors disclosed above are classified as loans and recervables and are therefore measured at amortised
cost

The average credit period taken on provision of services 1s 44 days (2014 4] days) No interest 1s charged on
the debtors for the first 30 days from the date of the invoice Thereafter, mnterest 15 charged on the outstanding
balance at 2% above Barclays Bank Base Rate  The Company has recogrused an allowance for doubtful debis
of 100% against all receivables over 120 days because histortcal expenience has been that recervables that are
past due beyond 120 days are not recoverable Allowances agamst doubtful debts are recognised against trade
recetvables between 90 days and 120 days based on estimated urrecoverable amounts determined by reference
to past default expenience of the counterparty and an assessment of the counterparty’s current financial
position

Before accepting any new customer, the Company uses an external credit scoring system to assess the
potential customer’s credit quahity and defines credit lumts by customer There are no customers at either
balance sheet date who represent more than 3 per cent of the total balance of trade receivables

The Company does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over any of 1ts trade debtors nor does
1t have a legal nght of offset aganst any amounts owed by the Company to the counterparty

Ageing of past due but not impaired trade debtors

2015 2014

£000 £000

31-60 days 4,897 4,710
61-90 days 677 373
91-120 days 208 78
5,782 5,161
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12.  Debtors: amounts falling due within one year (continued)

Movement 1n the allowance for doubtful debts

2015 2014

£:000 £000
Balance at t July 2014 346 188
Impairment losses recogmsed 327 194
Impairment losses utihsed - (36)
Balance at 30 June 2015 673 346

In determuning the recoverability of a trade debtor, the Company considers any change m the credit quality of
the trade receivable from the date credit was mmtially granted up to the reporting date The concentration of
credit nsk 15 hirmted due to the customer base being large and unrelated

Agemg of imparred trade debtors

2015 2014

£000 £'000

91-120 days 208 78
121-150 days 127 71
151-180 days 70 45
>180 days 377 116
782 310

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other debtors 1s approximately equal to their fair
value

13,  Cash at bank and in hand

2015 2014

£°000 £000

Cash at bank — client funds 4,965 2,615
Cash at bank and in hand 3,723 10,350
8,688 12,965
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Year ended 30 June 2015
14.  Creditors
2015 2014
£°000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade creditors 2,634 2,154
Amounts owed to fellow subsidiary undertakings for a loan 2,123 2,123
Amounts due to fellow subsidiary undertakings 5,210 3,121
Client obligations (Note 11) 479,099 223,112
Other taxes and social secunty 2,729 2,529
Accruals and deferred income 9.822 9,126
Corporation tax payable - 458
Other creditors 208 34

15.

501,825 242,657

Trade creditors and accruals principally compnse amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs
The average credit period taken for trade purchases 1s 44 days (2014 45 days) For most suppliers no interest
1s charged on the trade payables The Company has financial nsk management policies 1n place to ensure that
all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value

The client obligations relate to amounts owed to third parties on behalf of chents (note 11)

Provision for Liabilities

NIC on

share
Dilapidations options Total
£7000 £000 £000
At 1 July 2014 649 124 773
Charged to the profit and loss account 104 12 116
At 30 June 2015 753 136 889

Included 1n the dilapidations provision 1s an amount of £670,555 (2014 £611,400) which relates to the
dilapidations provision on a lease expinng March 2020 and £82,035 (2014 £37,625) which relates to a lease
expirmg August 2023, 1t 1s expected that the provisions will be utilised afier the lease expiry dates
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16.

17.

18.

Deferred taxation

The Company has recogmsed a deferred tax asset of £826,000 (2014 £926,000) as the directors expect future

taxable profits to be generated 1n the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets
Short-term timing differences

Opening balance
Credit/(charge) to profit and loss account
{Debit)/credit to statement of total recogmsed gains and losses

Closing balance

Called up share capital

Allotted, called up and fully paid:
20,500,000 ordinary shares of £1 each (2014 20,500,000)

Reserves

At t July 2014

Profit for the financial year

Unrealised gains on available for sale investments, net of tax
Actuanal loss

Deferred tax on actuanal loss

Restriction on pension asset recogtion

Deferred tax on restncted pension asset

Deferred tax on pensions movements

Share-based payments (note 4)

At 30 June 2015

2015 2014
£'000 £°000
826 926
926 792
389 (22)
(489) 156
826 926
2015 2014
£000 £000
20,500 20,500
Profit
Other Revaluation and loss
reserves reserve account
£°000 £°000 £000
1,363 (205) (12,784)
- - 2,035
- 1,889 -
- - (3,136)
- - 627
- - 914
- - (183)
- - {461)
134 - -
1,497 1,684 (12,988)
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19. Reconcibation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Profit for the financial year

Issue of share capital

Share-based payments (note 4)

Unrealised gains/(losses) on available for sale investments, net of tax
Actuanal loss relating to pension scheme

Deferred tax on actuanal loss

Restriction on pension asset recognition

Deferred tax on pension asset not recognised

Deferred tax on pensions movements

Net increase 1n shareholders’ funds
Opening shareholders’ funds

Closing shareholders’ funds

20. Operating lease commitments

2015 2014
£:000 £:000
2,035 3,204

§ 7,500

134 66
1,889 (553)
(3,136) (1,046)
627 209
914 (775)
(183) 155
(461) (363)
1,819 8,397
8,874 477
10,693 8,874

A1 30 June 2015, the Company was committed to making the following payments during the next year in

respect of operating leases

2015 2014

Land and Land and
buildings Other  buildings Other
£°000 £°000 £'000 £°000

Leases which expire

Within one year - - - -
Within two to five years 928 - - -
After five years 258 - 1,058 -
1,186 - 1,058 -
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21. Pension
ADP Pension and Life Assurance Plan
Defined contribution scheme
The Company currently operates a money purchase defined contribution scheme

The pension cost for the current year totalled £2,334,000 (2014 £2,289,000) As at the balance sheet date,
there were outstanding pension contributions totalling £535,850 (2014 £305,160)

Defined benefit scheme

Some of the employees of Automatic Data Processing Limited were ehigible for membership of the ADP
Pension & Life Assurance Plan, a funded defined benefit scheme operating in the UK This scheme 1s no
longer open to new employees

The amounts recognised 1n the balance sheet are as follows

2015 2014
£000 £000
Fair value of plan assets 10,512 9,926
Present value of funded obligations (10,380) (10,074)
Surplus/{deficit) 132 (148)
Effect of asset hmit (132) -
Related deferred tax asset - 30
Net hiability at end of the year - (118)
Amounts recogmsed 1n the profit and loss account are as follows
2015 2014
£000 £'000
Interest costs 430 428
Return on assets (578) (540}
Total income included 1n interest receivable and similar income (148) (112}
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21.

Pension (continued)

Change 1n the present value of scheme habilities

At beginning of the year
Interest cost

Actuanal loss

Gross benefits paid

Atend of the year

Change 1n the fair value of assets

At beginning of the year
Employer contributions
Expected return on assets
Actuanal loss

Gross benefits paid

At end of the year

2015 2014
£1000 £2000
10,074 9,402
430 428
144 491
(268) (247)
10,380 10,074
2015 2014
£2000 £2000
9,926 9,271
529 452
578 539
(253) (89)
(268) (247)
10,512 9,926

The Company expects to contribute £439,000 to the ADP Ltmited Pension & Life Assurance Plan in the year

to 30 June 2016

Assets as a proportion of total scheme assets at the balance sheet date

Equities
Fixed Income Bonds

Property
Cash

Property amounts to £368,000 (2014 £377,000) of the total fair value of scheme assets

2015

48%
40%
%
9%

2014

50%
37%
4%
9%
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21,

Pension (continued)

Principal actuanal assumptions at the balance sheet date

2015 2014
Rate of increase 1n salaries - -
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 320% 325%
Discount rate 3 80% 4 33%
Inflation assumptions 330% 336%
Rate of return on scheme assets 575% 575%

The actual rate of return on scheme assets was £325,000 (2014 £450,000)

The mortality assumption 1s made up of two components the underlying base table and the allowance for
future improvements in life expectancy The base tables adopted are the SINXA light mortality tables, based
on members' years of birth for both the current and last financial year Future improvements in hife expectancy
have been made 1n line with CMI 2013 with 1 5% p a long-term improvements (2014 CMI 2009 with 1% p a
long-term mmprovements)

Amounts for the current and previous four penods are as follows

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
£°000 £°000 £000 £'000 £000

Scheme assets 10,512 9,926 9,271 8,224 7,100
Defined benefit obligations (10,380) (10,074) {9.402) (8,946) (7,584)
Effect of asset limit (132) - - - -
Deficat - (148) (131) (722) (484)
Expenence adjustments on scheme lhiabilities (518) - - 273 -
Experience adjustments on scheme assets 253 89 {309) 291 475

ADP Chessington Pension scheme

The former employees of Chessington Computer Services Limited are eligible for membership of the ADP
Chessington Pension Scheme, a funded defined benefit scheme operating tn the UK

Contributions made 1n respect of the year ended 30 June 2015 totalled £1,634,000 (2014 £1,200,000)

On the 30 July 2009 Autematic Data Processing Limuted replaced Chessington Computer Services Limited as
the principal employer for the ADP Chessington Pension Scheme

2015 2014

£000 £000

Fair value of plan assets 43,013 39,155
Present value of funded obligations (42,149) (37,898)

864 1,257

Effect of asset limt (864) {1,257)
Deficit -
Related deferred tax asset - -

Net liability at the end of the year - -
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21, Pension (continued)

Amounts recognised 1n the profit and loss are as follows

Interest costs
Return on assets

Total (income} included n interest recervable and similar income

Change i benefit obligations

At beginning of the year
Interest cost

Actuarial loss

Gross benefits paid

At end of the year

Change i the fair value of assets

At beginming of the year
Employer contributions
Expected return on assets
Actuaral gain

Gross benefits paid

At end of the year

The Company expects to contribute £1,004,000 to the ADP Chessington Pension Scheme 1n the year to

30 June 2016

Asscts as proportion of total scheme assets at the balance sheet date

Equities
Fixed Income Bonds

2015 2014
£'000 £000
1,625 1,601
(1,625) (1,601)
2015 2014
£7000 £000
37,898 35,079
1,625 1,601
3,349 1,911
(723) (693)
42,149 37,898
2015 2014
£2000 £000
39,155 35,128
1,634 1,200
2,278 2,034
669 1,486
(723) (693)
43,013 39,155
2015 2014
54% 55%
46% 45%
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21.

Pension (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date

Rate of increase in penstons in payment
Discount rate

Inflation assumptions

Rate of return on scheme assets

At 30 June

2015

320%
3 80%
330%
575%

At 30 June
2014

325%
433%
336%
5 75%

The mortality assumption 1s made up of two components the underlying base table and the allowance for future
improvements n life expectancy The base tables adopted are the SINXA hght mortality tables, based on
members' years of birth for both the current and last financial year Future improvements in life expectancy have
been made in line with CMI1 2013 with 1 5% p a long-term improvements (2014 CMI12009 with 1% p a long-

term improvements)

The actual rate of return on scheme assets was £2.947,000 (2014 £3,520,000)

Amounts for the current and previous four periods are as follows

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

£°0060 £000 £000 £000 £°000

Scheme assets 43,013 39,155 35,128 30,694 26,985
Defined benefit obligations (42,149)  (37,898) (35,079) (31,701} (30,274)
Effect of asset limit (864) (1,257) (49) - -
Deficit - - - (1,007} (3,289)
Experience adjustments on scheme habilities 571 - - (584) -
Experience adjustments on scheme assets (669) (1,486) (1,955) 554 (2,209}

ADP Annual Compensation Payments

Some of the employees of Automatic Data Processing Limited were eligible for membership of the ADP Annual
Compensation Payment scheme, an unfunded defined benefit scheme operating in the UK This scheme 1s no

longer open to new employees

Contributions made n respect of the year ended 30 June 2015 totalled £102,000 (2014 £105,000)

At beginning of the year
Employer contributions
Interest cost

Actuanal loss

At end of the year

2015 2014
£000 £2000
2,169 2,137
(102) (105)
92 96

59 41
2,218 2,169
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21.

22.

23,

Pension (continued)
Principal actuanal assumptions at the balance sheet date
At 30 June At 30 June

2015 2014
Discount rate 3 80% 433%
Inflation assumptions 330% 338%

The mortality assumption 15 made up of two components the underlying base table and the allowance for
future improvements 1n life expectancy The base tables adopted are the S2PFA L /S2PMA_L hght mortahty
tables, based on members' years of birth for both the current and last financial year Future improvements in
life expectancy have been made 1n line with CMI 2013 with 1 5% p a long-term improvements (2014 CMI
2009 with 1% p a long-term improvements)

Related party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption granted under paragraph 3(c) of FRS 8, ‘Related Party
Disclosures’, not to disclose transactions with other wholly-owned group entities

The Company’s pension schemes are also considered to be related parties All transactions between Automatic
Data Processing Limited and 1its associated pension schemes are disclosed 1n Note 21

Capital risk management
Risk management

The Company manages 1ts caputal to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern, this strategy
remams unchanged from the prior year

The captal structure of the Company consists of net funds (available for sale mvestments and cash receipts
less chent fund obligations and bank overdrafis) and equity of the Company (compnising 1ssued capital,
reserves, and retained earnings})

The Company 1s not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements

The Company’s principal financial assets are cash, trade debtors, money market funds and bond investments
The Company has no sigmficant concentration of credit nisk, with exposure spread over a large number of
customers within trade debtors, whilst the Company’s investments 1n bonds are of an investment grade The
Company has limited hquidity nisk and 1s able to take advantage of the ADP Group's treasury management
function to manage hquidity risks should the need anse Price nisk 1s managed with an annual review m hne
with inflatton and market trends The Company’s exposure to foreign exchange nsk 1s not significant The
Company has limited exposure to interest rate risk as the majonty of 11s investments are in fixed rate bonds

There have been no sigmficant changes in the risks faced by the Company or 1n its management of those nsks
1 the current year

Automatic Data Processing Limited, 1n line with the strategy of the ADP group of companes, employs a range
of business management tools and processes for the effective management of the business
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23,

Capital risk management continued {continued)

Categories of financial instruments

2015 2014
£°000 £000

Financial assets:
Available for sale investments 475,545 220,165
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 35,313 31,629

510,858 251,794

Financial liabilities:
Amortised cost 497,439 238,811

The carrying amount reflected above represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for such
loans and recervables

All financial iabilities have a matunty date of less than one year

The Company undertakes certain transactions denominated n foreign currencies As a result, exposures to
exchange rate fluctuattons anse due to the fact that the Company transacts in a currency other than its
functional currency

Assets Liabihties
At30 June At30 June At30June At30June
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £°000 £'000 £°000
US Dollar 309,130 222,857 (308,306) (223,112)
Euro 172,075 - (170,794) -

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 10 per cent change in pound sterling against the
respective foreign currencies  Ten per cent represents management's assessment of the possible change 1n
foreign exchange rate The sensitivity analyses of the Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the
reporting date has been determuned based on the change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and
held constant throughout the reporting period A positive number indicates an ncrease m profit or loss and
where pound sterling strengthens agamnst the respective currency

2015 2014
£°000 £000
Impact on profit and loss 90 4n
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23.

24,

Capital risk management continued (continued)

Other gamns and losses

2015 2014
£000 £°000
Gains/(losses) recogmsed directly in equity on available for sale investments 2,451 (617)
Revaluation gains transferred to profit and loss on disposal of available for sale
nvestments (90) o1
2,361 (708)

No ather gains or losses have been recogmised in respect of loans and receivables other than impairment losses
recognised/reversed 1n respect of trade debtors (see notes 5 and 12) No gains or losses have been recognised
on financial habilittes measured at amortised cost in ether the current or preceding year

Ultimate parent company and immediate parent company

The ultimate parent company and controlling party 1s Automatic Data Processing Inc , which 15 incorporated in
the United States of America The immediate parent company 1s ADP Network Services Limited, a company
incorporated mn England & Wales

The parent company of the smallest and largest group which prepares conschidated financial statements that
mciude the results of Automatic Data Processing Limited 1s Automatic Data Processing Inc Copies of the
group financial statements of Automatic Data Processing Inc may be obtamed from One ADP Boulevard,
Roseland, New Jersey, USA
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Part 1
Item 1 Business

CORPORATE BACKGROUND
Generasl

ADP ® was founded 1n 1949 on an innovative 1dea to help business owners focus on core business activities by relieving them of certain admimstrative
tasks such as payroll Automatic Data Processing, Inc was mcorporated 1n the State of Delaware in June 1961 and completed 1ts imtial public offering n
September 1961 A pionecer 1n business process outsourcing, today we are one of the world’s leading providers of human capital management solutions to
employers, offenng solutions to businesses of all sizes, whether they have simple or complex needs We serve more than 630,000 clients 1n more than 100
countries Qur common stock 15 listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market® under the symbol “ADP”

When we refer to “we,” “us,” “our,” “ADP,” or the “Company” 1 this Annval Report on Form 10-K, we mean Automatic Data Processmg, Inc and its
consolidated subsidianes

Availlable Information

Our corporate website, www gdp com , provides matenals for mvestors and information about our services ADP’s Annual Reports on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, all amendments to those reports, and the Proxy Statement for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders
are made available, free of charge, on our corporate website as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports have been filed with or furmshed to the Secunties
and Exchange Commission (SEC) and are also available at the SEC’s website at www sec gov The content on any website referenced m thus filing 1s not
ncorporated by reference into this filing unless expressly noted otherwise

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
ADP's Mission and Strategy

For 66 years, ADP’s mission has been to help orgamzations unlock their business potential with our insightful solutions Qur commitment to service
excellence lies at the core of our relationship with each of our clients, whether a small, mid-sized or large orgamization, 1n one or multiple countries We innovate
to deliver new solutions that anticipate chent needs in all of our markets We help businesses focus on and optimize the most important investment they make -
their investment 1n their people From recruitment to talent management to retirement, our combination of expertise and technology offers sights that help our
clients leverage human capital management (HCM) to drive better business results

Our business strategy 15 based upon the following three strategic ptllars, which are designed to position ADP as the global market leader m technology-
enabled HCM services

*  grow a complete suite of cloud-based HCM solutions,
*  invest to grow and scale our market leading HR Busmess Process Quisourcing (BPQ) solutions by leveraging our platforms and processes, and
+  leverage our global presence to offer chents HCM solutions where they do business

Repertable Segments

ADP’s two reportable business segments are Employer Services and Professional Employer Organization (PEQ) Services For financial data by segment
and by geographic area, see Note 13 to the “Consolidated Financial Statements™ contamned mn this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Pror to October i, 2014, ADP had three reportable segments, which included our former Dealer Services business On September 30, 2014, the Company
completed the tax-free spinoff of the Dealer Services business through the distnbution of all of the 1ssued and outstanding common stock of CDK Global, Inc
(“CDK”) to the Company’s stockholders CDK was formed to hold the Company’s Dealer Services business and, as a result of the distribution, became an
mdependent public company trading under the symbol “CDK” on the NASDAQ Global Select Market




Emplayer Services  Our Employer Services segment offers a comprehensive range of business outsourcing and technology-enabled HCM solutions
These offerings include

+  Payroll Services

*  Benefits Admimistration

*  Recruiting and Talent Management
+  Human Resources Management

*  Tume and Attendance Management
*  Insurance Services

*  Retirement Services

+  Payment and Comphance Solutions

Employer Services’ approach to the market 1s to dehver solutions and services that best meet clients’ requirements Employer Services serves clients
ranging from small businesses to large enterpnses with multinational operations

Professional Employer Organization (PEQ) Services  ADP’s PEO business, called ADP TotalSource®, has 63 offices located in 3! states and serves
approximately 8,700 clients with comprehensive employment admimstration outsourcing solutions through a co-employment relationship in which employees who
work at a client’s location (referred to as “worksite employees™) are co-cmployed by us and the chient ADP TotalSource 15 the largest PEO 1n the United States
based on the number of worksite employees, serving approximately 387,000 worksite employees 1n all 50 states

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Employer Services’ Products and Services

Human Capital Management (HCM) In order to serve the unique needs of diverse types of busmesses, ADP provides a range of solutions, viaa
software- and service-based delivery model, which businesses of all sizes can use to recruit, stafT, pay, manage, and retain employees We serve approximately
500,000 chents via ADP’s software as a service (5aaS) offerings, commonly referred to as “the cloud ” As a leader in the growmmg HR Business Process
Outsourcing (BPQ) market, we also offer seamless outsourcing solutions that enable our clients to outsource their HR, ime and attendance management, payroll,
and benefits admimstration functions to ADP In addition, our mobile apphcations enable businesses to process thexr payroll, and give more than 5 mullion of our
chients’ employees convenient access (o thewrr HR information, via multiple mobile device platforms, around the world and 1n more than 30 languages ADP has
also opened access to developers and system tegrators through certam of our strategic platforms’ Apphcation Programming Interface Libranes This access
enables the exchange of data housed 1n ADP’s databases 1n order to create a umfied HCM ecosystem informed by a single repository of workforce data

Integrated HCM Solutions Our premuer suite of HCM products offers complete solutions to assist employers of all sizes n all stages of the employment
cycle from recruitment to retirement

*  RUN Powered by ADP® 15 used by more than 440,000 small busimesses in the Umted States It combines a software platform for managing small
business payroll, hurnan resources management and tax compliance administration, with 24/7 service and support from our team of small business
experts RUN Powered by ADP also integrates with other available ADP services, such as time and attendance tracking, workers’ compensation
msurance premium payment plans, and certamn retirement plans

+  ADP Workforce Now® 1s a flexible HCM solution used by approximately 60,000 mid-sized businesses to manage therr employees More businesses
use ADP Workforce Now than any other HCM solution designed for mid-sized businesses

+  ADP Vantage HCM® 1s a solution for large enterprises in the Umited States It offers a comprehensive set of human capital management capabilines
within a single sclution that unifies the five major areas of HCM human resources management, benefits admimistration, payroll, time and

attendance management, and talent management

«  ADP Global View® and ADP Streamline® are HCM solutions for multinational companies Available alone or together depending on client needs,
GilobalView and ADP Streamhne allow comparies of all sizes-from those
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with small and mid-s1zed operations to the largest multinational corporations-to standardize their HCM strategies across geographical regions,
including multi-country payroll and human resources management, talent managerment, and time and attendance management

+  Outside the Umted States, ADP offers comprehensive HCM solutions on local, country-specific platforms These suites of services offer various
combinations of payrolt, human resources management, ume and attendance management and talent management, depending on the country in which
the solution 15 provided

Payroll Services ADP provides flexible payroll services to employers of all sizes, including the preparation of employee paychecks, pay statements,
supporting journals, summanes, and management reperts ADP provides employers with a wide range of payroll options, ranging from manually calling in thewr
payroll requirements to our specialists, entenng their payroll data online with an internet-based sofution or via a mobile device, or outsourcing their entire payroll
process to ADP ADP also enables 1ts iargest clients to interface their major enterprise resource planning (ERP) applications with ADP’s outsourced payroll
services Employers can choose a vanety of payroll payment options rangmg from professionally pninted checks to ADP’s electronic wage payment and, in the
United States, payroll card solutions ADP also prepares and files federal, state and local payroll tax returns and quarterly and annual Social Secunty, Medicare,
and federal, state and local mcome tax withholding reports on our clients’ behalf m the United States, and prepares and files simlar reports internationally on
behalf of our clients In addition, as part of our payroll services globally, ADP supplies year-end regulatory and legislative tax statements and other forms to our
clients’ employees For those clients who choose to process payroll in-house, in the United States, ADP also delivers our Payment and Comphance Solutions
descnbed below

Benefits Adminstration  In the United States, ADP provides flexible solutions for outsourced employee benefits admimstration Employee benefits
admunistration options in the United States include health and welfare admmmstration, spending account management (health care spending accounts, dependent
care spending accounts, health rembursement arrangements, health savings accounts, commuter benefits, and employee reimbursement services), COBRA
admimstration, direct bill services, leave admimstration services, insurance camer enrollment services, employee commurucation services, and dependent
venfication services In addition, ADP benefits admimstration solutions offer employers an efficient clond-based eligibility and enrollment system It provides
their employees with tools, communications, and other resources they need to understand their benefits options and make informed cheices

Recrwiting and Talent Managemen: ADP’s Talent Management solutions simphfy the talent acquisition and performance management process from
recruitment to ongomg employee development ADP’s propnietary recruiting automation platform helps employers find, recruit, and hire talent quickly and cost
effectively Employers can also meet thewr hinng needs by outsourcing their mternal recnntment function to ADP ADP’s pre-employment services enable
employers to track candidates, screen candidate backgrounds, and integrate data to facilitate the onboarding process for new hires ADP’s performance and
compensation management applications provide tools to automate the entire performance management process, from goal planmng to employee evaluations and
help employers align compensation with employee performance within budgetary constraints When combined with ADP’s performance management applicattons,
ADP’s career development and succession management solutions offer tools that allow employees to build and update their employee profiles, search for potential
positions within the organization, and create forward looking career paths, while enabling managers to 1dentify and mihigate potential retention nisks In addiuion,
ADP’s learming management solutions provide a single pomnt of access to learning and knowledge management capabilities via multiple online delivery methods

Human Resources Management Commeonly referred to as Human Resource Information Systems (HRIS), ADP’s Human Resources Management
Solutions provide employers with a single system of record to support the entry, vahdation, maintenance, and reporting of data required for effective HR
management, such as employee names, addresses, job types, salary grades, employment history, and educational background ADP’s Human Rescurces
Management Solutions can also be combmed with ADP’s Talent Management Solutions and other HCM offerings

Time and Attendance Management ADP offets multiple options for employers of all sizes to collect employee ttme and attendance information,
including electromc timesheets, badge cards, biometnic and touch screen time clocks, telephone/interactive voice response, and mobile smartphones and tablets
ADP’s time and attendance tracking tools simphfy employee scheduling and automate the calculation and reporting of hours worked, helpmng employers enforce
leave and attendance pohcies more consistently, control overtune, and manage comphance with wage and hour regulatiens

Insurance Services  ADP Insurance Services, 1n conjunction with our heensed insurance agency, Automatic Data Processing [nsurance Agency, Inc ,
facilitates access i the United States to workers’ compensation and group health insurance for small and mid-sized chients through a vanety of msurance carriers
ADP’s automated Pay-by-Pay ® premium payment




program calculates and collects workers' compensation premium payments each pay peniod tn order to simphfy this task for employers

Retirement Services  ADP Retirement Services helps employers n the Umted States adminuster vanous types of retirement plans, such as 401(k)
(mncluding “safe harbor™” 401(k) and Roth 401(k)), profit sharing (including new comparability), SIMPLE IRA, and executive deferred compensation plans ADP
Retirement Services offers a full service 401(k) plan program, which provides recordkeeping and administrative services, combined with an investment platform
offered through ADP Broker-Dealer, Inc that gives our clients” employees access to a wide range of non-propnetary mvestment options and online tools to
monitor the performance of their investments ADP Retirement Services also offers trustee services through a third-party

Payment and Comphlance Solutions

Employment Tax Services  As part of ADP’s employment tax services m the United States, ADP prepares and files employment tax returns on our
clients’ behalf with federal, state, and local tax agencies In connection with these services, ADP collects federal, state, and local employment taxes from clients
and remuts these taxes to the appropnate taxing agencies via an electronic interface with over 7,000 federal, state, and local tax agencies ADP also responds to
mquinies from tax agencies and assists with filing tax protests on clients’ behalf In addition to our full service payroll tax solution, ADP offers a software solution
for do-1t-yourself employment tax management that can complement a client’s m-house payroll system In our fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 (*fiscal 20157),
ADP 1n the United States processed and delivered approximately 56 million employee year-end tax statements and approximately 47 milhon employer payroll tax
returns and deposits, and moved apptoximately $1 7 tnllion m client funds to taxing agencies and our chients’ employees via electronic transfer, direct deposit, and
ADPCheck, ™

Tax Credrit  Tax Credit Services helps clients in the United States take advantage of tax credit opportunities as they hire new employees, including
federal, state, and local tax credits based on geography, demographics, and other cntena, including work opportunity tax credits, federal empowerment zone
employment credits, economic development mcentives, traming grants, and many other incentives Integrating the entire process with clients’ exising hiring
programs, ADP Tax Credn Services helps clients screen job applicants and process ehgtbility forms, momitor and manage screening and form comphance, submut
forms to state agencies for tax credt certification, calculate credits, and produce a detailed audat trail

Wage Garmishment ADP offers an integrated solution to help our clients manage the wage garmishment process through integration with the chient’s
payroll system As part of an enhanced version of this service in the Umied States, ADP also helps process required correspondence to payee agencies, lien
processing and order evaluation, and notices ADP’s wage garmishment services in the Umited States also include a call center to field garmshment-related inquines
from employees, payees, and other third parties

Unemployment Claims ADP offers a single-source solution to help manage the entire unemployment claims process in the United States, including pre-
separation planning, claim protests and admimstration, appeal processing, heanng representation, and audits of benefit charges

Wage Payment and Pay Card In the Umted States, in addiuon to ADPCheck, ADP’s traditional payroll check offering, ADP offers electronic payroll
disbursement options that can be mtegrated with the client’s payroll systems and ERP applications With ALINE Pay by ADP®, payroll can be disbursed via
ALINE Check by ADP®, direct deposit, or the ALINE Card by ADP®, a network-branded payroll card ALINE Check by ADP provides employees with the
ability to recerve wages from a self-completed payroll check that includes the standard features available with a tradittonaily-1ssued payroll check Using the
ALINE Card by ADP, employees can access their payroll funds immediately 1n several ways, including via a network member bank or an ATM or pomt of sale
terminal The ALINE Card by ADP can also be used to make purchases or pay bills Additional features of the ALINE Card by ADP include the ability to load
additional funds onto the card, recerve electronic payments such as government benefits or tax refunds, and transfer funds from the card to a bank account in the
United States

ADP SmartComphance The ADP SmartComphance® solution integrates client data delivered from ADP mtegrated HCM platforms or certified third-
party payroll, HR and financial systems into a single, cloud-based platform enabling clients to consolidate their data in one location ADP’s specialized team
analyzes the data and works with clients to manage changing regulatory landscapes and improve business processes ADP SmartCompliance integrates several
HCM-related comphiance processes, mctuding healthcare reform, employment tax, tax credits, wage payments, employment venfication, unemployment claims
and wage garnishments




ADP Health Complance ADP Health Comphance helps businesses manage crucial employer-related elements of the U S Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act, including determiming offer of coverage ehgibility, assessmg affordability, and providing a cntical regulatory management solution The
solution helps chents 1dentify and address comphance 1ssues that may result from interactions with government agencies

Professional Employer Organization (PEQ) Services’ Products and Services

ADP TotalSource, ADP’s PEC business, offers smatl and mid-sized busmesses a comprehensive human resources outsourcing soiution through a co-
employment model As a PEO, ADP TotalSource provides complete human resources management services while the client continues to direct the day-to-day job-
related duties of the employees ADP TotalSource includes key HR management and employee benefits functions, including HR admimstrahon, employee
benefits, and employer hiability management, into a single-source solution

HR Admnistration. ADP TotalSource offers a vanety of comprehensive HR adminustration services, such as

*  employee recrutment and selection
+  payroll and tax administration

+  time and attendance management

*  benefits admimstration

*  employee tranmg and development
* online HR management tools

«  employee leave admimstration

Employee Benefits  Through the co-employment model, ADP TotalSource provides eligible worksite employees with access to

*  group health, dental and vision coverage
*  a401{k) reurement savings plan

+  health savings accounts

* flexible spending accounts

*  group term life and disabiirty coverage

+  anemployee assistance program

Employer Liabtlity Management. ADP TotalSource helps clients manage and limit employment related nsks and related costs by providing

* aworkers’ compensation program

*  unemployment claims management

*  safety compliance gmdance and access to safety trammng

*  access to employment practices hability insurance

+  guidance on comphance with federal, state and local employment laws and regulations

The scale of ADP TotalSource allows us to deliver a vanety of benefits and services with efficiency and value typically out of reach to small and mid-sized
businesses ADP TotalSource serves approximately 8,700 chients and approximately 387,000 worksite employees 1n all 50 states

MARKETS AND MARKETING METHODS

Employer Services’ HCM selutions are offered in more than 100 countries The most matenal markets for our HCM solutions are the Umted States,
Canada and Europe and, for each market, we have both country-specific solutions and solutiens based on our multi-country offenings, for employers of different
s1izes and complexities The major components of our HCM offering throughout these geographies are payroll, human resource outsourcing and time and
attendance management In addition, we offer wage and tax collection and remittance services m the United States, Canada, the United Kingdom, the Netherlands,
France, Australia, India and Chuina PEQ Services offers services exclusively in the United States




We market our solutions primarily through our direct sales force Employer Services also markets 1ts solutions through indirect sales channels, such as
marketing relationships with banks and certified public accountants, among others None of ADP’s major business groups has a single homogenous client base or
market While concentrations of clients exist in specific industnies, no one chent or industry group 1s matenal to ADP's overall revenues ADP enjoys a leadership
position 1n each of its mayor service offenings and does not believe any major service or major business umt of ADP 1s subject to unique market nsk

COMPETITION

The industnes i which ADP operates are highly competitive ADP knows of no reliable statistics by which 1t can determine the number of its
competitors, but 1t beheves that 1t 1s one of the largest providers of business outsourcing solutions 1n the world Employer Services and PEO Services compete with
other independent business outsourcing companies, compantes providing enterpnse resource planning services, software compames and financial institutions In
additton, another competitive factor in the mdustnes mn which Employer Services and PEO Services operate 15 a company’s use of third-party software applications
or a captive in-house function, whereby a company installs and operates 1ts own business processing systems

Competition for business outsourcing solutions 1s primanly based on service and product quality, reputation, ease of use and accessibility of technology,
breadth of services and products, and pnce We believe that ADP 15 competitive in each of these areas and that our commitment to service excellence, together
with our leading-edge technology, distinguishes us from our competitors

INDUSTRY REGULATION

Our business 1s subject to a wide range of complex laws and regulations 1n addition, many of our solutions are designed to assist chents with their
comphance with certamn laws and regulations that apply to them We have, and continue to enhance, comphance programs and pelicies to monitor and address the
legal and regulatory requirements apphcable to our solutions and operations, mcluding dedicated complance personnel and tramming programs

As one of the world’s largest providers of business outsourcing solutions, our systems contan a sigmficant amount of sensitive data related to clients,
employees of our clients, vendors and our employees We are, therefore, subject to comphiance obligations under federal, state and foreign privacy and data
secunty-related laws, including 1n the United States, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 with respect to our COBRA business, our
flexible spending account and msurance services businesses, ADP's AdvancedMD® and ADP TotalSource We are also subject to foreign, federal and state
security breach notification laws with respect to both our own employee data and client employee data Additionally, the changing nature of privacy laws in the
United States, the European Umon and elsewhere could impact our processing of personal information of our employees and on behalf of our chents

As part of our payroll and payroll tax management services, we move client funds to taxing authonties and our chients’ employees via electromic transfer,
direct deposit, and ADPCheck Certan elements of our U § money transmission activities, including our electronic payment and prepaid access (payrell pay card)
offerings, are subject to certain licensing requirements Elements of our money transmisston activities outside of the Umted States are subyject to simular laws and
requirements in the countrnes 1n which we offer such services In addition, our U § prepaid access (payroll card) offenng 1s subject to the anti-money laundering
and reporting provisions of The Bank Secrecy Act of 1970 Our employee screening and selection services business offers background checking services that are
subject to the Fair Credit Reporting Act Qur PEQ business (ADP TotalSource) 1s subject to vanous state licensing requirements Because ADP TotalSource 1s a
co-employer with respect to 1ts clients” worksite employees, we may assume certain obhigations and responsibilities of an employer under federal and state tax,
insurance and employment laws

In addition, many of our businesses offer solutions that assist our clients 1in complying with certain laws and regulations that apply to them Although the
laws and regulations apply to our chents and not to ADP, changes in such laws or regulations may affect our operations, products and services For example, our
HCM solutions help clients manage their comphance with certain requirements of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act in the United States Cur
COBRA admimstration services and flexible spending account services in the United States are designed to comply with relevant federal guidelines relating to,
respectively, employers’ benefits continuation obligations and the requirements of Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code Simularly, our Tax Credit Services
business, which helps clients 1n the United States take advantage of tax credit opportumities as they hire new employees, 15 based on federal, state, or local tax laws
and regulations allowing for tax credits




The foregoing descnption does not include an exhaustive list of the laws and regulations govermng and impacting our business See the discussion
contawned in the “Risk Factors” section 1n Part 1, Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for mformatton regarding changes n laws and regulations that may
decrease our revenues and earmings

CLIENTS AND CLIENT CONTRACTS

ADP provides 1ts services to more than 630,000 chents In fiscal 2015, no single client or group of affiliated chents accounted for revenues 1n excess of
2% of ADP’s annual consolidated revenues

ADP 15 continuously 1n the process of perfornung implementation services for new clients Depending on the service agreement and/or the size of the
clent, the installation or conversion pertod for new chients could vary from a short period of time for a small Employer Services client (as lttle as 24 hours) to a
longer period for a large Employer Services chent with muluple dehiverables (generally six to twelve months), and 1n some cases may exceed two years for a large
GlobalView Select chent or other large, compheated implementation Although we momstor sales that have not yet been billed or installed, we do not view thrs
metric as matenal m hight of the recurnng nature of our business Thes ts not a reported number, but 1t 15 used by management as a planning teol relating to
resources needed to mnstall services, and as a means of assessing our performance against the mstallanon timing expectations of our clienis

Our business 1s typically characterized by long-term chent relationstups that result m recurnng revenue Our services are provided under wnitten price
quotations or service agreements having varying terms and conditions No one price quotation or service agreement 15 material to ADP ADP’s client retention is
estimated at approximately 12 years 1n Employer Services, and approximately 7 years in PEQ Services, and has not vaned significantly from period to penod

SYSTEMS DEVELOPMENT AND PROGRAMMING

Dunng the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013, ADP 1nvested approximately $767 milhion, $686 million, and $596 million, respectively,
from continuing operations, mn systems development and programmung, which includes expenses for activities such as client migrations to our new strategic
platforms, the development of new products and maintenance of our existing technologies, including purchases of new sofiware and software hcenses

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

ADP continually upgrades, enhances, and expands its existing solutions and services Generaily, no new solution or service has a sigmificant effect on
ADP’s revenues or negatively impacts (s existing solutions and services, and ADP’s solutions and services have sigmificant remaiming hife cycles

LICENSES

ADP 15 the licensee under a number of agreements for computer programs and databases ADP’s busimess 15 not dependent upon a single license or group
of licenses Third-party licenses, patents, trademarks, and franchises are not material to ADP’s business as a whole

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

ADP employed approximately 55,000 persons as of June 30, 2015




Item 1A Rusk Factors

Our businesses routinely encounter and address risks some of which may cause our future results to be different than we currently anircipate Risk
factors described below represent our current view of some of the most iumportant risks facing our businesses and are importan! to understanding our business The
following information should be read in coyunction with Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditton and Results of Operations, Quantitatve
and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk and the consolidated financial statements and related notes included i this Annual Report on Form 10-K This
discussion includes a number of forward-looking statements You should refer to the description of the qualificanions and limitations on forward-looking
statements in the firsi paragraph under Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results af Operations included in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K The level of tmportance of each of the following rnsks may vary from time to time, and any of these risks may have a material effect on our business

Failure to comply with, or changes mn, laws and regulations applicable to our businesses could have a matenally adverse effect on our reputation, results
of operations or financial condition, or have other adverse consequences

Qur business 1s subject to a wide range of complex laws and regulations Fatlure to comply with such laws and regulations could result in the suspension
or revocation of hicenses or registrations, the lumitation, suspension or termination of services, and the imposition of consent orders or civil and ciminal penalttes,
including fines, that could damage our reputation and have a matenally adverse effect on our resulis of operation or financial condition

In addition, changes 1n laws or regulations, or changes 1n the interpretation of laws or regulations by a regulatory authority, may decrease our revenues
and earmings and may require us to change the manner m which we conduct some aspects of our business  For example, a change n regulations erther decreasing
the amount of taxes to be withheld or allowing less time to remit taxes to government authoriies would adversely impact interest income from mvesting chent
funds before such funds are remitted to the applicable taxing authoriies  Changes tn taxation regulations could adversely affect our effective tax rate and our net
income  Changes in laws that govern the co-employment arrangement between a professional employer orgamization and 1ts worksite employees may require us to
change the manner in which we conduct some aspects of our PEO business Healthcare reform under the U S Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, as
amended, related state laws, and the regulations adopted or to be adopted thereunder, have the potential to 1mpact substantially the way that employers provide
health msurance to employees and the health insurance market for the small and md-sized businesses that constitute our PEO business’s clients and prospects We
are unable to determne the ultimate impact that healthcare reform will have on our PEQ business and our ability to attract and retain PEO clients Amendments to
money transmitter statutes have required us to obtain heenses in some jurisdictions The adoption of new money transmutter statutes 1n other junsdictions, changes
m regulators’ interpretation of existing state and federal money transmutter or money services business statutes or regulations, or disagreement by a regulatory
authonty with our interpretation of such existing statutes or regulations, could require additional registration or hcensing, imut certamn of our business activities
until they are appropriately hicensed, and expose us to financial penalties These occurrences could also require changes to our comphiance programs and to the
manner m which we conduct some aspects of our money movement business or chent funds investment strategy, which could adversely impact interest income
from investing client funds before such funds are remitted

Failure to comply with the U S Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, economic and trade sanctions, and anti-meney loundenng laws and regulations, and
similar laws could have a matenally adverse effect on our reputation, results of operations or financial condition, or have other adverse consequences

Regulators worldwide are exercising heightened scrutiny with respect to anti-corruption, economic and trade sanctions, and anti-money laundening laws
and regulanons Such heightened scrutiny could result m more aggressive enforcement of such laws and more burdenseme regulations, which could adversely
impact our business We operate our business around the world, including in numerous developing economies where compames and government officials are more
likely 1o engage in business practices that are prohibited by domesyc and foreign laws and regulations, including the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act
(the “FCPA”) and the U K Bribery Act Such laws generally prohibit improper payments er offers of payments to foreign government officials and leaders of
political parties, and 1n some cases, to other persons, for the purpose of obtaining or retaming business We are also subject to economic and trade sanctions
programs, including those admimistered by the U S Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC™), which prolbat or resirict transactions or
dealings with specified countnes, therr governments, and i certain circumstances, their nationals, and with individuals and entities that are specially designated,
including narcotics traffickers and terronists or terronst orgamzations,
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among others In addition, some of our businesses in the US and a number of countnes in which we operate are subject to anti-money laundenng laws and
regulations, including, for example, the Bank Secrecy Act, as amended by the USA PATRIOT Act of 2001 (the “BSA™) Among other things, the BSA requires
certain financial institutions, including banks and money services busmesses (such as money transmutters and providers of prepaid access), to develop and
implement risk-based anti-money laundenng programs, report large cash transactions and suspicious activity, and maintan transaction records We have registered
our paytoll card business with the Treasury Department’s Financial Cnmes Enforcement Network (“FinCEN™) as a provider of prepaid access pursuant to a
FinCEN regulation

We have implemented policies to momtor and address compliance with applicable anti-corruption, economic and trade sanctions and anti-money
laundering laws and regulations, and we are 1n the process of upgrading and enhancing certain of our policies and procedures, however, there can be no assurance
that all of our employees, consultants or agents will not take actions in viclation of our policies, for which we may be ulimately responsible, or that our policies
will be determimed to be adequate by regulators  Any violations of applicable anti-corruption, economic and trade sanctions or anti-money laundenng laws could
hmat certain of our business activities until they are satisfactorily remediated and could result m civil and crimunal penalties, including fines, that could damage our
reputatton and have a matenially adverse effect on our results of operation or financial condrtion Further, bank regulators are imposing additionat and stncter
requirements on banks to ensure they are meeting thewr BSA obhgations, and banks are increasingly viewing money services busmesses, as a class, to be higher
nsk customets for money laundenng As a result, our banking partners may limut the scope of services they provide to us or may impose additional requirements on
us These regulatory restrictions on banks and changes to banks’ mtemnal nisk-based policies and procedures may result mn a decrease m the number of banks that
may do business with us, may require us to change the manner in which we conduct some aspects of our business, may decrease our revenues and earnmgs and
could have a matenally adverse effect on our results of operation or financial condrtion

Our businesses host, collect, use, transmit and store personal and business information, and a secunty or privacy breach may damage or disrupt our
businesses, result in the disclosure of confidential information, damage our reputation, increase our costs and cause losses

In connection with our business, we host, collect, use, transmit and store large amounts of personal and business information about our chents, employees
of our chents, vendors and our employees, ncluding payroll information, healthcare information, personal and business financial data, social secunty numbers,
bank account numbers, tax mformation and other sensitive personal and business information

We are focused on ensuning that our operating environments safeguard and protect personal and business information, and we devote sigmificant resources
to mamtam and regularly update our systems and processes Nonetheless, globally, attacks on mformation technology systems continue to grow n frequency,
complexity and sophisticatron, and the Company 1s regularly targeted by unauthonzed parties using malicious tacties, code and viruses Although thus 1s a global
problem, 1t may affect our businesses more than other businesses because malevolent third-parties may focus on the amount and type of personal and business
wformation that our businesses host, collect, use, transmt and store

We have programs 1n place to prevent, detect and respond to data security incidents However, because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized acoess,
disable or degrade service, or sabolage systems change frequently and may be difficult to detect for long penods of ime, we may be unable to anticipate these
techniques or implement adequate preventive measures In addition, hardware, sofiware, or applications we develop or procure from third-parties may contain
defects in design or manufacture or other problems that could unexpectedly compromise the confidentiality, integnity or availability of data or our systems
Unauthonzed parties may alsc attempt to gain access to our systems or facihties, or those of third-parties with whom we do business, through fraud, trickery, or
other methods of decerving our employees, contractors, and temporary staff As these threats continue to evolve, we may be required to invest significant
additional resources to modify and enhance our information secunty and controls or to investigate and remediate any security vulnerabilities In additton, while our
operating environment 15 designed to safeguard and protect personal and business information, we do not have the ability to momitor the implementation of similar
safeguards by our clients, vendors or their respective employees, and, in any event, third-parties may be able to circumvent those security measures

Any cyber-attack, unauthonzed intrusion, malicious software mnfiltration, network disruption, denual of service, corruption of data, or theft of non-public
or other sensitive information, sumilar act by a malevolent party, or inadvertent acts by our own employees, could result m the disclosure or misuse of confidential
or propnetary information, and could have a materially adverse effect on our business operations, or that of our clients, create financial liability, regulatory
sanction, or a loss of confidence 1n our ability to serve chients or cause current or potential chents to choose another service provider Although we beheve that we
maintam a robust program of nformation secunty and controls and none of the threats that we




have encountered to date have matenally impacted us, the impact of a data secunty mcident could have a matenally adverse effect on our bustness, results of
operations and financial condinon While ADP maintains msurance coverage that, subject to policy terms and condinons and a sigmficant self-msured retention, 18
designed to address certain aspects of cyber-nsks, such insurance coverage may be insufficient to cover all losses or all types of claims that may anse in the
continually evolving area of cyber-nsk

We are also subject to various federal, state and international laws, rules and regulauons relating to the collection, use, transmission and secunty of
personal and business mformation In many cases, these laws apply not only to third-party transactions, but also to transfers of information among the Company
and 1ts subsidianes In addition, the possession and use of personal information and data in conducting our business subjects us to laws that may require
notification to regulators, clients or employees 1n the event of a pnivacy breach These laws continue 1o develop, the number of junsdictions adopting such laws
continues to increase, and these laws may be inconsistent from jurisdiction to junisdictton The future enactment of more restrictive laws, rules or regulations could
have a matenally adverse impact on us through increased costs or resinctions on our businesses and noncomphiance could result in regulatory penalties and
significant legal liability In addition, enforcement actions and 1nvestigations by regulatory authonties related to data secunty incidents and privacy violations
continue to increase

Our systems may be subject to disruptions that could have a matenally adverse effect on our business and reputation

Many of our businesses are highly dependent on our ability to process, on a daily basis, a large number of complicated transactions We rely heavily on
our payroll, financial, accounting, and other data processing systems If any of these systems fails to operate properly or becomes disabled even for a bref penod
of time, we could suffer financial foss, a disruption of our businesses, habihity to clients, regulatory intervention, or damage to our reputation, any of which could
have a matenally adverse effect on our results of operation or financial condiion We have disaster recovery, business continuity, and cnisis management plans and
procedures designed to protect our businesses against a multitude of events including natural disasters, military or terrorist actions, power or commumcation
failures, or similar events Despite our preparations, our plans may not be successful in preventing the loss of client data, service mterruptions, disruptions to our
operations, or damage to our important facilities

If we fail to adapt our technology to meet chent needs and preferences, the demand for our services may diminish

Our businesses operate 1n industries that are subject 1o rapid technological advances and changing client needs and preferences In order to remain
competittve and responsive to client demands, we continually upgrade, enhance, and expand our existtng solutions and services If we fail to respond successfully
to technology challenges, the demand for our services may dimunish

Political and economuc factors may adversely affect our business and financizl results

Trade, monetary and fiscal policies, and political and econonuc conditions may substantially change, and credit markets may expenence penods of
constriction and volatihity When there 1s a slowdown 1n the economy, employment levels and interest rates may decrease with a corresponding impact on our
businesses Clients may react to worseming conditions by reducing their spending on payroll and other outsourcing services or renegotiating their contracts with us
In addition, a reduction in availability of financing during such conditions, even to borrowers with the highest credit ratings, may itmit our access to short-term
debt markets to meet hquidity needs required by our Employer Services business

We invest our chient funds in hquid, investment-grade marketable secunities, money market securities, and other cash equivalents Nevertheless, our chent
fund assets are subject to general market, interest rate, credit, and liquidity risks These risks may be exacerbated, individually or in unison, during penods of
unusual financial market volatility

We are dependent upon vanous large banks to execute Automated Cleaning House and wire transfers as part of our client payroll and tax services While
we have contingency plans in place for bank failures, a systemic shutdown of the banking industry would impede our ability to process funds on behalf of our
payroll and tax services clients and could have an adverse impact on our financial results and hqudity

We denve a sigmficant portion of our revenues and operaung income outside of the Umited States and, as a result, we are exposed to market nsk from

changes in foreign currency exchange rates that could impact our consolidated results of operations, financial posttion or cash flows
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Change 1n our credit ratings could adversely impact our operations and lower our profitability

The major credit rating agencies penodically evaluate our creditworthiness and have given us very strong long-term debt and the highest commercial
paper ratings Faslure to mamntamn lugh credrt ratings on long-term and short-term debt could increase our cost of borrowing, reduce our ability to obtain intra-day
borrowing required by our Employer Services business, and ultimately reduce our chent interest revenue

If the distribution of CDK common stock to ADP’s stockholders does not qualify as a tax-free spinoff, we could incur substantial habilitres and may not
be fully indemnified for such habilities

Prior to completing the spinoff of CDK, ADP received an optmon from Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Gamsen LLP, its counsel, to the effect that,
based on certain facts, assumptions, representations and undertakings set forth in the opimon, the distnbutton qualified as a transactton that 15 tax-free under
Section 355 and other related provisions of the Internal Revenue Code ADP also received a private letter ruling from the IRS with respect to certain discrete and
sigmficant 1ssues ansiog 1n connection with the transactions effected 1n connection with the separation and distnbution The oprmion and the raling were based
upon vanous factual representations and assumptions, as well as certain undertakings made by ADP and CDK. If any of those factual representations or
assumptions was untrue or mncomplete 1 any material respect, any undertaking 1s not complied with, or the facts upon which the opinion and the ruling were based
were matenalty different from the facts at the ime of the distnbution, the distnbution may not qualify for tax-free treatment Although a private letter ruhng from
the IRS generaily 1s binding on the IRS, the IRS did not rule that the distribuuon satsfies every requirement for a tax-free distnbution Opinions of counsel are not
binding on the IRS or the counts As a result, the conclusions expressed 1n an opuuon of counsel could be challenged by the IRS, and 1f the IRS prevails in such
challenge, the tax consequences to stockholders could be matenally less favorable

If the distnbution were determined not to qualify as a tax-free transaction under Section 355 of the Code, each United States holder generally would be
treated as recerving a distnbution taxable as a dividend 1 an amount equal to the fair market value of the shares of our common stock received by the holder In
additton, ADP generally would recogmze gain with respect to the distnbution and certain related transactions, and CDK could be required to indemmfy ADP for
any resulting taxes and related expenses, which could be maternal The distribution and certain related transactions could be taxable to ADP 1f CDK orits
stockholders were to engage in certain transactions after the distnbution In such cases, ADP or its stockholders could incur significant U S federal income tax
habiliies, and CDK could be required to indemmfy ADP for any resulting taxes and related expenses, which could be matenal CDK may be unable to indemrmufy
us fully for any such taxes and related expenses

We may be unable to attract and retain qualified personnel

Our ability to grow and provide our chents with competitive services 1s partially dependent on our ability to attract and retain highly motivated people with the
skills to serve our chents Competition for skilled employees in the outsourcing and other markets 1 which we operate 1s intense and, (f we are unable to attract
and retamn tughly skilled and motivated personnel, results of our operations may suffer

Item 1B Unresolved Staff Comments
None

Item 2 Properties

ADP owns 11 of its processmg/print centers, and 17 other operational offices, sales offices, and 1its corporate headquarters 1n Roseland, New Jersey,
which aggregate approximately 3,496,692 square feet None of ADP’s owned facilities 1s subject to any matenal encumbrances ADP leases space for some of its
processing centers, other operational offices, and sales offices All of these leases, which aggregate approximately 5,454,924 square feet 1n North Amenca, Eurepe,
South Amenca, Asia, Austrahia and Afnca, expire at vanous times up to the year 2024 ADP beheves its facihties are currently adequate for their intended
purposes and are adequately mamntained

Item 3 Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of business, ADP 15 subject to various ¢laims and litigation While the outcome of any hitigation 1s inherently unpredictable, ADP believes that
1t has vahd defenses with respect to the legal matters pending agamnst it and that the
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ultimate resolution of these matters will not have 2 material adverse impact on us financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows




Part 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equuty Securtties

Market for Registrant's Common Equ:ty

The principal market for the Company’s common stock 1s the NASDAQ Global Sclect Market under the symbol ADP The followmg table sets forth the reported
high and low sales prices of the Company’s common stock reported on the NASDAQ Global Select Market and the cash dividends per share of common stock
declared during each quarter for the two most recent fiscal years As of Jung 30, 2015, there were 44,019 holders of record of the Company’s common stock As of
such date, 519,476 additional holders held therr common stock 1o “street name *

Price Per Share Dividends

High Low Per Share
Frscal 2015 guarter ended (a)(b)
June 30 $88 40 $79 80 50490
March 31 $9023 $81 71 $0 490
December 31 $86 54 $70 50 $0 490
September 30 (c) $84 68 $79 20 $0 480
Fiscal 2014 quarter ended (a)
June 30 $380137 $73 38 $0480
March 31 $83 00 719 $0 480
December 31 $83 82 £69 91 $0 480
September 30 $74 95 $68 75 $0 435

(a) The steck prices in the table above, on or pnior to September 30, 2014, the date of the completion of the spinofT of our former Dealer Services business,
have not been adjusted for the impact of the spinoff

(b) The stock pnices beginning on October 1, 2014 reflect the impact of the spinoff of our former Dealer Services business

{c) On September 30, 2014, we spun off our former Dealer Services business to our stockholders Each of our stockholders of record afier the market close
on September 24, 2014 recerved one share of common stock of CDK for every three shares of the Company’s common stock
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total Number of Shares Maximum Number of
Purchased as Part of the Shares that may yet be
Publicly Announced Purchased under the
Total Number of Shares Average Pnce Paid |Common Stock Repurchase Commen Stock
Period Purchased (1) per Share Plan (2) Repurchase Plan (2)
Apnl 1,2015to
Apnl 30, 2015 1,575,000 $85 54 1,575,000 30,648,143
May 1,20i5t0
May 31, 2015 1,787,870 $86 70 1,785,903 28,862,240
June 1, 2015 to
June 30, 2015 4,920,344 $84 07 1,556,085 27,306,155
Total 8,283,214 4,916,988

Pursuant to the terms of the Company’s restricted stock program, the Company purchased 3,356 shares at the then market value of the shares 1n
(1)) connection with the exercise by employees of their option under such program to satisfy certain tax withholding requirements through the
delivery of shares to the Company instead of cash

2) The Company recerved the Board of Directors' approval to repurchase shares of the Company's common stock as follows

Date of Approval Shares

March 2001 50 mithon
November 2002 35 milhon
November 2005 50 millon
August 2006 50 mithon
August 2008 50 milhon
June 2011 35 milhon
August 2014 30 milion

There 15 no expiration date for the commeon stock repurchase plan

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative return on the Company’s common stock @ for the most recent five years with the cumulative return on the
S&P 500 Index, a Peer Group Index ® and the Old Peer Group Index ©, assuming an imtial investment of $100 on June 390, 2010, with all dividends remnvested
As a result of the Company’s deepening focus on human capital management, the Company reassessed its peer group We have determined that the compames
included 1 the $&P 500 Information Technology Index more closely match our Company charactenstics than the companies previously included in the Old Peer
Group Index The stock price performance shown on this graph may not be indicative of future performance
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COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Automatic Data Processing, Inc , the S&P 500 Index,
the S&P Information Technolegy Index, and an Old Peer Group

$300 -

$250

$200

$150 -

$100 B

$50 4

$0 . : . R ,
610 811 8/12 My 814 6/15

—&— Automatic Date Processing, inc. ---A--- S&P 500

— & - S&P Information Technology Index  —w— Old Peer Group

(a) On September 30, 2014, the Company completed the spinoff of s former Dealer Services business, into an independent pubhicly
traded company called CDK Global, Inc The cumulative returns of the Company’s common stock have been adjusted to reflect the spmoff

(b) We use the S&P 500 Information Technology Index as our Peer Group Index The S&P 500 Information Technology Index 1s a broad
index that includes the Company and several competitors

{c) * The Old Peer Group Index was

Inspenty, Inc Paychex, Inc

Computer Sciences Corporation The Ulumate Software Group, Inc
Global Payments Inc Total System Services, Inc

Intuit Inc The Westem Umon Company
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Item 6 Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data 1s denved from our consolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and related notes, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and Quanutative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk mcluded i this Annual Report on Form 10-K Prior period amounts have been adjusted to exclude discontinued operations (refer
to Note 2 of Item 8 for additional informatton)

(Dollars and shares i millions except per share amounts)
Years ended June 30, 205 2014 2013 2012 2011

Total revenues H 10,9385 H 102264 1 94420 H 8,897 4 s B.2650
Total costs of revenues s 64276 s 60410 M 55741 $ 52179 s 4,8073
Gross profit 1 45109 5 41854 $ 38679 b3 36795 s 34577
Earnings from continuing operations before mncome taxes H 20707 5 18792 $ 17101 $ 1,805 3 H 1,650 5
Adjusted eamings from continuing operations before income taxes (Note 1) 1 20707 s 1.8792 $ 17528 $ 17393 5 16505
Net earmings from continutng operations H 1,376 5 5 12426 $ 1,1222 $ 1,1922 s 10740
Adjusted net earnings from continuing operations (Note 1) s 1,376 5 5 1,242 6 ] 1,164 9 $ 1,151 ¢ 5 10740
Basic eamings per share from continuing operations 5 291 s 259 $ 212 % 245 H 218
Dnluted earmings per share from contimung operations $ 289 s 257 M 230 § 242 5 216
Adjusted diluted eamings per share from contiming operations (Note 1) $ 289 s 257 s 239 3 234 5 216
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 4726 4789 482 7 4873 493 5
Dnluted weighted average shares outstanding 475 8 4831 487 1 4922 498 3
Cash dividends declared per share s 195 s 188 s 170 s 155 ] 142
Return on equity {"ROE") from continuing operations (Note 2) 24 0% 193% 182% 19 7% 18 7%
At yearend

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable secunities of continuing operations s 1694 8 s 36703 H 17462 5 14167 H 11797
Total assets of continuing operations 5 33105 $§ 296296 $ 007 $ 285256 § 318863
Total assets $ 305 $ 320598 1 322681 5 30,8174 5 34,2383
Obligations under reverse repurchase agreements s —  § — H 2459 § — H —
Obligation under commercial paper borrowings 5 — s 21730 $ — s — 5 —
Long-term debt s 92 $ 15 $ 147 § 168 H 342
Stockholders’ equity 5 4,808 5 s 66702 H 61899 $ 61140 s 6,0104

Note 1 Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The following table reconciles results within our Selected Financial Data to adjusted results that exclude a goodwill impairment charge to our ADP
AdvancedMD business for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 ("fiscal 2013") and a gain on the sale of assets related to nghts and obligations to resell a third-party
expense management platform for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 ("fiscal 2012") We use certain adjusted results, among other measures, 1o evaluate our
cperating performance 1 the absence of certamn items and for planning and forecasting of future penods We believe that the adjusted results provide relevant and
useful information for investors because 1t allows investors to view performance 1n 8 manner sumlar to the method used by us and improves our ability to
understand our operating performance Since adjusted earmngs from continuing operations before income taxes, adjusted net earmings from continuing operations,
and adjusted diluted eamings per share (“EPS™) from continung operations are not measures of performance calculated in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amenca (“U S GAAP™), they should not be considered 1 1solation from, or as a substitute for, eammgs from continuing
operations before income taxes, net earmings from continuing openations, and diluted EPS from continuing operations, and they may not be comparable to similarly
titled measures employed by other companies
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(in milhons)

Goodwill
Year ended June 30, 2013 As reported umpairment Adjusted
‘Earnings from continuing operations before mcome taxes ) L7101 § 427 § 1,752 8
Net earmings from continuing operations $ 11222  § 427 % 1,164 9
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operattons b 230 § 609 $ 239
Gain on sale of
Year ended June 30, 2012 As reported assets Adjusted
Eamungs from continuing operations before income taxes $ 18053 % (660) $ 1,739 3
Net earnings from continuing operations $ 1,922 § (412) % L1510
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operauions s 242 % 008) $ 234

Note 2 Return on equity from continuing operations has been calculated as net earmings from continuing operations divided by average total stockholders' equuty
Qur ROE for fiscal 2013 includes the impact of a goodwiil impairment charge which decreased ROE by 0 6% Our ROE for fiscal 2012 includes the impact from
the sale of assets related 1o nights and obhganons to resell a thurd-party expense management platform which increased ROE by 0 6%

Item 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Thus document and other wnitien or oral statements made from time to ime by ADP may contan “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the
Private Secunties Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Statements that are not lustortcal in nature and which may be identified by the use of words like “expects,”
“assumes,” “projects,” “anticipates,” “‘esimates,” “we belweve,” “could” and other words of similar meaning, are forward-looking statements These statements are
based on management’s expectations and assumptions and are subject to nisks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ matenally from those
expressed Factors that could cause actual results to differ matenally from those contemplated by the forward-looking statements include ADP's success in
obtaining r-and retaiming chents, and setling additional services to chents, the pnicing of products and services, comphance with exisung or new legislation or
regulations, changes 1n, or interpretations of, existing legislation or regulations, overall market, political and economuc conditions, including interest rate and
foreign currency trends, competitive conditions, our ability to mantain our current credit rating and the rmpact on our funding costs and profitabihity, secunty or
privacy breaches, fraudulent acts, and system mterruptions and failures, employment and wage levels, changes in techaology, availability of skilled technical
associates, and the impact of new acquisitions and divestitures ADP disclaims any obligation to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise These risks and uncertainties, atong with the nsk factors discussed under "Item 1A Risk Factors,” should be considered 1n
evaluaung any forward-looking statements contained herein

LI

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

Employers around the world rely on us for cloud-based solutions and services to help manage therr most imporiant asset - their people We embrace new
technology and imnnovation to deliver exceptional products and services that meet the needs of our chients across all of our markets Our commitment to service
excellence lies at the core of our relationshup with each of our chents, whether a small, midsized or large organization in one or multiple countnes We beheve our
success 1n human capiial management (*"HCM") requires deep expertise and outstanding service to help our clients not just manage their employees, but build
better workforces Qur business strategy 15 based on strategic pillars, wiuch are predicated on our ability to drive innovation and service excellence, and attract,
build, and retamn the right talent to positton ADP as the global market leader in HCM services Our strategic prllars are to

+  grow a complete suite of cloud-based HCM solutions,
+  nvest to grow and scale our HR Business Process Qutsourcing solutions by leveraging our platforms and processes, and

«  leverage cur global presence to offer clients HCM solutions where they do business
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Duning the twelve months ended June 30, 2015 ("fiscal 2015 "), we more narrowly focused our attention on our global HCM strategy and our results
continue to reflect the strength of our underlying business model and our success 1n the market The mereased focus 1s evidenced by the separation of our former
Dealer Services business 1nto 1ts own independent, publicly traded company called CDK Global, Inc ("CDK") on September 30, 2014 and our investments in
product 1novation and our salesforce Our increased focus on product development, the lugh demand for additional HCM solutions, including products that assist
businesses in complying with the Affordable Care Act ("TACA"), improved productivity, and an improving ecenomic backdrop in the United States of America
("U S "), led our salesforce to deliver exceptionally strong new business bookings, which represent annuahized recumng revenues anticipated from sales orders to
new and existing chents 1n Employer Services and Professional Employer Orgamization ("PEQ") Services We are pleased with the financial performance of our
business segments which have dnven sohd organic revenue growth and pretax margim expansion This was achieved despite pressure on Employer Services
revenues from foreign currency translation, margin pressure from our hagh-margin chent funds snterest revenue {(which grew at a slower rate than overalt revenue),
and mncreased selling expenses which were driven by an exceptionally strong new business booking performance Revenue retention remains at record levels and
we continue to benefit from the strength of the pays per control 1n our client base, which we measure as the number of employees on our clients’ payrolls as
measured on a same-store-sales basis utihzing a representative subset of payrolls ranging from small to large businesses that are reflective of a broad range of the
U S geographic regions

Consolidated revenues n fiscal 2015 increased 7% , to $10,938 5 mullion , as compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 ("fiscal 2014 ") Eamings
from continuing operations hefore income taxes increased 10% , to $2,070 7 million , as compared to fiscal 2014 and net earmings from continuing operations
increased 11% , to $1,376 5 milhon |, as compared to fiscal 2014 Our diluted earnings per share from continuing operations increased 12% to $2 89 1 fiscal 2015
, as compared to $2 57 1n fiscal 2014

Despite pressure from foreign currency translation and higher selling expenses to support our exceptionally strong new business bookings in our
Employer Services segment, our business segment results were sohd Employer Services’ revenues increased 5% to $8,897 3 mullion and earmings from continuing
operations before income taxes increased 7% to $2,694 2 millhion PEQ Services' revenues increasmg 17% to $2,647 2 milhon and earnings from contimung
operations before mcome taxes mereased 30% to $303 6 rmullion 1n fiscal 2015 Total new business bookings grew 13% worldwide to over $1 6 billion in fiscal
2015 Our key business metrics continue to reflect the core strength of our business model, with our Employer Services' worldwide client revenue retention rate
remaining strong at 91 4% and our pays per control increasing 3 0% m fiscal 2015

Although nterest on funds held for chents increased for the first time in seven years, to $377 7 million 1n fiscal 2015 from $373 4 million in fiscal 2014,
we sull felt the pressure from declining interest rates on our client funds investment portfolio This decline 1n the average interest rate earned to 1 7% 1n fiscal 2015
, as compared to 1 8% i fiscal 2014 , was more than offset by growth in average client funds balances of 5% resulting from the continued strength and growth of
our Employer Services segment

We invest our funds held for chents n accordance with ADP's prudent and conservative mvestment guidelines, where the safety of principal, hquidity,
and diversification are the foremost objectives of our investment strategy The portfolio 1s predommantly mvested 1n AAA/AA rated fixed-mcome secunties Qur
chent funds mvestment strategy 1s structured (o allow us to average our way through an mterest rate cycle by laddenng the matunities of our mvestments out to five
years (in the case of the extended portfolio) and out to ten years (in the case of the long portfolio) Thus investment strategy 15 supported by our short-term
financing arrangements necessary to satisfy short-term funding requirements relating to chent funds oblipations

Our financial condition and balance sheet remain solid at June 30, 2015 , with cash and cash equivalents and marketable secunities of $1 7 billion  Our
net cash flows provided by operating activities were $1,905 6 mullion 1n fiscal 2015 , as compared to $1,821 4 milhon in fiscal 2014 Ths increase in cash flows
provided by operating activities from fiscal 2014 to fiscal 2015 was due to the sale of notes receivable related to our Dealer Services financing arrangements and
lower pension contributions The change n cash used mn mvesting activities of $4,573 6 mmllion 15 due to the ming of receipts and disbursements of restricted cash
and cash equivalents held to satisfy client funds obligations, partially offset by the receipt of an $825 0 mulhen tax-free dividend received from CDK 1n connection
with the spin-off earher this fiscal year The increase m cash provided by financing activities of $3,974 9 million 1s pnimanly due to the net change 1n client fund
obligations, partially offset by the tmng of cash recerved and repard under our commercial paper 1ssuances and an increase 1n repurchases of common stock 1n
fiscal 2015

We have a strong business model with a high percentage of recurning revenues with strong client retention, good margins, the ability to gencrate
consistent, healthy cash flows, and low capital expenditure requirements We continue to enhance value to our shareholders, and n fiscal 2015 paid dividends of
$927 6 mullion and returned $1,557 2 million 1n cash through our share buyback program These share repurchases were partially funded by the $825 0 million
dividend we recerved
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from CDK earher this fiscal year In the last five fiscal years, we have reduced our common stock cutstanding by approxamately 5% through share buybacks, net of
the effect of common stock 1ssued under employee stock-based compensation pregrams We have also rised the quarterly dividend per share for 40 consecutive
years

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
ANALYSIS OF CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS

Prior period amounts have been adjusted to exclude discontinued operations (refer to Note 2 of ltem 8 for addivonal informatton)

{In mulhions, except per share amounts)

Years ended June 30, $ Change % Change
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2015 2014
Total revenues 3 10,9385 $ 10,226 4 5 3,442 0 3 7121 % 784 4 7% 8%
Costs of revenues
Operating expenses 56253 52908 4,883 6 3345 4072 6% 8 %
Systems development and
programming costs 5954 5512 496 6 4472 546 8% 1%
Depreciation and amortization 2069 1890 1939 79 31 4% 3%
Total costs of revenues 6,427 6 6,041 0 55741 1866 4669 6% 8%
Selling, general and
admimistrative costs 2,496 9 2,3703 2,200 4 1266 169 9 5% 8%
Goodwill impairment —_— — 427 — 427 — % (100)Y%
Interest expense 635 61 91 04 (30) 7% (33)%
Total expenses 89310 24174 78263 5136 5911 6% 8%
Other income, net (63 2) {70 2) (94 4) (70} (242) (10)% (26)%
Eamings from continuing
operations before income taxes 3 20707  § 1,8792  § L7101t § 1915 § 1691 10% 10%
Margin 18 9% 18 4% 18 1%
Prowvision for income taxes s 6942 % 6366 % 5879  § 576 % 487 9% 8%
Effective tax rate 335% 339%% 344%
Net earnings from continung
aoperations $ 1,376 5 $ 12426 % 1,222 § 1339 $ 1204 11% 11%
Diluted earnings per share from
coniINuIng operations 5 289 % 257 §% 230 § 032 § 027 12% 12%
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Note 1 Non-GAAP measures

The following table reconcites our fiscal 2013 results to adjusted results which exclude a non tax-deductible goodwill impairment charge

(In millions)

Goodwill
2013 As reported imparurment Adyusted
Earnings from contimumg operations before income taxes b 1,7101 8§ 427 § 1,752 8
Net earmngs from continung operations $ 1,1222  § 427 3 1,164 9
Diluted earmings per share from continuing operations $ 230 3 009 $§ 2139

Fiscal 2015 Compared to Fiscal 2014
Total Revenues

Despite pressure from foreign currency translauon, our total revenues increased 7% n fiscal 2015 , as compared to fiscal 2014 | pnmanly due to new
business started dunng the year from new business bookings growth Refer to “Analysis of Reportable Segments™ for addittonal discussion of the increases
revenue for both of our reportable segments, Employer Services and PEO Services For fiscal 2015 , total revenue was negatively impacted two percentage points
by unfavorable foreign currency translation

Total revenues in fiscal 2015 include mterest on funds held for clients of $377 7 mullion , as compared to $373 4 million in fiscal 2014  The increase m
the consolidated interest eamned on funds held for clients resulted from an increase n our average chient funds balance of 5% , to $21 8 illion in fiscal 2015,
partially offset by a decrease 1n the average nterest rate eamed to 1 7% 1n fiscal 2015 as compared to 1 8% 1n fiscal 2014 Total interest on funds held for clients
was impacted one percentage point from unfavorable foreign currency translation

Tatal Expenses

Total expenses increased 6% in fiscal 2015 , as compared to fiscal 2014 , pnmanly due to increased costs to service our expanding client base and support
our growing revenue Total expenses also mncreased due to additional investments 1n product innovation and expenses directly related to the increase i new
business bookings For fiscal 2015 , our total expense growth decreased two percentage points from foreign currency translation

Operatng expenses nclude the costs directly attnibutable to servicing cur chents Addiuonally, operating expenses include PEO Services pass-through
costs that are re-billable and which include costs for benefits coverage, werkers’ compensation coverage, and state unemployment taxes for worksite
employees These pass-through costs were $2,015 9 million for fiscal 2015 , which included costs for benefits coverage of $1,627 1 rmllion and costs for workers’
compensation and payment of state unemployment taxes of $388 8 miilion  These pass-through costs were $1,736 0 million for fiscal 2014 , which included costs
for benefits coverage of $1,383 3 million and costs for workers’ compensation and payment of state unemployment taxes of $352 7 mullhon

Systerns development and programmung costs increased $44 2 mulhion 1n fiscal 2015 |, as compared to fiscal 2014 , due to increased investment and costs
to develop, support, and mamntain our products, partially offset by a higher proportion of capitalized costs of our strategic projects

Selling, general and admministrative expenses increased $126 6 mullion due to an increase mn sefling expenses to support our growth in new business
bookings as we expenenced traction from our increased focus on product development, hugh demand for additional HCM solutions, including products that assist
businesses i complying with the ACA, improved productivity, and an improving economic backdrop in the U § , partially offset by the impact of foreign currency
translation
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QOther Income, net

{In smlhions)

Years ended June 30, 2015 2014 $ Change
Interest tncome on corporate funds L3 (569 $ 537) § 32
Reahzed gamns on available-for-sale secunties 68 {204) (13 6)
Reahzed losses on available-for-sale secunties 19 39 20
Gain on sale of notes recervable (1 4) — 14
Other income, net $ (632) §$ (702) $ (70)

Other income, net 1n fiscal 2015 includes a $1 4 mulhion gain on the sale of notes receivable related to our Dealer Services financing agreements The
1mcrease mn interest income on corporate funds resulted from higher average daily corporate funds, which increase d from $4 1 bullion 1n fiscal 2014 10 34 6 bullion
m fiscal 2015 , partially offset by lower average interest rates of 1 3% in fiscal 2015 as compared to 1 4% in fiscal 2014

Earmngs from Continmng Operations before Income Taxes

Eamngs from contmuing operations before income taxes increased 10% due to mncreases 1n revenues and expenses discussed above and includes an
unfavorable impact from foreign currency translation of one percentage point Overall margin increased from 18 4% in fiscal 2014 1o 18 9% n fiscal 2015 This
mcrease was due to our operating costs related to servicing our chents increasing slower than our revenues, partially offset by the impact of higher selling expenses
to support our new business bookings

Provision for Income Taxes

The effective tax rate 1n fiscal 2015 and 2014 was 33 5% and 33 9% , respectively The decrease in the effective tax rate was due to adjustments to the tax
hability, the usage of foreign tax credits tn a planned repatnation of foreign eamings, and a change tn the tax law dunng fiscal 2015, partially offset by the
resolution of certain tax matters during fiscal 2014

Net Earmings from Continuing Operations and Diluted Earnings per Share from Continuing Operations

Net earrungs from continuing operations mcreased 11% on higher earmings from continuing operations before income taxes and a lower effective tax rate,
as described above Net eamings from continuing operations growth was unfavorably impacted one percentage point by foreign currency translation n fiscal 2015,
as compared to fiscal 2014 Diluted earmngs per share from continung operations increased 12% to $2 89 in fiscal 2015, as compared to $2 57 n fiscal 2014
Diluted earmings per share growth was unfavorably impacted $0 04 due to foreign currency translation in fiscal 2015 , as compared to fiscal 2014

In fiscal 2015 , our diluted earmings per share from conttnuing operattons reflects the increase in net eamings from continuing operattons and the impact
of fewer shares outstanding, resulting from the repurchase of approxmmately 18 2 million shares n fiscal 2015 and 9 0 nullion shares 1n fiscal 2014 , parually offset
by the 1ssuances of shares under our stock-based compensation programs
Fiscal 2014 Compared to Fiscal 2013

Total Revenues

Qur total revenues increased $784 4 mllion | or 8% , to $10,226 4 mulhion n fiscal 2014 | as compared to fiscal 2013 | due to an increase in revenues In
Employer Services of 8% , or $607 0 miilion , to $8,506 0 million and PEQ Services of 15% , or $297 7 million , to $2,270 9 milhon

Total revenues for fiscal 2014 tnclude nterest on funds held for clients of $373 4 million , as compared to $420 4 mullion in fiscal 2013 The decrease in

the consohidated interest eamed on funds held for clients resulted from the decrease in the average interest rate eamed to | 8% dunng fiscal 2014 | as compared to
2 2% for fiscal 2013 , parually offset by an increase in our average chent funds balance of 8% , to $20 7 billion in fiscal 2014
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Total Expenses

Our total expenses increased $591 1 million , or 8% , to $8,417 4 mulhion in fiscal 2014 | as compared to fiscal 2013 The increase m our total expenses
was due 10 an increase 1n operating expenses of $407 2 mullion , an increase 1n selhing, general and administrative expenses of $169 9 mullion , and an increase in
systems development and programmung costs of $54 6 million , partially offset by the goodwill impairment charge of $42 7 million 10 fiscal 2013

Our total costs of revenues increased §% , to $6,04 1 0 mullion in fiscal 2014 , as compared to fiscal 2013 , due to an increase 1n operang expenses of
$407 2 million and an mcrease 1n systems development and programmung costs of $54 6 mullion

Operating expenses increased $407 2 million , or 8% , in fiscal 2014 , as compared to fiscal 2013 , due to the increase m revenues descnbed above,
including the mereases in PEQ Services, which has pass-through costs that are re-billable and which include costs for benefits coverage, workers’” compensation
coverage, and state unemployment taxes for worksite employees These pass-through costs were $1,736 0 million for fiscal 2014 , which included costs for benefits
coverage of $1,383 3 million and costs for workers’ compensation and payment of state unemployment taxes of $352 7 million  These pass-through costs were
$1,513 5 mullion for fiscal 2013 , which included costs for benefits coverage of $1,193 2 million and costs for workers’ compensation and payment of state
unemployment taxes of $320 3 milion  The increase in operating expenses 1s also due to ligher labor-retated expenses in Employer Services of $65 9 million, as
compared to fiscal 2013

Systems development and programmung costs increased $54 6 million , or 11% , in fiscal 2014 | as compared to fiscal 2013 , due to increased costs to
develop, support, and maintain our products, partially offset by a mgher proportion of capitalized cosis of our strategic projects

Selhing, general and admimistrative expenses increased $169 9 milhion , or 8% , 1n fiscal 2014 , as compared to fiscal 2013 The increase 1n expenses was
related to an increase in selling expenses of $81 8 mullion resulting from investments in our salesforce, an increase 1n stock-based compensation expense of $35 1
mullion , and $15 9 milhion higher severance expenses in fiscal 2014 , as compared to fiscal 2013

Other Income, net

(In mulhions)

Years ended June 30, 2014 2013 $ Change
Interest income on corporate funds $ (537 % (629) 3 (92)
Realized gains on available-for-sale secunties (204) 321) (11 7}
Realized losses on available-for-sale secunties 39 35 (0 4)
Gains on sales of buildings — (22) 22)
Other, net — {07 on
Other income, net $ (702) § 944y $ (24 2)

Other income, net, decrease d $24 2 mullion m fiscal 2014 |, as compared to fiscal 2013 The decrease was due to a decrease 1n reahized gains on
available-for-sale secunities of $11 7 muilhon and a decrease in interest income on corporate funds of $9 2 million n fiscal 2014 , as compared to fiscal 2013 The
decrease in interest income on corporate funds resulted from lower average interest rates of 1 5% in fiscal 2013 1o 1 4% n fiscal 2014 and lower average daily
corporate funds, which decreased from $4 2 billion 1n fiscat 2013 1o $4 1 billion in fiscal 2014 in addstion, we recognized gains of $2 2 million pertamning to the
sale of two buildings dunng fiscal 2013
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Earnings from Continuing Qperations before Income Taxes

Eamings from continuing operations before income taxes increase d $169 1 mullion , or 10% , to $1,879 2 mullion n fiscal 2014 compared to $1,710 1
mtllion 1n fiscal 2013 , which includes the effect of the $42 7 mithon goodwill impairment charge in fiscal 2013 Overall margin increase d approximately 30 basis
pomnts from 18 1% 1n fiscal 2013 to 18 4% n fiscal 2014 This increase was due to margin umprovements 1n our business segments, partially offset by
approximately 80 basis points of margin decline related to the continued decline 1n interest on funds held for clients discussed above and 30 basis points of margin
dechne due to increased stock-based compensation costs Overall margin in fiscal 2014 also benefited approximately 50 basis points from the $42 7 millon
goodwill impairment charge in fiscal 2013

Ad)usted Earmings from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes

Adjusted earmings from continuing operations before income taxes increase d $126 4 million, or 7% , to $1,879 2 million 1n fiscal 2014 |, as compared to
$1,752 8 milhon for fiscal 2013 due to increased revenue and margin improvement i our business segments, partially offset by the continued decline n interest on
funds held for clients Margun, adjusted for the the fiscal 2013 goodwill impairment charge related to our ADP AdvancedMD business, decrease d 20 basis points
from 18 6% to 18 4% Margin improvements tn our business segments were offset pnmanly by approximately 80 basis points of margin decrease related to the
continued decline 1n interest on fund held for chents discussed above and 30 basis points of margin decline due to increased stock-based compensation costs

Provision for Income Taxes

The effective tax rates i fiscal 2014 and 2013 were 33 9% and 34 4% , respectively Our effective tax rate for fiscal 2013 includes the effect of a non tax-
deductible goodwill impaurment charge of $42 7 million that increased our effective tax rate by 0 8 percentage pomnis percentage points 1n the penod The
remaining increase 1s due to an increase 1n foreign taxes and reduced foreign tax credits available, partially offset by the resolution of certain tax matters

Net Earnings from Continuing Operations and Diluted Earnings per Share from Continuing Operations

Net earmungs from continming operations increase d $120 4 million, or 11% , to $1,242 6 mallion 1n fiscal 2014 , compared to $1,122 2 mllion 1n fiscal
2013 , whiach includes the effect of the $42 7 million goodwill impairment charge Diluted carmungs per share from continuing operations was $2 57 in fiscal 2014 ,
as compared to 32 30 in fiscal 2013

In fiscal 2014 , our diluted earnings per share from continuing operations reflects the increase in net earmings from continuing operations and the impact
of fewer shares outstanding resulting from the net impact of cumulative share repurchases, offsct by the 1ssuances of shares under our stock-based compensation
programs

Adjusted Net Earnings from Continuing Operations and Adjusted Diluted Earmings per Share from Continuing Operations

Adjusted net earnings from continuing operations increase d $77 7 million , or 7% , to $1,242 6 milhon , 1n fiscal 2014 , as compared to $1,164 9 nullion
for fiscal 2013 , and the adjusted diluted earnings per share from continumg operations increase d 8% , (o $2 57 for fiscal 2014 , compared to $2 39 for fiscal 2013
The mcrease in adjusted diluted earnings per share from continuing operations for fiscal 2014 reflects the increase in adjusted net earnings from contmuing
operations and the impact of fewer shares outstanding resulting from the net impact of cumulative share repurchases, offset by the 1ssuances of shares under our
stock-based compensation programs
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ANALYSIS OF REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

Revenues from Continuing Operations

{In millions)
Years ended June 30, $ Change % Change
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2015 2014
Employer Services 3 88973 $ 85060 $ 7.8990 § 3913 § 6070 5% 8%
PEQ Services 26472 22709 1,973 2 3763 2977 17% 15%
Other (12 4) 09) 17
Reconciling item
Chent fund mterest (593 6) (549 6) (4319}
$ 109385 § 10,2264 § 94420 § nz1 s 784 4 7% 8%

Earmings from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes

(In millions)
Years ended June 30, $ Change % Change
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2015 2014

Emplover Services s 26942 % 25173 & 22157 8 1769 § 3016 7% 14%
PEO Services 3036 234 4 1997 69 2 347 30% 17%
Other (333 5) (3229) (273 4)
Reconciling 1item

Chent fund interest (593 6) (549 6) (4319)

5 20707 § 1,8792 § 1,711 § 1915 § 169 1 10% 10%

Certan revenues and expenses are charged to the reportable segments at a standard rate for management reasons Other costs are charged to the repottable
segments based on management’s responsibility for the apphicable costs There 1s a reconciling item for the difference between actual nterest income eamed on
invested funds hetd for clients and interest credited to Employer Services and PEQ Services at a standard rate of 4 5% Ttus allocation 1s made for management
reasons so that the reportable segments’ results are presented on a consistent basis without the impact of fluctuatrons 1n interest rates  This allocation 1s a
reconciling item to our reportable segments’ revenues from contnwing operations and earmungs from continuing operations before income taxes and 1s eliminated
in consolidation

Employer Services
Fiscal 2015 Compared to Fiscal 2014
Revenues from continuing operations
Employer Services' revenues from conunuing operations increased 5% due to new business started duning the year from new business bookings growth,
an increase in the number of employees on our clients’ payrolis, and the impact of price increases  During fiscal 2015 , Employer Services' revenue growth was

negatively impacted two percentage points by unfavorable foreign currency translatton Our worldwide client revenue retention rate remained at a record level of
91 4% in fiscal 2015 when compared to fiscal 2014 and our U S pays per control increased 3 0% n fiscal 2015
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Earmngs from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes

Employer Services’ camings from continuing operations before income taxes icreased 7% due to the increase in revenues from continuing operations of
$391 3 nullion discussed above, partially offset by an incresse 1n expenses of $214 4 million This growth includes an unfavorable impact from foreign currency
translation of one percentage point Expenses increased n fiscal 2015 , as compared to 2014 , due to labor-related costs lo support cur growing revenues and an
mcrease 10 selling expenses as we experienced traction from our increased focus on product development, mgh demand for additional HCM solutions, including
products that assist businesses 1n complying with the ACA, improved productivaty, and an improving economic backdrop 1n the U § Overall margin increase d
approximately 70 basis points from 29 6% to 30 3% in fiscal 2015 , as compared to fiscal 2014 , due to our operating costs related to servicing our chents
increasing at & stower rate than our revenues, partially offset by an increase 1n selling expense due to higher new business bookings

Fiscal 2014 Compared to Fiscal 2013
Revenues from continuing operations

Employer Services' revenues from continuing operations merease d $607 0 milbion , or 8% , to $8,506 O million in fiscal 2014 , as compared to fiscal 2013
Revenues from continuing operations increase d due to new business started dunng the year from new business bookings growth, an increase in the number of
employees on our chents’ payrolls, and the impact of price increases  Our worldwide client revenue reiention rate n fiscal 2014 increased approximately 10 basis
potnts to 91 4%, as compared to our rate in fiscal 2013 , and our U S pays per control increased 2 8% n fiscal 2014

Earmngs from Continuing Operanons before Income Taxes

Employer Services' earmings from continuing operations before income taxes increase d 3301 6 milhon , or 14% , to $2,517 3 mllton n fiscal 2014 , as
compared to fiscal 2013  The increase was due to the increase in revenues of $607 0 milhon discussed gbove, which was partiafly offset by an increase n
expenses of $305 4 million  In addition to an increase in expenses related to increase d revenues, expenses increased 1n fiscal 2014 due to investments in our
salesforce and labor-related costs coupled with the effects of acquisitions Overall margtn increase d approximately 150 basis points from 28 1% to 29 6% in fiscal
2014, as compared to fiscal 2013 , due to increased operating scale

PEQ Services
Fiscal 2015 Compared to Fiscal 2014

Revenues

PEO Services' revenues increased 17% in fiscal 2015 | as compared to fiscal 2014  Such revenues include pass-through costs of $2,015 9 millron for
fiscal 2015 and $1,736 0 mullion for fiscal 2014 associated with benefits coverage, workers' compensation coverage, and state unemployment taxes for worksite
employees The increase in revenues was due 1o a 14% merease 1o the average number of worksite employees, resulting from an increase 1 the number of new
chents and growth 1n our existing clients

Eagrmings from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes

PEQ Services’ eamings from continuing operations before income taxes increased 30% in fiscal 2015 , as compared to fiscal 2014 The increase was due
to mncrease d revenues of $376 3 mullion discussed above, partially offset by an mcrease 1n expenses of $307 | million  This increase i expenses 1s primanily
related to the increase 1n pass-through costs of $279 9 milhon descnbed above Overall margin increase d from 10 3% to 11 5% for fiscal 2015 as compared to
fiscal 2014 , due to sales productivity and ncreased operating efficiencies, as our costs related to acquiring new business and servicing our clients increased slower
than our revenues
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Fiscal 2014 Compared to Fiscal 2013
Revenues

PEO Services' revenues increase d $297 7 million , or 15% , to $2,270 9 million 1n fiscal 2014 | as compared to fiscal 2013  Such revenues include pass-
through costs of $1,736 0 mllion for fiscal 2014 and $1,513 5 mulhon for fiscal 2013 associated with benefits coverage, workers' compensation coverage, and state
unemployment taxes for worksite employees The increase 1n revenues was due to a 15% increase in the average number of worksite employees, resulting from an
increase 1n the number of new clients and growth n our existing chents

Earrmings from Conttnuing Operations before Income Taxes

PEO Services' earmings from continuing operations before income taxes increase d $34 7 mullion , or 17% , to $234 4 milhon for fiscal 2014 | as
compared to fiscal 2013 Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes increase d due to growth in earnings related to the increase in the average
number of worksite employees  Overall margin increased approximately 20 bazis points from 10 1% to 10 3% for fiscal 2014 , as compared to fiscal 2013 ,
resulting from slower growth 1n pass-through costs

Other

The pnmary components of the “Other” segment are the results of operations of ADP Indemmty, non-recurring gains and losses, miscellaneous
processing services, such as customer financing transactions, the elimination of intercompany transactions, and certain charges and expenses that have not been
allocated to the reportable segments, such as stock-based compensation expense and the fiscal 2013 goodwill impairment charge

Stock-based compensation expense was $143 2 mulhon , $117 | mullion , and $82 0 million 1n fiscal 2015 , 2014 |, and 2013 | respectively

ADP Indemmty provides workers' compensation and employer's hability deductible reimbursement insurance protection for PEQ Services worksite
employees up to $1 mullton per occurrence PEO Services has secured specific per occurrence and aggregate stop loss isurance from a wholly-owned and
regulated insurance carrier of AIG that covers all losses n excess of $1 million per occurrence and also any aggregate losses withmn the $1 million retention that
collectively exceed a certamn level 1n certain policy years We utilize lustorical loss experience and actuanal judgment to determine the estimated claim liability for
the PEO Services busmess Premmums are charged to PEO Services 1o cover the claims expected to be incurred by the PEO Services’ worksite employees Changes
1 estimated ultimate incurred losses are recogmzed by ADP Indemnity Durning fiscal 2015 , ADP Indemmnity paid a premium of $167 9 million to enter into a
remnsurance arrangement with ACE Amencan Insurance Company to cover substantially all losses mcurred by ADP Indemmuty for the fiscal 2015 policy year up to
$1 mmllion per occurrence related to the workers' compensation and employer's liabihty deductible reimbursement msurance protection for PEOQ Services worksite
employees ADP Indemmty paid a premium of $202 0 muillien n July 2015 to enter into a reinsurance agreement with ACE Amencan Insurance Company to cover
substantially all losses for the fiscal 2016 policy vear on terms substantially sumular to the fiscal 2015 remsurance policy

Qur net realized gains on the sale of available-for-sale secunties were $4 9 million , $16 5 million , and $28 6 mllion 1n fiscal 2015, 2014 , and 2013 ,
respectively

In fiscal 2013, we recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $42 7 million related to our ADP AdvancedMD business which ts part of the Employer
Services segment There were no goodwill impairment charges n fiscal 2015 or 2014

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At June 30, 2015, cash and marketable secunties were $1,694 8 million , stockholders' equity was $4,808 5 million , and the ratio of long-term debt-to-
equity was 0 2% Workung capital before funds held for chents, client funds obhgations, and assets and habihties related to discontinued operations at June 30,
2015 was $1,480 7 mmllion , as compared to $1,202 1 million at June 30, 2014  The increase 1n working capital was due to an increase 1n cash and cash
equivalents as well as changes 1n other elements of working capital which were dniven by the iiming of receipts and disbursements related to our underlying
operations
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Our principal sources of hquidity for operations are denved from cash generated through operations and through corporate cash and marketable secunties
on hand We continued to generate positive cash flows from operations during fiscal 2015 , and we held approximately $1 7 hlhon of cash and marketable
secunties at June 30, 2015  We have the ability to borrow through our financing arrangements under our U § short-term commercial paper program and our U §
and Canadian short-term reverse repurchase agreements to meet short-term funding requirements related to client funds obhgations

Our cash flows from operating, investing, and financing activities, as reflected in the Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows for the years ended 2015,
2014 , and 2013 , are summanzed as follows

(in millions) Years ended June 30, $ Change
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014
'Cash provided by (used tn)
Operating activities $ 19056 § 18214 § 1,5772  § 842 % 244 2
. Investing activities (3,760 3) 8133 (1,578 4) (4,573 6) 23917
Financing activities 1,616 7 (2,358 2) 1510 39749 (2,509 2)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents (106 3} 80 12 (114 3) 68
Net change 1n cash and cash equivalents $ (3443) $ 2845 § 1510 § (6288) § 1335

Net cash flows provided by operating activities increase d due to $226 7 nulhion recerved from the sale of notes receivable related to Dealer Services
financing arrangements and a lower pension contnibution of $74 8 nulhon for fiscal 2015 , as compared to fiscal 2014

Net cash flows of mvesting activities changed due to the timing of receipts and disbursernents of restncted cash and cash equivalents held to satisfy client
funds obligations of $5,498 4 million , partially offset by the receipt of the CDK dividend during fiscal 2015

Net cash flows of financing activities changed due to the net increase in client funds obligations of $9,063 9 mullion , as a result of the uming of cash
recetved and payments made related to chient funds, partially offset by an increase 1n our repurchases of common stock and the trmng of borrowings and
repayments of comumercial paper

We purchased approximately 18 2 million shares of our common stock at an average pnce per share of $84 96 dunng fiscal 2015 as compared to
purchases of 3 0 mullion shares at an average price per share of $75 06 dunng fiscal 2014 The repurchases in fiscal 2015 were partially funded by the $825 0
million dividend received from CDK earlier ths fiscal yvear From tume to time, the Company may repurchase shares of its comumon stock under uts authorized
share repurchase programs The Company considers several factors in determming when to execute share repurchases, including, among other things, actual and
potential acquisition activity, cash balances and cash flows, 1ssuances due to employee benefit plan activity, and market conditions

Our U S short-term funding requirements related to clrent funds are sometimes obtained through a short-term commercial paper program, which provides
for the 1ssuance of commercial paper, rather than hquidating previously-collected chent funds that have already been invested in available-for-sale secunties
Dunng fiscal 2015, this commercial paper program provided for the issnance of up to $7 5 billion 1n aggregate matunty value, in July 2015 , we increased our U §
short-term commercial paper program to provide for the 1ssuance of up to $8 25 billion 1n aggregate matunity value Qur commercial paper program 1s rated A-1+
by Standard and Poor’s and Prime-1 by Moody’s These ratings denote the highest quality commercial paper securities  Maturities of commercial paper can range
from overmight to up to 364 days For fiscal 2015 and 2014 , our average daily borrowings were $2 3 billion at a weighted average mterest rate of 0 1% The
werghted average maturity of the Company’s commercial paper during fiscal 2015 was approximately two days We have successfully borrowed through the use
of our commercial paper program on an as needed basis to meet short-term funding requirements related to chent funds obhgations At June 30, 2015 , we had no
outstanding obligations under our short-term commercial paper program At June 30, 2014 | we had $2 2 billion of commercial paper outstanding, which was
repaid on July 1, 2014

Our U S and Canadian short-term funding requirements related to client funds obligations are sometimes obtained on a secured basis through the use of
reverse repurchase agreements, which are collateralized principally by government and govemment agency secunties, rather than hquidatng previously-collected
chient funds that have already been invested in available-for-sale securities These agreements generally have terms ranging from overmght to up to five business
days We
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have successfully borrowed through the use of reverse repurchase agreements on an as needed basis to meet short-term funding requirements related to chent funds
obhigations At June 30, 2015 and 2014 , there were no outstanding obligations related to the reverse repurchase agreements For fiscal 2015 and 2014 , we had
average outstanding balances under reverse repurchase agreements of $421 2 mullion and $361 7 mullion , respectively, at weighted average interest rates of 0 4%
and 0 5% , respectively In addition, we have $3 25 billion available to us on a commutted basis under these reverse repurchase agreements We believe that we
currently meet all condinons set forth 1n the committed reverse repurchase agreements to borrow thereunder, and we are not aware of any conditions that would
prevent us from borrowing part or all of the $3 25 billion available to us under the committed reverse repurchase agreements

We have a 52 75 billion , 364-day credit agreement with a group of lenders that matures 1n June 20§6 in addition, we have a five-year §2 25 illion
crednt facility and a five-year $3 25 billion credit facility matuning in June 2020 and June 2019 , respectively, each with an accordion feature under which the
aggregate commitment can be increased by $ 500 0 million , subject to the availability of additional commtments The interest rate applicable to commutted
borrowings 15 tied to LIBOR, the effective federal funds rate, or the pnme rate depending on the netification provided by the Company to the syndicated financial
institutions prior to borrowing  The Company 15 also required to pay facility fees on the credit agreements The pnimary uses of the credit facihities are to provide
hquidity to the commercial paper program and funding for general corporate purposes, 1f necessary  We had no borrowings through June 30, 2015 under the credit
agreements We believe that we currently meet all conditions set forth in the revolving credit agreements to borrow thereunder, and we are not aware of any
conditions that would prevent us from borrowing part or all of the $8 25 tillion available to us under the revolving credit agreements

Qur investment portfolio does not contan any asset-backed secunties with underlying collateral of subpnime morngages, alternative-A mortgages, sub-
pnime auto loans or sub-prime home equity loans, collateralized debt obligations, collaterahzed loan obligations, credit default swaps, denvatives, auction rate
securities, structured mvestment vehicles or non-mvestment grade fixed-income securities We own AAA rated semor tranches of fixed rate credit card, auto loan,
rate reductton, and other asset-backed secunties, secured predominately by pnme collateral  All collateral on asset-backed securmnes 15 performing as expected In
addition, we own semor debt directly 1ssued by Federal Home Loan Banks and Federal Farm Credit Banks We do own morgage-backed securities, which
represent an undivided beneficial ownership interest 1n a group or pool of one or more residential mortgages These secunities are collateralized by the cash flows
of 15-year and 30-year residential mortgages and are guaranteed pnmanly by Federal Nauonal Morigage Association as to the umely payment of principal end
mterest  Our client funds mvestment strategy 15 structured to allow us to average our way through an mterest rate cycle by laddenng the matunties of our
investments out to five years (in the case of the extended portfoho} and out to ten years {in the case of the long portfolio) This investment strategy 1s supported by
our short-term financing arrangements necessary to satisfy short-term funding requirements relating to client funds obligations

Capital expenditures for contiuing operattons n fiscal 2015 were $171 2 milhon , as compared to §161 0 million in fiscal 2014 and $129 4 mulbion n
fiscal 2013 The capital expenditures 1n fiscal 2015 related to our data center and other facility unprovements were made to support our operations We expect
capital expenditures in fiscal 2016 to be between $225 milhion and $250 million

The following table provides a summary of our contractual obligations as of June 30, 2015

{In rmllions) Payments due by period
Less than 1-3 3-5 More than

Contractual Obligations 1 year years years 5 years Unknown Total
Debt Obhigations (1) s 25  $ 92 § — 3 — 3 — % 117
Operating Lease and Software

License Obligations (2} $ 896 % 1442 % 667 % 204 % —-— % 3209
Purchase Obhigations (3} $ 3587 S8 2099 % 1751 % — 3 — 5 7437
Obligations Related to Unrecogmzed

Tax Benefits (4) 5 10 8% — 3 — 3 — 3 261 % 271

Other Long-Term Liablines Reflected
on our Consolidated Balance Sheets

Compensation and Benefits (5) $ 35 8 226 % 1092 § 2602 § 805 § 6760
Acquisitton-related Obligations (6) $ 10 8 10 % — 3 — 3 — 3 20
Total % 4563 § 5869 §$ 3510 S 2806 § 1066 1,781 4
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{1) These amounts represent the princtpal repayments of our debt and are mcluded on our Consohdated Balance Sheets The estimated wnterest payments due by the correspondimg
penod above are excluded from the above and are not matenal for any penods presented.

(2) Included in these amounts are various faciliies 2nd equipment leases and software license agreements We enter into opersting leases in the nortnal course of business relating to
factlities and equipment, as well as the hicensing of software The majonty of our lease agreements have fixed payment terms based on the passage of tme Certain facility and
equipment leases require payment of mamntenance and real estate taxes and contam escalation provistons based on future adjustiments 1n pnce indices Our future operating lease
obligations could change 1f we exit certain contracts or 1f we enter into additional operating lease agreements

(3) Purchase cbligauons are compnsed of a $202 ¢ milhion reinsurance premium with ACE Amencen Insurance Company for the fiscal 2016 palicy year, as well as obligations related
to purchase and maintenance agreements on our software, equipment, and other assets

(4} We made the determenation that net cash payments expected to be paid within the next 12 months, related to unrecognized tax benefits of §27 ¥ milhion at June 30, 2015 are
expected to be up to $1 mullion We are unable to make reasonably reliable estimates as to the penod beyond the next 12 months 1n which cash payments related to unrecognized tax
benefits are expected to be paid

(5) Compensahion and benefits primanly relates to amounts associated with our employee benefit plans and other compensation arrangements  These amounts exclude the esimated
contributiens to our defined benefit plans, which are expected to be $10 7 mrullion in fiscal 2016

{6) Acquisition-retated obligauens relate to deferred purchase consideration payments at future dates A habality 15 established at (he ome of the acquisition for these fixed payments

I[n addition to the obligations quantified in the table above, we had obligations for the remittance of funds relatng to our payroll and payroll tax filing
services As of June 30, 2015 | the obligations relating to these matters, which are expected to be paid i fiscal 2016 , total $24,650 5 million and were recorded
client funds obligations on our Consolidated Balance Sheets We had $24,865 3 million of cash and marketable securities that have been unpounded from our
chents to satisfy such ebligatens recorded m funds held for clients on our Consohdated Balance Sheets gs of June 30, 2015

ADP Indemmty provides workers' compensation and employer’s hability deductible reimbursement insurance protection for PEQ Services worksite
employees up to $1 million per occurrence PEO Services has secured specific per occurrence and aggregate stop loss msurance from a wholly-owned and
regulated insurance carrier of AIG that covers all losses in excess of $1 million per occurrence and also any aggregate losses withun the $1 mullion retention that
collectively exceed a certam level in certamn policy years Should AIG and 1ts wholly-owned insurance company be unable to satisfy their contractual obligations,
ADP would also become responsible for satisfying these worksite employee workers' compensation obligations for these claims 1n excess of $1 million per
occurrence We utilize lustoncal loss expenence and actuanal judgment to determine the estimated claim hability for the PEO Services business Premiums are
charged to PEO Services to cover the claims expected to be mcurred by the PEO Services' worksite employees Changes 1n estimated ultimate mcurred losses are
recognized by ADP Indemmity Dunng fiscal 2015 , ADP Indemmity paid a premium of $167 9 million to enter into a remsurance agreement with ACE Amencan
Insurance Company to cover substantially all losses incurred by ADP Indemmity for the fiscal 2015 policy year up to $1 million per occurrence related to the
workers' compensation and employers' liability deductible reimbursement insurance protection for PEQ Services worksite employees ADP Indemmty paid a
premium of $202 0 nullion in July 2015 to enter into a reinsurance agreement with ACE Amencan Insurance Company to cover substantially al! losses for the
fiscal 2016 policy year on terms substantially similar to the fiscal 2015 rewinsurance pohcy At june 30, 2015 , ADP Indemmty had total assets of $433 3 mullion 1o
satisfy the actuanally estimated unpaid losses of $369 8 million for the policy years since July 1, 2003 ADP Indemmity paid claims of $26 0 rutlion and $45 3
muliien , net of insurance recovenes, mn fiscal 2015 and 2014 , respectively

In the normal course of business, we also enter tnto contracts in which we make representations and warranties that relate to the performance of our
services and products We do not expect any matenal losses related to such representations and warranties

Quantitative and Quahlitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Our overall investment portfolio 1s comprnised of corporate investments (cash and cash equivalents, shon-term marketable secunties, and long-term
marketable secunties) and chient funds assets (funds that have been collected from clients bul not yet remitted to the applicable tax authonties or chent employees)

Our corporate mnvestments are invested 1n cash and cash equivalents and lghly liquid, mmvestment-grade marketable secunuies  These assets are available
for repurchases of common stock for treasury and/or acquisitions, as well as other
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corporate operating purposes  All of our short-term and long-term fixed-income secunties are classified as available-for-sale secunties

Our client funds assets are invested with safety of principal, iqudity, and diversification as the pnmary objectives Consistent with those objectives, we
also seek to maximize interest income and to mimmize the volathty of mierest income  Chent funds assets are invested in hughly liquid, investment-grade
marketable secunties, with a maximum matunty of 10 years at the time of purchase, and money market securities and other cash equivalents At June 30, 20i5,
approximately 93% of the available-for-sale secunties categorized as U S Treasury and direct obligations of U § government agencies were invested 1n semor,
unsecured, non-callable debt directly 1ssued by the Federal Home Loan Banks and Federal Farm Credat Banks

We utilize a strategy by which we extend the matunties of our investment portfolio for funds held for chents and employ short-term financing
arrangements to satisfy our shon-term funding requirements related to chent funds obhgations Our client funds investment strategy 1s structured to allow us to
average our way through an mnterest rate cycle by laddenng the matunities of our investments out to five years (in the case of the extended portfolio) and out to ten
years {mn the case of the long portfolto) As part of our client funds mvestment strategy, we use the daily collection of funds from our clients to satisfy other
unrelated chent funds obhigations, rather than liquidating previcusly-coliected client funds that have already been imvested in available-for-sale secunties We
mummize the nsk of not having funds collected from a client availabte at the ime such chient’s obligation becomes due by impounding, i virtually all 1nstances,
the chient’s funds 1n advance of the ummg of payment of such client’s obligation  As a result of this practice, we have consistently mamntained the required level of
client funds assets to satisfy all of our obligations

Thete are inherent nsks and uncertainties involving our investment strategy relating to our chient funds assets Such nisks include liqudity nsk, including
the nsk associated with our abihty to liqmdate, 1f necessary, our availeble-for-sale secunties in & tmely manner 1n order to satisfy our chent funds
obligations However, our invesiments are made with the safety of principal, hquidity, and diversification as the pnmary goals to mimmize the nsk of not having
sufficient funds to satisfy all of our chent funds obhgations We also believe we have significantly reduced the nsk of not having sufficient funds to sauisfy our
client funds obligations by consistently mamntatming access to other sources of hquidity, including our corporate cash balances, available borrowings under our
$8 25 hillion commercial paper program (rated A-1+ by Standard and Poor’s and Prime-1 (P-1) by Moody's, the highest possible credit ratings), our ability to
execute reverse repurchase transactions ($ 3 25 bilhon of which 1s available on a commtted basis), and available borrowings under our 38 25 billion commutted
credit facilities The reduced availability of financing during periods of economic turmoil, even to borrowers with the highest credit ratings, may lmit our ability to
access short-term debt markets to meet the hiquidity needs of our business In additton to hquidity nisk, our investments are subject to mterest rate nsk and credit
nisk, as discussed below

We have established credit quahty, matunty, and exposure limits for our investments  The muumurm allowed credit raung &t time of purchase for
corporate and Canadian provincial bonds 1s BBB, for asset-backed secunities 1s AAA, and for municipal bonds 1s A The maxamum matunty at ume of purchase
for BBB rated secunties 1s 5 years, for single A rated secunties 15 7 years, and for AA rated and AAA rated securities 1s 10 years Time deposits and commercial
paper must be rated A-1 and/or P-1 Money market funds must be rated AAA/Aaa-mf
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Details regarding our overall investment portfolio are as follows

(In mulltons)
Years ended June 30, 2015 2014 2013
Average investment balances at cost
Comorate investments h) 4,560 4 b 40724 § 4,200 3
Funds held for chents 21,7984 20,726 5 19,156 3
Total $ 263588 § 24,7989  § 23,356 6

Average interest rates camed exclusive of realized
gans/(losses} on

Cormporte investments 13% 1 4% 15%

Funds held for chents 1 7% 18% 22%
Total 1 7% 17% 21%
Realized gains on available-for-sale securities $ 68 $ 204 5 321
Realized losses on available-for-sale secunties {19) 39 (35)
Net realized gains on available-for-sale secunties s 49 § 165 § 286
As of June 30

Net unreahzed pre-tax gains on
available-for-sale securities $ 2165 § 3244 § 2874

Total available-for-sale secunties at fair value $ 20,8738 § 20,1565 § 18,838 7

We are exposed to interest rate risk n relation to secunties that mature, as the proceeds from maturing securities are remnvested  Factors that influence the
eamuings impact of interest rate changes include, among others, the amount of invested funds and the overall portfolio mix between short-term and long-term
mvestments This mix varies dunng the fiscal year and 1s impacted by daily interest rate changes The annualized mterest rate earned on our entire portfolio
remamed consistent at 1 7% for fiscal 2015 , as compared to fiscal 2014 A hypothetical change in both short-term interest rates (e g , overmght interest rates or
the federal funds rate) and intermediate-term mterest rates of 25 basis points appled to the esumated average investment balances and any related short-term
borrowings would result in approximately a $12 mullion impact to earmings from continuing operations before mncome taxes over the ensuing twelve-month penod
ending June 30, 2016 A hypothetical change wn only short-term interest rates of 25 basis points applied 1o the estimated average short-term 1nvestment balances
and any related short-term borrowings would result 1n approximately a $4 mullion rmpact to earmings from continuing operations before income taxes over the
ensuing twelve-month pertod ending June 30, 2016

We are exposed 1o credit nsk 1n connection with our available-for-sale securities through the possible inability of the bormowers to meet the terms of the
securiies  We limit credit nisk by investing m mvestment-grade securities, pnmanly AAA and AA rated secunities, as rated by Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s, and
for Canadian secunties, Dormmion Bond Rating Service Approximately 80% of our available-for-sale secunties held a AAA or AA rating at June 30, 2015 In
additien, we himat amounts that can be invested n any secunty other than U § and Canadian government or government agency secunities

We operate and transact business 1 vanous foreign jurisdictions and are therefore exposed to market rnisk from changes in foreign currency exchange
rates that could smpact our conselidated results of operations, financial position, or cash flows We expenenced pressure from foreign currency translation on our
revenue and earmungs from continuing operations before income taxes in fiscal 2015 and expect this pressure to continue 1n the early part of fiscal 2016 We
manage our exposure to these market nsks through our regular operating and financing acuvities and, when deemed appropnate, through the use of denvative
financial instruments We may use denivative financial instruments as risk management tools and not for trading purposes We had no denvative financial
instruments outstanding at June 30, 2015 or 2014
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RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In Apnl 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") 1ssued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2015-05, Customer's Accounting for
Fees Paid 1n a Cloud Computing Arrangement The update provides guidance on whether a cloud computing arrangement includes a software license I a cloud
computing arrangement includes a sofiware License, then the customer should account for the software hcense etement of the arrangement consistent with the
acquisition of other sofiware hcenses 1fa cloud computing arrangement does not include a software license, the customer should account for the arrangement as a
service contract ASU No 2015-05 1s effective for fiscal years, and intenm periods withi those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2015 Early adoption 1s
permitted We have not yet determined the impact of ASU 2015-05 on our consolidated results of operauons, financial condition, or cash flows

It Apnl 2015, the FASB 15sued ASU 2015-04, "Compensation - Retirement Benefits (Topic 715) Practical Expedient for the Measurement Date of an
Employer's Defined Benefit Obligation and Plan Assets ™ The update allows an entity to remeasure their pension and ather post-retirement benefit plan assets and
liabihities at the month-end closest to a sigmficant event such as a plan amendment, curtailment, or settlement ASU 2015-04 15 effective for fiscal years, and
ntenm reporting penods within those years, beginning afier December 15, 2015 Early adoption 1s permtted The tmpact of ASU 2015-04 1s dependent upon the
nature of future sigmficant events impacting our pension plans, 1f any

In Apnl 2015, the FASB 1ssued ASU 2015-03, "Sumphifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs " The update requires debt 1ssuance costs related to a
recognized debt liability be presented 1n the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the related debt Liability nstead of being presented as
an asset The update requires retrospective application ASU 2015-03 1s effective for fiscal years, and iterim reporting penods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2015 Early adoption 1s permitted The tmpact of ASU 2015-03 15 dependent upon the nature of future debt 1ssuances, 1f any

In May 2014, the FASB 1ssued ASU 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” which cuthnes a single comprehensive model for entines to use
n accounting for revenue ansing from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, mcluding industry-specific gmdance
ASU 2014-09 requires an entity to recognize revenue depicting the transfer of goods or services to customers n an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled m exchange for those goods or services ASU 2014-09 will also result in enhanced revenue related disclosures ASU 2014-091s
effective for fiscal years, and mierim reporting periods within those years, beginming after December 15, 2017 Early adoption 15 permutted 'We have not yet
determined the mmpact of ASU 2014-09 on our consclidated results of operattons, financial condition, or cash flows

In Apnl 2014, the FASB 1ssued ASU 2014-08, "Reporting Discontinued Operstions and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity " ASU
2014-08 requires that a disposal representing a strategic shift that has (or will have) a mayor effect on an entity’s financial results or a business acuvity classified as
held for sale should be reported as discontinued operations ASU 2014-08 also expands the disclosure requirements for discontinued operations and adds new
disclosures for individually signuficant dispositions that do not qualify as discontmued operations ASU 2014-08 1s effecuve prospectively for fiscal years, and
mterim reporting penods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2014 The umpact of ASU 2014-08 15 dependent upon the nature of dispositions, 1f any,
after adoption

[n July 2014, we adopted ASU 2013-11, “Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or
a Tax Crednt Carryforward Exists ” ASU 2013-11 requires netting of unrecogmzed tax benefits against a deferred tax asset for a loss or other carryforward that
would apply tn settlement of the uncertain tax position The adoption of ASU 2013-11 did not have a material impact on our consclidated results of operations,
financial condition, or cash flows

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes have been prepared in accordance with accounting pnnciples generally accepted in the
United States of Amenica The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates, Judgments, and assumptions that affect reported
amounts of assets, liabilittes, revenues, and expenses We continuatly evaluate the accounting policies and estimates used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements The estimates are based on histonical expenience and assumptions believed to be reasonable under current facts and circumstances Actual amounts and
results could differ from these estimates made by management Certain accounting pohcies that require sigmificant management estimates and are deemed cntical
to our results of operations or financial position are discussed below
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Revenue Recogmition Qur revenues are primanly attnbutable to fees for providing services (e g Employer Services' payroll processing fees), investment
mcome on payroll funds, payroll tax filing funds and other Employer Services’ client-related funds, and fees charged to implement clients on the Company's
solutions We enter into agreements for a fixed fee per transaction { € g, number of payees or number of payrolls processed) Fees associated with services are
recognized 1n the penod services are rendered and eamed under service arrangements with clients where service fees are fixed or deterrminable and collectability ts
reasonably assured

We report PEO revenues net of direct pass-through costs, which are costs billed and incurred for PEO Services worksite employees, pnmanly consisting of payroll
wages and payroll taxes Benefits, workers’ compensation, and state unemployment tax fees for worksite employees are included 1n PEO revenues and the
associated costs are tncluded in operating expenses

We recognize interest income on collected but not yet remmtted fiinds held for chents in revenues as eamed, as the collection, holding and remittance of these funds
are cntical components of providing these services

Chent implementation fees are charged to set clients up on our solutions and are deferred until the chent has gone live and services have begun These fees are
amortized 1o revenue over the longer of the contractual term or expected client hife, including estimated renewals of client contracts

We assess the collectability of revenues based primanly on the creditworthiness of the customer as determned by credit checks and analysis, as well as the
customer’s payment history

Goodwill We account for goodwill 1n accordance with ASC 350-10, which states that goodwll should not be amortized, but instead tested for
impairment annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable We perform this impairment test by
first comparing the farr value of each reporting unit to 1ts carrying amount If the camrying value for a reporting umit exceeds its fair value, we then compare the
tmphed fair value of our goodwill to the carrying amount m order to determine the amount of the impairment, 1f any We determine the fair value of our reporting
umits using an equal weighted blended approach, which combines the income approach, which is the present value of expected cash flows, discounted at a nsk-
adjusted weighted-average cost of capital, and the market approach, which 1s based on using market multiples of comparies in similar lines of busimess Sigmificant
assumptions used m determiming the fair value of cur reporting umits include projected revenue growth rates, profitabihity projections, working capital assumptions,
the weighted-average cost of capital, the determination of appropriate market companson companies, and terminal growth rates We had $1,793 5 milhon of
goodwill as of June 30, 2015 Based on the fair value analysis completed 1n the fourth quarter of 2015 , management concluded that fair value exceeded carrying
value for all reporting umts and that no reporting umts were at risk of goodwill impairment In completing the annual impairment test for fiscal 2015 , we evaluated
the reasonableness of differences noted between the fawr value and carrying value of each reporting umt Guven the sigmficance of our goodwil), an adverse change
to the fair value of goodw1ll and mtangible assets could result m an impawrment charge which could be matenal to our consolidated earmngs 1f we are unable to
generate the anticipated revenue growth, synergies and/or cost savings assoctated with our acquisiions In fiscal 2014 | the Company performed the required
annual impairment tests of goodwill and determmed that there were no impairments Dunng the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, there was an impairment charge of
$42 7 mulhion for the ADP AdvancedMD reporting unit

Income Taxes The objectives of accounting for mcome taxes are to recognuze the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred
tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been recogruzed in an entity's financial statements or tax retumns Judgment 1s required
in addressing the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized 1n our consolidated financial statements or tax returns (e g , realization of deferred
tax assets, changes in tax laws ot interpretations thereof) In addition, we are subject to the continttous exammatnon of our ncome tax returns by the IRS and other
tax authonties A change in the assessment of the outcomes of such matters could matenally impact our consolidated financial statements

There 15 a financial statement recogmition threshold and measurement attribute for tax positions taken or expected to be taken 1n a tax return  Specifically,
the likelthood of an entity’s tax benefits being sustamed must be “more likely than not” assuming that those posittons will be examined by taxing authorities with
full knowledge of all relevant information prior to recording the related tax benefit 1n the financial statements 1f a tax position drops below the “more Iikely than
not” standard, the benefit can no longer be recogmzed Assumptions, judgment and the use of esumates are required in determining 1f the “more likely than not”
standard has been met when developing the provision for mcome taxes A change in the assessment of the “more likely than not” standard could materally impact
our consolidated financial statements As of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , the Company's habilities for unrecogmized tax benefits, whuch include nterest and penalties,
were $27 1 milhon and $56 § million , respectively
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if certaan pending tax matters settie within the next twelve months, the total amount of unrecogmized tax benefits may increase or decrease for all open tax
years and junsdictions Based on current estimates, favorable settlements related to vanous junsdictions and tax penods could increase earnmgs up to 35 miilion
the next twelve months Audit outcomes and the timing of audit settlements are subject to sigruficant uncertamnty We continually assess the Iikelihood and amount
of potential adjustments and adjust the income tax provision, the cusrent tax liability and deferred taxes in the penod in which the facts that give nse to a revision
become known

Stock-Based Compensation  We measutre stock-based compensation expense based on the fair value of the award on the date of grant We determine the
fair value of stock options 1ssued by using a binomial option-pncing model The binomual option-pncing model considers a range of assumptions refated to
volatility, dividend yield, nsk-free interest rate, and employee exercise behavior Expected volatihties utilized in the binomial option-pricing model are based on 2
combmation of implied market volatilities, historical volatility of our stock price, and other factors Simularly, the dividend yield 15 based on histonical expenence
and expected future changes The nsk-free rate 1s denved from the U § Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant The binomual option-pricing model also
incorporates exercise and forferture assumptions based on an analysis of histoncal data The expected life of the stock option grants 1s denved from the output of
the binomial model and represents the penod of ime that options granted are expected to be outstanding  Determiming these assumptions 15 subjective and
complex, and, therefore, a change 1n the assumptions utilized could impact the calculation of the fair value of our stock options

Item 7A. Quantitative and Quahtative Disclosures About Market Risk

The information called for by this stem 1s provided under the caption “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk™ under “liem 7 -
Management’s Discussion and Anatysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation ™
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Item 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Steckholders of

Automatic Data Processing, Inc

Roseland, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanyng consolidated balance sheets of Automatic Data Processing, [nc and subsidianes (the ‘Company™) as of June 30, 2013
and 2014, and the related statements of consolidated earings, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the penod
ended June 30, 2015 Our audits also included the consolidated financial statement schedule histed in the Index at Item 15{a) 2 These financial statements and
financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management Our responsibility 15 to express an opiuon on the consohdated financial
statements and consohdaied financial statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits 1n accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matenal misstatement An audit includes
exarmmning, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opimion

In cur opimion, such consohdated financial statements present fairly, 1n all matenal respects, the financial position of Automauc Data Processing, Inc and
subsidianies as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the results of therr operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2015, 1n
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 1n the United States of Amenca Also, 1n our opimion, the consohdated financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, m all matenal respects, the information set forth
therein

We have also audited, n accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Untted States), the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of June 30, 201 5, based on the critenia established in Intemnal Control-Integrated Framework (2013} 1ssued by the Commuttee of
Sponsoning Organizations of the Treadway Commussion and our report dated August 7, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company's miternal control
over financial reporting

/s/ Delontte & Touche LLP

Parsippany, New Jersey
August 7, 2015
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Statements of Consolidated Earnings
(In milk:ons, except per share amounts)

Years ended June 30 2015 2014 2013
‘REVENUES
Revenues, other than mnterest on funds held

for clients and PEQ revenues 79283 75954 % 70609
Interest on funds held for clients 377 3734 4204
PEQ revenues (A) 26325 2,2576 1,960 7
TOTAL REVENUES 104938 5 10226 4 94420
EXPENSES
Costs of revenues

Ciperating expenses 56253 52908 48836

Systems development and programming costs 5954 5512 496 6

Depreciation and amortization 2069 199 0 1939

TOTAL COSTS OF REVENUES 6,427 6 6,041 0 55741
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 24969 23703 2,200 4
Goodwill impairment - —_— 427
[nterest expense 65 61 91
TOTAL EXPENSES 8,9310 34174 7.826 3
Other income, net (63 2) (702) (94 4)
EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

BEFORE INCOME TAXES 20707 18792 17101

Provision for income taxes 594 2 6366 5879
NET EARNINGS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 13765 12426 § 11222
EARNINGS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TAXES 1715 4149 4410
Provision for income taxes 955 141 6 1574
NET EARNINGS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 760 2733 § 2836
NET EARNINGS 14525 15159 § 14058
Basic Earmings Per Share from Continuing Operations 2591 259 § 232
Basic Earmings Per Share from Discontinued Operauons 016 0357 059
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 307 317§ 291
Diluted Eamtngs Per Share from Conttnuing Operatiens 289 257§ 230
Diluted Earmings Per Share from Dhscontinued Operations 016 057 058
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 305 314 § 289
Basic wetghted average shares outstanding 4726 4789 482 7
Dituted weighted average shares outstandmg 4758 483 1 487 1

(A) As of fiscal 2015, 2014, and 2013 , Professional Employer Orgamzatron ( PEQ ") revenues are net of direct pass-through costs pnmanly consisting of payroll wages and payroll taxes, of

$26,674 1 million , $23 192 2 ullion and $19 956 2 mallion  respecuvely

See notes to the consolidated financial statements




Statements of Consolidated Comprehensive Income
{In milhions)

Years ended June 30, 2015 2014 2013

Net earmings $ 14525 § 15159 § 14058

Other comprehensive income

Currency translation adjustments (239 6) 599 24)
Unreahized net (losses)/gains on available-for-sale secunties (103 ) 5315 {394 6)
Tax effect 186 (18 2} 1385
Reclassification of net gains on available-for-sale secunities to net earnings 49 (16 5} {28 6)
Tax effect 16 61 101
Pension net (losses)/gains ansing during the penod (87 4) 1028 682
Tax effect 327 (397 (257)
Reclassification of pension habihity adjustment 1o net earnings 179 207 37
Tax effect 65) (58) (120)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax (350 6) 162 8 (214 8)
Comprehensive income $§ 1,019 $ 16787 § 11910

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In millions, except per share amounts)

June 30, 2015 2014
Asyety
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (A) 1,693 § 15840
Shon-term marketable securaes (A) 266 2,0322
Accounts receivable, net 15469 1,498 8
Other current assets 731 6898
Assets of discontinued operations — 24302
Total current assets before funds held for clients 39439 82350
Funds held for clients 24,8653 19,2580
Total current assets 28,809 2 27,4930
Long-term marketable secunties p2 3] 541
Long-term receivables, net 322 1554
Property, plant and equipment, net 6727 667 1
Other assets 1,270 8 13157
Goodwill 1,793 5 1,883 5
Intangible assets, net 5032 4510
Total assets 331105 % 320598
Iabili nd hol 'E
Current hiabilities
Accounts payable 1945 5 1521
Accnied expenses and other current Liabihties 1,159 2 1,186 %
Accrued payroll and payroll refated expenses 6273 6071
Dividends payable 2264 269
Short-term deferred revenues 0286 2371
Obligetions under commercial paper borrowings (A} —_ 2,1730
Income taxes payable 272 197
Lizbilities of discontinued operations — 601 5
Total current kahilities before client funds obligations 24612 5,2042
Chent funds obligations 24,6505 13,563 4
Total current liabilities 271137 24,167 6
Long term debt 92 115
Other habilwties 644 3 6194
Deferred income taxes 1721 2159
Long-term deferred revenues 3627 3782
Total habiliies 283020 25,3806
Commutments and Contingencies (Note 11)
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, $1 00 par value
Authonzed, 0 3 shares 1ssued, none — —
Common stock, $0 10 par value Authonzed, 1,000 0 shares, 1ssued 638 7 shares at June 30, 2015
and 2014, outstanding, 466 4 and 480.2 shares al June 30, 2015 and 2014 respecuvely 639 639
Capttal in excess of par value 6633 5452
Rerained carntngs 13 460.3 136329
Treasury stock - at cost 172 3 and 158 5 shares
at June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, respectively (9,118 4) (7750 0)
A lated other preh ve (loss)income {260 6) 178 2
Total stockholders equity 4,808 5 6,670 2
Total habilities and stockholders’ equity 31105 § 320598

(A) As of June 30, 2014, $2,015 8 mulhon of short-term marketable secunties and $183 8 million of cash and cash equivalents are related to the Company's outstanding commerctal paper

borrowings (see Note 8)




See notes to the consolidated financiat statements
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Statements of Consolidated Stockholders' Equity

(In mullions, except per share amounis)

Common Stock Capital in Excess of Accumulated Other
Shares Amount Par Value Retamed Earnings Treasury Steck Comprehensive Income

Balance at June 30, 2012 6387 % 639 § 4864 § 124383 § (71048) § 2302
Net earmings — — — 14058 — —
Other comprehensive loss — — —_ — — (214 B)
Stock-based compensation expense —_ _ 792 — — —_
Issuances relating to stock compensatton plans — —_ (148 3) — 3847 —
Tax benefits from stock compensation plans — — weé — — —
Treasury stock acquired (10 4 shares) — — — _— (646 5) —_
Dhvidends ($) 70 per share) — — — (823 8) — —
Balance at tune 30 2013 6387 § 639 § 4569 % 130203  § (73666) 3 154
Net earnings — — — 15159 — —
Orher comprehensive tncome — — — - — 1628
Stack-based compensation expense — — 1103 - — -
Issuances relating to stock compensation plans —_ - (78 6) —_ 3145 -_—
Tax benefits from stock compensation plans — — 566 — — -
Treasury stock acquired (9 0 shares) —_ — — — (697 9) —
Drvidends (31 88 per share) - —_ —_ (903 3) — —
Balance at June 30 2014 6387 § 639 § 5452 § 13,6329 % (77500) § 1782
Net eamings — — — 14525 — —
Other comprehensive income _ — — — — (350 6)
Stock-based compensation expense _ — 1128 — — —
Issuances relating to stock compensation plans —_ — (67 8) -_ 2430 —_
Tax benefits from stock compensation plans _ — 73t _ — —
Treasury stock acquired (18 2 shares) —_ —_ — -— (1,6114) —_
Spin-off of CDK Global, Inc — — — (15230) — (882)
Drvidend from CDK Global [ne — —_ — £250 —_ —_
Dividends ($1 95 per share) —_ — — (927 1) — —
Balance at June 30 2015 6387 § 639 § 6633 § 134603 § (9,1184) % (260 6)

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows
{In millions)

Years ended June 30 2015 2014 2012
Cash Flows from Operating Activitles
Net camings 14525 15159 14058
Adjustments to reconcile el earnings to cash flows provided by operanng actvines
Deprecianon and amortzation 2779 266 6 2512
Deferred income taxes {153 (319 337
Stock-based compensahon expense 1432 1nri 829
Excess tax benefit related 1o exercise of stock options and restneted stock. (68 4) {49 9) (16 2)
Net pension expense 176 143 376
Net reatized gan from the sales of marketable secones 49) {16 5) {28 6)
Net amortization of premiums and sceretion of discounts on available-for-sate secunties. 1003 944 793
Goodwill mparment — —_ 427
Gams on sales of bm!dings — — (2.2)
Gam on sale of disconbinued businesses net of lax {78 4) (190 5) 387
Other 67 170 19
Changes 1 operahing assets and habthues net of effects from acquisitions
and divestitures of businesses
Increzse m accounts recervable (s (170 7) (1837
Increase i Giher assets (109 1) (246 ) @713}
Increase f {decrease) th accounts payable 131 96 (106}
; 1n accreed exp and cther habilk 1221 2638 1152
Proceeds from the sale of notes recervable 2267 — —
Operating activities of drscontinued operations 3y 44 4 096
Net cash flows provided by operating achvines. L8056 1821 4 15772
Cash Flows [rom Investing Activities
Purchases of corporate and clieat finds marketable secuntics {5047 6) (3414 9) {4902 6)
Proceeds from the sales and mamnnes of corporate and chient funds marketable securtties 33410 20593 36386
Net { /d ne d cash and cash equivalents held to sansfy client funds obligations (2960 6) 25373 {161 0)
Cazpital expenditures (158 8) (159 8) {£303)
Addittons to intangibles (176N {143 6) {104 9)
Acqursiions of businesses, ot of cash acquired {B1} — {420)
Proceeds from the sale of propaty plant, and equipment and other assets 236 04 100
Dnvidend recerved from CDK Global [nc 8250 — —
Cash retained by CDK Global Inc {180 0) —_ —_
Other — — 97
Proceeds from the sale of b Juded 1n d 4 op 986 44 1614
g actvities of d op (67 (50 5) (48 3)
Net cash flows {used 1} provided by invesneg acuvines {3760 3) 2133 (1,578 4)
Cash Flows {rom Fluancing Activitles
Nt merease / {decrease) i chent funds obligabons 6,0744 (2989 %) 113858
Payments of debt (23 35 (17 5}
Reputchases of common stock (15572 (667.3) {647 3)
Procoods fromn stock purchase plan and exercises of stock options. 1091 1942 2057
Excess tax benefit relsted 1 exercise of siock opoons and resincted stock 634 499 162
Drvidends pud {927 6) (883 1) {805.5)
Net (repayments of) / proceeds from reverse repurchase agreancuts —_ (2459) 2459
Net {repayments of) / p ds from of d paper (Z1730) 21730 —
Other 234 {an —_
Fi of d d op 15 4 150
Net cash flows provided by / {used 1n) finzncing actvines 15167 {2,3582) 1510




Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net change m cash and cash equrvalents

Cash and cash equivalents, begmnmg of penod

Cash and cash equivalents end of panod

Less cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operahions, end of penod
Cash and cash eqr af g op end of penod

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tabular dollars 1 mullions, except per share amounts)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Preparation The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements and footnotes therete of Automatic Data Processing, Inc and its subsidianes
(“ADP" or the “Company”) have been prepared n accordaice with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca ("U S GAAP™)
Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated 1n consohdation

The preparauon of financaal statements 1n conformity with U § GAAP requires management to make estmates and assumptions that affect the assets, liabilities,
revenue, costs, expenses, and accumulated other comprehenssve income that are reported 1n the Consolidated Financial Statements and footnotes thereto Actual
results may differ from those esumates The Consohidated Financial Statements and all relevant footnotes have been adjusted for discontinued operations (see Note
2)

B Description of Business The Company 1s a provider of Human Capital Management (HCM) solutions and business process outsourcing The Company
classifies 1ts operations into the followng two reportable segments Employer Services and Professional Employer Orgamization (“PEO™) Services The primary
components of the “Other” segment are the results of operations of ADP Indemmity (a wholly-owned captive msurance company that provides workers'
compensation and employer's hability deductible reimbursement insurance protection for PEQO Services worksite employees), non-recurning gains and losses,
miscellaneous processing services, such as customer financing transactions, the elimimation of inter~company transactions, and certain charges and expenses that
have not been allocated to the reportable segments, such as stock-based compensation expense and the non tax-deductible goodwill impairment charge 1n the year
ended June 30, 2013 ("fiscal 2013 ") Pnor to October 1, 2014, the Company had a third reportable segment, Dealer Services Refer to Note 2 for further
information

C. Revenue Recogmition Revenues are pnmanly attributable to fees for providing services (e g Employer Services' payroll processing fees), investment income
on payroll funds, payroll tax filing funds and other Employer Services' client-related funds and fees charged to implement chents on the Company's soluttons The
Company enters into agreements for a fixed fee per transaction ( e g number of payees or number of payrolls processed) Fees associated with services are
recogmzed 1n the period services are rendered and eamed under service arrangements with clients where service fees are fixed or determunable and collectability 15
reasonably assured

PEO revenues are reported net of direct pass-through costs, which are costs billed and incurred for PEO Services worksite employees, pnmanly consisting of
payroll wages and payroll taxes Benefits, workers' compensation, and state unemployment tax fees for worksite employees are included in PEO revenues and the
associated costs are included 1n operating expenses

Interest income on cellected but not yet remutted funds held for clients 1s recogmzed 1 revenues as earned, as the collection, holding and remittance of these funds
are critical components of providing these services

Chent implementation fees are charged to set clients up on the Company's platform and are deferred until the chient has gone hive on the Company's solutions and
services have begun These fees are amortized to revenue over the longet of the contractual term or the expected chent life, including estimated renewals of client
contracts Additionally, certain implementation costs are deferred until the chient has gone live on the Company's solution and services have begun and are then
amortized over the longer of the contractual term or the expected client hife, including estimated renewals of chent contracts

The Company assesses the collectablity of revenues based pnmanly on the creditwonthiness of the customer as determined by credut checks and analysss, as well
as the customer's payment history

D Cash and Cash Equivalents. Investment secunities with a matunty of minety days or less at the tume of purchase are considered cash equivalents The fair value
of our cash and cash equivalents approximates carrying value

E Corporate Investments and Funds Held for Chents. All of the Company's marketable secunties are considered to be “available-for-sale™ and, accordingly,
are carned on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value Unrealized gains and losses, net of the related tax effect, are excluded from earnings and are reported
as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income on the Consolidated Balance Sheets unul realized Realized gains and losses from the sale of
available-for-sale secunties are determined on a specific-identificatton basis and are included in other income, net on the Statements of Consolidated Earmings
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If the fair value of an available-for-sale debt secunty 1s below 1ts amortized cost, the Company assesses whether 1t intends to sell the secunty or 1f 1t 15 more likely
than not the Company will be required to sell the security before recovery If erther of those two conditions are met, the Company would recogmize a charge 1n
earmings equal to the entire difference between the security's amortized cost basis and its fair value 1f the Company does not intend to sell a secunty or 1t 15 not
more likely than not that it will be required to sell the secunty before recovery, the unrealized loss 1s separated 1nto an amount representing the credut loss, which s
recogmzed 1n earmings, and the amount related to all other factors, which 1s recognized 1n accumulated other comprehensive income

Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted over the life of the relaied available-for-sale secunty as an adjustment to yield using the effective-interest
method Dividend and tnterest income are recognized when eamed The Company did not have any impairments of available-for-sale secunties in the years ended
June 30, 2015 (“fiscal 2015 ™), June 30, 2014 ("fiscal 2014 "), or fiscal 2013

F. Fair Value Measurements Fair value 15 defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a habihity (an exit price} 1n an orderly
transaction between market pariicipants at the measurement date and 1s based upon the Company’s principal or most advantageous market for a specific asset or
Labihty

US GAAP provides for a three-level lierarchy of inputs to valuation techmques used to measure fair value, defined as follows
Level | Fair value 1s determuined based upon quoted prices for 1dentical assets or habilities that are traded 1n active markets

Level 2 Fair value is determined based upon mputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or habihty, erther directly or
mdirectly, for substantialty the full term of the asset or habihty, including
quoted prices for sumilar assets or habilities n active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or habilihies tn markets that are not active,
inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or hiability, or
inputs that are denived pnincipally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means

Level 3 Fair value 1s determined based upon inputs that are unobservable and reflect the Company’s own assumptions about the assumptions that market
participants would use 1n pricing the asset or liability based upon the best information available 1n the circumstances (¢ g , internally denved assumptions
surrounding the timing and amount of expected cash flows)

Over 99% of the Company's available-for-sale secunties included in Level 2 are valued utilizing inputs obtamned from an independent pneing service To determne
the fair value of the Company’s Level 2 investments, a vanety of mputs are utibized, including benchmark yields, reported trades, non-binding broker/dcaler quotes,
1ssuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark secunties, bids, offers, reference data, new 1ssue data, and monthly payment information The Company reviews the
values generated by the independent pnicing service for reasonableness by comparing the valuations received from the independent pnicing service to valuations
from at least one other observable source The Company has not adjusted the pnces obtained from the independent pncing service The Company has no available-
for-sale secunties included in Level | and Level 3

The Company's assessment of the sigmficance of a particular mnput to the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect the classification of assets and
habihities withun the fair value hierarchy [n certain instances, the mputs used to measure fair value may meet the defimtion of more than one level of the fair value
hierarchy The sigmificant input with the lowest leve! pnonty 1s used to determune the applicable level in the fair value higrarchy

G Long-term Recervables Long-term receivables pnimanly relate to implementation and transition costs charged to chients acquirmg ADP’s products and
services Uneamed mcome from finance recervables represents the excess of gross recervables over the amount financed Unearned income 1s amortized using the
effective-interest method to maintain a constant rate of return over the term of each contract

Notes receivable aged over 30 days past due are considered delinquent and notes receivable aged over 60 days past due with known collection 1ssues are placed on
non-accrual status Interest revenue 1s not recogmized on notes recervable while on non-accrual status  Cash payments received on non-accrual receivables are
applied towards the pnncipal When notes receivable on non-accrual status are again less than 60 days past due, recogmtion of interest revenue for notes

recervable 1s resumed

The atlowance for deubtful accounts on long-term receivables 1s the Company's best esumate of the amount of probable credit losses related o the Company's
existing note recervables




H Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost and depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets using the straight-
line method Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements The estimated
useful hves of assets are pnmanly as follows

Data processing equipment 2to 5 years
Buwildings 20 to 40 years
[Furmture and fixtures 4 to 7 years

The Company has obligations under various facilities, equipment leases, and software license agreements The Company assesses whether these arrangements meet
the cntena for capital leases by determiming whether the agreement transfers ownership of the asset, whether the lease includes a bargain purchase option, whether
the lease term 15 for greater than 75% of the asset's useful hfe, or whether the mimmum lease payments exceed 90% of the leased equipment's fair market value

All of the Company's leases are classified as operating leases Total expense under these operating lease agreements was approximately $237 ¢ mullion , $227 4
milhon , and $209 6 mlhon n fiscal 2015, 2014 , and 2013

I Goodwll Goodwill is not amortized, but 1s instead tested for impairment annually and whenever events or changes 1n circumstances indicate the carrying value
may not be recoverable The Company performs this impairment test by first companing the fair value of each reporting umits to its carrymg amount If the carrying
value for a reporting unit exceeds 1ts fair value, the Company would then compare the imphed fair value of goodwi!l to the carrying amount in order to determine
the amount of the impairment, 1f any The Company determines the estimated fair value of its reporting umts using an equal weighted blended approach, which
combines the income approach, which 1s the present value of expected cash flows, discounted at a nsk-adjusted weighted-average cost of capital, and the market
approach, which 1s based on using market multiples of compames 1n similar hnes of business Sigmficant assumptions used in determining the fair value of our
reporting units include projected revenue growth rates, profitability projections, working capital assumptions, the weighted average cost of capital, the
determmation of appropniate market companson compames, and termunal growth rates The Company had $1,793 5 milhon of goodwill as of June 30, 2015 Based
on the fair value analys:s completed 1n the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015 the Company concluded that goodwill fair value exceeded the carrying value for all
reporting uniuts

J Impairment of Long-Lived Assets Long-hived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 1ndicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable Recoverability of assets to be held and used 15 measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to
estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an
impairment charge 1s recogruzed for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset

K Foreign Currency The net assets of the Company's foreign subsidianes are translated mnto U $ dollars based on exchange rates in effect for each penod, and
revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange rates in the periods Gains or losses from balance sheet translation are included 1n accumulated other
comprehensive income on the Consohdated Balance Sheets Currency transaction gains or losses, which are included in the results of operations, are iImmatenal for
all penods presented

L Foreign Currency Risk Management Programs and Derivative Financial Instruments The Company transacts business in vanous foreign junsdictions and
15 therefore exposed to market nisk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates that could impact its consolidated results of operations, financial position, or
cash flows The Company manages 1ts exposure to these market nsks through 1ts regular operating and financing activities and, when deemed appropnate, through
the use of denvauve financial instruments The Company does not use derivauve financial instruments for trading purposes
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M Earmugs per Share (“EPS™). The calculahions of basic and diluted EPS are as follows

Effect of
Employee
Effect of Restricted
Employee Stock Stock

Years ended June 30, Bastc Opuon Shares Shares Diluted
2015
Net earnings from coninuing operations $ 13765 b 1,376 5
Weighted average shares (in millions) 4726 16 16 4758
EPS from continuing operations $ 291 3 289
2014
Net eamings from continuing operations $ 1,242 6 3 1,242 6
Werghted average shares (1n nuillions) 478 9 27 15 4831
EPS from continuing operations $ 259 $ 257
2013
Net earmings from contimung operations $ 1,122 2 h) 1,1222
Weighted average shares (in millions) 4827 33 11 487 1
EPS from continuing operations $ 232 $ 230

Options to purchase 0 4 milhon, | 5 million , and ! 2 mthon shares of common stock for fiscal 2015 , fiscal 2014 , and fiscal 2013 , respectively, were excluded
from the calculation of diluted earmings per share because their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive

N. Stock-Based Compensation The Company recogmzes stock-based compensation expense mn net eamings based on the fair value of the award on the date of
the grant, and 1n: the case of international urnits settled n cash, adjusts this fair value based on changes 1n the Company's stock price during the vesting period The
Company determines the fair value of stock options 1ssued using a binomual option-pricing model The binom:al option-pricing medel considers a range of
assumptions related to volatility, dividend yield, nsk-free interest rate, and employee exercise behavior Expected volatihities utilized m the binomial option-pricing
medel are based on a combination of imphied market volatihties, lustonical volatility of the Company's stock price, and other factors Simlarly, the dividend yreld
15 based on historical experience and expected future changes The nsk-frec rate 15 denved from the U S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant The
binomial option-pncing model also incorporates exercise and forferture assumptions based on an analysis of historical data The expected Iife of a stock option
grant 1s denived from the output of the binomial model and represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding  Restricted stock umits
and restricted stock awards are valued based on the closing price of the Company's common stock on the date of the grant and, in the case of performance based
restncted stock units and restnicted stock, are adjusted for changes to probabilities of achieving performance targets [nternational restncted stock units are settled
in cash and are marked-to-market based on changes in the Company’s stock price Refer to Note 9 for additional information on the Company's stock-based
compensation programs

0. Internal Use Software. Expenditures for major software purchases and software developed or obtained for internal use are capitahized and amortized over a
three to five -year penod on a straight-line basis The Company's policy provides for the capitalization of external direct costs of matertals and services associated
with developing or obtaining internal use computer software In addition, the Company also capitalizes certain payroll and payroll-related costs for employees who
are directly associated with intenal use computer sofiware projects The amount of capitahzable payroll costs with respect to these employees 1s Iimuted to the time
directly spent on such projects Costs associated with preliminary project stage activities, training, mamienance, and all other post-implementation siage activities
are expensed as mcurred The Company also expenses internal costs related to minor upgrades and enhancements, as 1t 1s impractical to separate these costs from
normal maintenance activibies

P Acqursitions, Assets acquired and habihties assumed 1n business combinattons are recorded on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as of the respective
acquisition dates based upon their estimated fair values at such dates The results of operations of businesses acquired by the Company are included 1n the
Statements of Consolidated Eamings since their respective dates of acquisition The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair values of the underlying
assets acquired and habilities assumed 1s allocated to goodwill In certain circumstances, the allocations of the excess purchase price
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are based upon preliminary estimates and assumptions and subject to revision when the Company receives final information, including apprasals and other
analysis Accordingly, the measurement penod for such purchase price allocations will end when the information, or the facts and circumstances, becomes
available, but will not exceed twelve months The Company acquired one business during fiscal 2015 for approximately $10 1 million , net of cash acquired The
Cormpany did not acquire any businesses dunng fiscal 2014 and acquired two businesses dunng fiscat 2013 for approximately $40 4 nullion , net of cash acquired
Purchase accounting has been finalized for all acquisiions completed to date These acquisitions were not materal, erther individually or 1n the aggregate, to the
Company's operations, financial posiuon, or cash flows

Q Income Taxes The objectives of accounting for income taxes are to recogmize the amount of taxes payable or refindable for the current year and deferred tax
liabihties and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized 1n an entity's financial statements or tax returns The Company 15 subject
to the continuous examiation of our mcome tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS™) and other tax authorities

There 1s a financial statement recogmition threshold and measurement attnbute for tax positions taken or expected to be taken 1n a tax return Specifically, the
likelihood of an entity's tax benefits being sustamed must be “more Itkely than not,” assuming that these positions will be examined by taxing authonties with full
knowledge of all relevant information prior to recording the related tax benefit in the financial statements 1f a tax position drops below the “more likely than not”
standard, the benefit can no longer be recogmzed Assumptions, judgment, and the use of estimates are required 1n determuming 1f the “more likely than not”
standard has been met when developing the provision for mcome taxes As of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , the Company's habilities for unrecognized tax benefits,
which include 1nterest and penalties, were 527 1 million and $56 5 million , respectively

If certain pending tax matters settle within the next twelve months, the total amount of unrecogmzed tax benefits may increase or decrease for all open tax years
and junsdictions Based on current estimates, favorable settlements related to vanous junisdictions and tax pertods could increase earmings by up to $5 mlhon
Audtt outcomes and the timing of audit setilements are subject to significant uncertainty We continually assess the hkelihood and amount of potential adjustments
and adjust the mcome tax provision, the current tax hiability, and deferred taxes mn the penod m which the facts that give nise to a revision become known

R Workers' Compensation Costs The Company employs a third-party actuary to assist in determining the estimated claim Liabihity related to workers'
compensation and employer's hability coverage for PEO Services worksite employees In estimating ultimate loss rates, we utilize histonical loss expenence,
exposure data, and actuarial judgment, together with a range of inputs which are pnimanly based upon the worksite employee's job responsibilities, their location,
the histonca! frequency and severity of workers' compensation claims, and an estimate of future cost trends For each reporting penod, changes mn the actuanal
assumptions resulting from changes n actual claims expenence and other trends are incorporated into our workers' compensation claims cost estimates The
Company has secured specific per occurrence nsurance that caps the exposure for each clamn at $1 mullion per oceurrence, and has also secured aggregate stop loss
msurance that caps aggregate losses at a certain level 1n certain policy years Additionally, for fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , the Company entered nto remsurance
arrangements 1o cover substantially all losses 1ncurred by the Company for the fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 policy years up to the $1 muilhon per occurrence related
to workers' compensation and employer's habihty deductible retmbursement insurance protection for PEQ services worksite employees

S. Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements. In April 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB"} 1ssued Accounting Standards Update
("ASU") 2015-05, "Customer's Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud Computing Arrangement " The update provides guidance on whether a cloud computing
arrangement includes a sofiware icense If a cloud computing arrangement 1ncludes a software license, then the customer should account for the software hcense
element of the arrangement consistent with the acquisition of other software heenses If a cloud computing arrangement does not include a software license, the
customer should account for the arrangement as a service contract ASU No 2015-05 1s effective for fiscal years, and intenm pentods within those fiscal years,
beginming after December 15,2015 Early adoption 1s pertitted The Company has not yet determimed the impact of ASU 2015-05 on 1its consolidated results of
operations, financial condition, or cash flows

In Apnl 2015, the FASB 1ssued ASU 2015-04, "Compensation - Retirement Benefits (Topic 715) Practical Expedient for the Measurement Date of an Employer's
Defined Benefit Obligation and Plan Assets " The update allows an entity to remeasure their pension and other post-retirement benefit plan assets and habilities at
the month-end closest to a significant event such as a plan amendment, curtailment, or settlement ASU 2015-04 1s effective for fiscal years, and intenm reporting
penods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2015 Early adoption 1s permutted  The impact of ASU 2015-04 1s dependent upon the nature of future
significant events impacting the Company's penston plans, if any
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In April 2015, the FASB 1ssued ASU 2015-03, *Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs " The update requires debt 1ssuance costs related to a
recognized debt habihity be presented 1n the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrymg amount of the related debt hability instead of being presented as
an asset The update requires retrospective application ASU 2015-03 1s effecuve for fiscal years, and interim reporting pertods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2015 Early adoption 1s perrmtted The impact of ASU 2015-03 1s dependent upon the nature of future debt 1ssuances, if any

In May 2014, the FASB 1ssued ASU 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” which outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounung for revenue ansing from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recogmtion gudance, including industry-spectfic gundance
ASU 2014-09 requires an entity to recognize revenue depicting the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the enuty expects to be enttled 1n exchange for those goods or services ASU 2014-09 will also result in enhanced revenue related disclosures ASU 2014-09 15
effective for fiscal years, and interim reporting periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2017 Early adoption 1s permitied The Company has not
yet determined the impact of ASU 2014-09 on 1ts consohdated results of operations, financial condition, or cash flows

In April 2014, the FASB 1ssued ASU 2014-08, "Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity " ASU 2014-08
requires that a disposal representing a strategic shuft that has (or will have) a majer effect on an entity’s financial results or a busmess activity classified as held for
sale should be reported as discontinued operations ASU 2014-08 also expands the disclosure requirements for discontinued operations and adds new disclosures
for mdividually sigmficant dispositions that do not qualify as discontinued operations ASU 2014-08 15 effective prospectively for fiscal years, and interim
reporting periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2014 The impact of ASU 2014-08 15 dependent upon the nature of disposttions, if any, after
adoption

In July 2014, the Company adopted ASU 2013-11, “Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Sumlar Tax Loss,
or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists * ASU 2013-11 requires netting of unrecogrized tax benefits agamst a deferred tax asset for a loss or other carryforward that
would apply 1n setilement of the uncertain tax position The adoption of ASU 2013-11 did not have a matenal impact on the Company's consohidated results of
operations, financial condition, or cash flows

NOTE 2 DIVESTITURES

On June 26, 2015 , the Company completed the sale of 1ts Procure-to-Pay business ("P2P"} for a pre-tax gamn of $102 3 milhon , less costs to sell, and recorded
such gain within earnings from discontinued operations on the Statements of Consohdated Earmings In connection with the disposal of P2P, the Company has
classified the results of operattons of thus business as discontinued operations for all penods presented P2P was previously reported in the Employer Services
segment

On September 30, 2014 , the Company completed the tax free spin-off of its former Dealer Services business, which was a separate reportable segment, mto an
mdependent publicly traded company called CDK Global, Inc ("CDK"} As a result of the spin-off, ADP stockholders of record on September 24, 2014 (the
"record date") recerved one share of CDK common stock on September 30, 2014, par value $0 0! per share, for every three shares of ADP common stock held by
them on the record date and cash for any fractional shares of CDK common stock ADP distributed approximately 160 6 million shares of CDK common stock 1n
the distnbutron The spin-off was made without the payment of any consideration or the exchange of any shares by ADP stockholders The spin-off, transitional,
and on-going relationships between ADP and CDK are govemned by the Separation and Distribution Agreement entered into between ADP and CDK and certain
other ancillary agreements

Incremental costs associated with the spin-off of CDK and divestiture of P2P of $50 1 milhon for fiscal 2015 are included 1n discontinued operations on the
Statements of Consolidated Earmings

On February 28, 2014 , the Company completed the sale of its Occupational Health and Safety services busimess ("OHS") for a pre-tax gam of $15 6 million , less
costs to sell, and recorded such gain within earmngs from discontinued operations on the Statements of Consolidated Earmungs In connection with the disposal of
OHS, the Company classified the results of this business as discontinued operations for all periods presented OHS was previously reported n the Employer
Services segment

On December 17, 2012 , the Company completed the sale of its Taxware Enterprise Service business ("Taxware") for a pre-tax gain of $58 8 milhon , less costs o
sell, and recorded such gain within eamings from discontinued operations on the Statements of Consolidated Earmings [n connection with the disposal of Taxware,
the Company has classified the results of this business as discontimued operations for all penods presented Taxware was previously reported 1n the Employer
Services segment
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Results for discontinued operations were as follows

Years ended June 30, 2015 2014 2013
Revenues b 5388 § 19931 $ 18919
Eamings from discontinued operations before income taxes 692 3993 3822
Provision for mcome taxes 716 136 5 1353
Net (loss) / earmings from discontinued operations before gain on disposal of
discontinued operations 24) 2628 2469
Gam on disposal of discontinued operations, less costs to sell 1023 156 588
Provision for income taxes 239 51 221
Net gain on disposal of discontinued operations 784 105 87
§ 760 § 2733 § 2836

Net earmngs from discontinued operations

The following are the major classes of assets and habiliuies related to the discontinued operations as of June 30, 2014 There were no assets or habihues of

discontinued operations as of June 30, 2015

Assets
Cash

Accounts receivable, net

Property, plant and equipment, net

Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Other assets

Total assets

Liabihties
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current Liabititses
Accrued payroll and payrell related expenses

Income taxes payable
Deferred revenues
Deferred income taxes
Other habilities

Total habihties

4%

June 30, 2014

$

3996
30t6
1103
1,2303
1413
2471

24302

$

176
1289
1000
07
2335
78

480
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NOTE 3. OTHER INCOME, NET

Other income, net consists of the following

Years ended June 30, 2015 2014 2013
Interest income on corporate funds $ 569y § 537 § {629)
Realized gains on avalable-for-sale secunties 68 (204) (321
Realized losses on available-for-sale secunities 19 39 35
Gains on sales of buildings —_ — {22)
Gain on sale of notes receivable (14) — —
Other, net — — ()}
Other income, net $ {632) % (702) § (94 4)

Dunng fiscal 2015, the Company sold notes recervable related to Dealer Services financing arangements for 2 gamn of $1 4 mullion Refer to Note 5 for further
information

Dunng fiscal 2013, the Company completed the sale of two buildings that were previously classified as assets held for sale on the Consohdated Balance Sheets
and, as a result, recorded gains of $2 2 million in other income, net, on the Statements of Consolidated Eamings

NOTE 4. CORPORATE INVESTMENTS AND FUNDS HELD FOR CLIENTS

Corporate investments and funds held for chents at June 30, 2015 and 2014 were as follows

June 30, 2015

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value (A)

Type of 1ssue
Money market securities and other cash equivalents $ 56863 § — 5 — 5 5,686 3
Available-for-sale securities
Corporate bonds 94975 1157 (29 6) 9,583 6
U § Treasury and direct obl:gations of

U S government agencies 5,764 3 646 9 8) 58191
Asset-backed secunties 24424 11 61) 24474
Canadian government obligations and

Canadian government agency obligations 9232 154 02) 9384
Canadian provincial bonds 7239 279 (08) 7510
Municipal bonds 586 6 143 {14) 5995
Other secunbies 7194 16 1 ()] 734 8
Total available-for-sale secuntes 20,6573 265 1 (48 6) 20,8738
Total corporate investments and funds held for chients 3 26,3436 § 2651 § (486) §% 26,560 1

{A) Included within available-for-sale secunities are corporate investments with fair values of $55 5 mullion and funds held for chents with fair values of $20,818 3
mullion All available-for-sale securities were included 1in Level 2
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June 30, 2014

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value (B)

Type of 1ssue
Money market secunues and other cash equivalents $ 27718 8 — 3 —  § 2718
Available-for-sale secunties
Corporate bonds 87201 1711 {150) 88762
US Treasury and direct obhgations of

U S government agencics 6,051 4 1073 (mn 6,147 0
Asset-backed secunties 18226 6i 69) 1,821 8
Canadian government obligauons and

Canadian government agency obligations 1,0314 76 (08) 1,038 2
Canadian provinctal bonds 74717 253 25 7105
Muneipal bonds 54313 194 (05) 5622
Other secunties 9156 257 on 9406
Total available-for-sale secunties 19,8321 3625 (381 20,156 5
Total corporate investments and funds held for clients ) 226039 $ 3625 % (381) % 22,9283

(B) Included within available-for-sale secunies are corporate investments with fair values of $2,086 3 million and funds held for chients with fair values of
$18,070 2 millron All available-for-sale secunties were included m Level 2

For a description of the fair valug hierarchy and the Company’s fair value methodologies, including the use of an independent third-party pricing service, see Note
1 "Summary of Significant Accounting Polictes " The Company did not transfer any assets between Levels dunng fiscal 2015 or 2014 In addition, the Company
did not adjust the prices obtamned from the independent pncing service

The unreahzed losses and fair values of available-for-sale secunties that have been in an unrealized loss position for a penod of less than and greater than 12
months as of June 30, 2015 , are as follows

June 30, 2015

Secunties 1n unreahzed loss position

less than Secunties in unrealized loss position
12 months greater than 12 months Total
Gross
Unreahzed Fair market Unreahzed Fair market unrealized Fair
losses value losses value losses market value
Corporate bonds 5 (273) § 24035 % (23) § 2281 % (296) $ 26316
US Treasury and direct obligations of
U S government agencies (72) 865 1 (2 6) 1740 98 1,239 1
Asset-backed secunties 32) 606 8 29 443 6 [(C2)] 1,050 4
Canadian government obligations and
Canadian government agency obligations 02) 858 —_ — 02 858
Canadian provincial bonds (0 8) 1015 —_ 100 (08) 1115
Municipal bonds (i2) 143 6 (02) 60 (14 1496
Other secunties (0 4) 366 (03) 137 07N 503
b (403) $ 42429 % 83 S8 10754 8 (486) § 53183
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The unrealized losses and fair values of available-for-sale secunties that have been 1n an unrealized loss position for a perod of less than and greater than 12
months as of June 30, 2014 are as follows

June 30, 2014
Secunties n unrealized loss
position less than Secunties 1n unrealized loss
12 months position greater than 12 months Total
Gross
Unreahzed Fair market Unrealized Fair market unreahzed Fair
losses value losses value losses market value
Corporate bonds $ 09 % 3138 % (141) $ 10260 § (150 % 13398
U S Treasury and direct obhgations of U S
govermnment agencies (03) 846 (11 4) 944 8 (117} 1,029 4
Asset-backed secunites on 3254 (62) 5555 %9 8809
Canadian government obligations and
Canadian govemnment agency obligations (08) 1272 — — (0 8) 1272
Canadan provincial bonds {09) 752 (16} 1186 (25) 193 8
Municipal bonds 1 420 04 226 (05) 646
Other secunties —_ 139 (07 457 0N 596
s 3N 8§ 9821 § (344) 8§ 27132 § (381) § 36953

At June 30, 2015 , Corporate bonds imclude investment-grade debt securntties, which include a wide vanety of 1ssuers, industries, and sectors, pnmanly carry credit
ratings of A and above, and have matunties ranging from July 2015 to June 2023

At June 30,2015, U'S Treasury and direct obligations of U S government agencies primarily iclude debt directly 1ssued by Federal Home Loan Barks and
Federal Farm Credit Banks with fair values of $4,416 8 milhon and $1,009 2 million , respectively U S Treasury and direct obligations of U S government
agencies represent senior, unsecured, non-callable debt that pnimanly camry ratings of Aaa by Moody's and AA+ by Standard & Poor's with matunues ranging from
August 2015 through January 2025

At June 30, 20135 , asset-backed secunties include AAA rated semior tranches of securities with predominately pnime collateral of fixed-rate credit card, auto loan,
and rate reduction receivables with fair values of $1,696 0 nullion , $375 6 nullion , and $239 9 million , respectively These secuntics are collateralized by the
cash flows of the underlying pools of receivables  The primary nisk asseciated with these secunities 1s the collection nsk of the underlying recevables  All
collatera! on such asset-backed securities has performed as expected through June 30, 2015

At June 30, 2015 , other secuntics and their fair value pnmaniy represent AAA and AA rated sovereign bonds of $317 6 million , AAA and AA rated
supranational bonds of $290 2 million , and AA rated mortgage-backed secunties of $94 8 million that are guaranteed primarily by Federal National Mortgage
Association ("Fanme Mae"} The Company's mortgage-backed secunities represent an undivided beneficial ownership interest 1n a group or pool of one or more
residential mortgages These secunties are collateralized by the cash flows of 15 -year and 30 -year restdential mortgages and are guaranteed by Fanue Mae as to
the trmely payment of principal and interest

Classification of corporate mvestments on the Conscolidated Balance Sheets 1s as follows

June 30, 2015 2014
Corporate investments
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,633 § 1,584 0
Short-term marketable secunties 266 20322
Long-term marketable secunties 2809 541
Total corporate investments $ 16948 § 36703

Funds held for chents represent assets that, based upon the Company's intent, are restnicted for use solely for the purposes of sausfying the obligations to rermit
funds relating to the Company’s payrell and payrotl tax filing services, whuch are classified as chient funds obligations on our Consolidated Balance Sheets
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Funds held for clients have been invested in the following categones

June 30, 2015 2014
Funds held for chients

Restnicted cash and cash equivalents held to sausfy client funds obligations $ 40470 § 1,187 8
Restricted shont-term marketable securities held to satisfy client funds obligations 4,497 7 1,3125
Restncted long-term marketable securities held to satisfy client funds obhgations 16,320 6 16,7577
Total funds held for chents $ 248653 §$ 19,258 0

Client funds obhgations represent the Company’s contractual obligations to remit funds to satisfy chents' payroll and tax payment obhgations and are recorded on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets at the ime that the Company impounds funds from clients  The client funds obligations represent habihties that wall be repand
withun one year of the balance sheet date  The Cotnpany has reported client funds obligations as a current lLiability on the Consolidated Balance Sheets totaling
$24,650 5 mullion and $18,963 4 mullion as of June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, respectively The Company has classified funds held for chents as a current asset
since these funds are held solely for the purposes of sauisfying the client funds obligations The Company has reported the cash flows related to the purchases of
corporale and chent funds marketable secunties and related to the proceeds from the sales and matunties of corporate and chient funds marketable secunties on a
gross basis 1n the investing section of the Statements of Consohdated Cash Flows The Company has reported the cash inflows and outflows related to chent funds
mvestments with ongmal matunties of 90 days or less on a net basis within net increase 1n restncted cash and cash equivalents and other restncted assets held to
satisfy client funds obhigations in the investing section of the Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows The Company has reported the cash flows related to the
cash received from and paid on behalf of chients on a net basis within net increase in chent funds obligations n the financing section of the Statements of
Consolidated Cash Flows

Approximately 80% of the available-for-sale secunties held a AAA or AA rating at June 30, 2015 | as rated by Moody's, Standard & Poor's and, for Canadian
securities, Domtion Bond Rating Service  All available-for-sale securities were rated as investment grade at June 30, 2015

Expected matunties of available-for-sale secunities at June 30, 2015 are as follows

Due 1n one year or less $ 4,524 3
Due afier one year to two years 31217
Duge after two years to three years 28727
Due after three years to four years 26135
Due after four years 7,741 6
Total available-for-sale securities $ 20,873 8
NOTE 5. RECEIVABLES

Accounts receivable, net, includes the Company's trade receivables, which are recorded based upon the amount the Company expects to receive from its chients, net
of an allowance for doubtful accounts The Company's recervables also include notes receivable for the implementation and transition costs for clients acquinng
ADP’s products and services Notes receivable are recorded based upon the amount the Company expects to receive frem its chients, net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts and uneamed income The allowance for doubtful accounts 15 the Company's best estiunate of probable credit losses related to trade receivables
and notes receivable based upon the aging of the receivables, histoncal collection data, and internal assessments of credit quality, as well as in the economy as a
whole The Company charges off uncellectable amounts against the reserve in the period tn which 1t determunes they are uncollectable Uneamed income on notes
recetvable 1s amortized using the effective interest method
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The Company’s recervables, whose carrying value approximates fair value,

Trade receivables
Notes receivable
Less

Allowance for doubtful accounts - trade receivables
Allowance for doubtful accounts - notes receivable

Uneamed income - notes receivable

are as follows

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Current Long-term Current Long-term
3 15646 § — 8 14527 8§ —
18 8 340 94 8 1699
(3s51) — {38 0) —
(0 4) (0 6) 47 (83)
(10) (12) (6 0} (62)
3 1,5469 § 322 % 14988 § 1554

During fiscal 2015 , the Company sold notes receivable related to Dealer Services financing arrangements for $226 7 milhon  Although the sate of the notes
receivable transfers the majonty of the nsk to the purchaser, the Company does retan a minimal level of credit tisk on the sold recervables The cash received in
exchange for the notes recervable sold was recorded within the operating activities on the Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows and the gain on sale realized was
recorded within Qther income, net on the Statements of Consolidated Eamnings (see Note 3)

The Company determines the allowance for doubtful accounts related to notes recervable based upon a specific reserve for known collection 1ssues, as well as a
non-specific reserve based upon aguig, both of which are based upon the history of such losses and current economic conditions As of fiscal 2015 and 2014 | there
were no notes recervable that were specifically reserved, the entire notes receivable reserve balance was compnsed of non-specific reserves

Long-term recervables at June 30, 2015 mature as follows

20017 $ 153
2018 105
2019 57
2020 23
2021 02
Total $ 340

The rollforward of the allowance for doubtful accounts related to notes recervable 1s as follows

Balance at June 30, 2013
Net provision
Chargeoffs
Recoveries and other

Balance at June 30, 2014
Net provision
Chargeoffs
Recovenes and other (A)

Balance at June 30, 2015

Current Long-term
) 53 % 90
01 1
0n (08)
02 02
$ 47 § 33
04 07
{06) (0 8)
“n (76)
b 04 § 06

(A) As a result of the sale of the notes recervable related to Dealer Services financing arrangements, the Company released $10 7 milbion of non-specific reserves
that were accrued on the sold notes recervable, which was recorded 1 selling, general, and admimstrative expenses on the Statements of Consohdated Earmings

The allowance for doubtful accounts as a percentage of notes recesvable was approximately 2% as of June 30, 2015 and 5% as of June 30, 2014

On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates the credit quahty of its financing receivables, unhizing aging of receivables, collection experience, and charge-
offs As events related to a specific client dictate, the credit quality of a chient 1s reevaluated Approximately 99% and 100% of notes receivable were current at

June 30, 2015 and 2014 |, respectively
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NOTE 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment at cost and accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2015 and 2014 are as follows

June 30, 2015 2014
Property, plant, and equipment
Land and buildings 3 7306 % 7059
Data processing equipment 5885 5657
Furmiture, leaseholds, and other 4573 4471
1,776 4 1,718 7
Less accumulated depreciation (1,103 7) {1,051 6)
Property, plant, and equipment, net $ 6727 % 6671
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment was $127 2 million , $124 1 mullion , and $113 8 mullion for fiscal 2015 ,2014 , and 2013 | respectively
NOTE 7 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET
Changes in goodwil] for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 are as follows
Employer PEO
Services Services Total
Balance at June 30, 2013 (A) $ 18616 § 48 3 1,866 4
Additions and other adjustments, net 03 —_ 03
Currency translaton adjustments 16 8 —_ 168
Balance at June 30, 2014 (A) £ 1.8787 § 48 $ 1,883 5
Additions and other adjustments, net 68 — 68
Currency translanon adjustments (%96 8) — (96 8)
Balance at June 30, 2015 (A) $ 1,7887 § 48 § 1,793 5

{A) The goodwill balance at June 30, 2015, 2014 | and 2013 1s net of accumulated impairment losses of $42 7 million related to the Employer Services segment

In fiscal 2015 , the Company performed the required annual impairment tests of goodwill and determined that there were no imparmments

Components of intangtble assets, net, are as follows

June 30, 2015 2014
Intangible assets
Software and software licenses $ 16487 § 1,512 7
Customer contracts and hsts 6254 645 0
Other intangibles 2090 208 3
24831 2,366 0
Less accumulated amortization
Software and sofiware licenses {1,308 7) (12264)
Customer contracts and hists (478 6) {465 5)
Other intangibles (192 6) (183 1)
(1,979 9) (1.8750)
Intangible assets, net b 5032 % 4910
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Other intangibles consist pnmanly of purchased nghts, covenants, patents, and trademarks (acquired directly or through acquisitions)  All of the intangible assets
have finite hives and, as such, are subject to amortization The weighted average remamng useful life of the intangible assets 1s 5 years ( 4 years for sofiware and
software licenses, 10 years for customer contracts and hists, and 3 years for other intangibles) Amortizauon of intangible assets was $150 7 milhon , $142 5
million , and $137 4 mllion for fiscal 2015 , 2014 , and 2013 , respectively

Estimated future amortization expenses of the Company's existing intangible assets are as follows

Amount
Twelve months ending June 30, 2016 3 1429
Twelve months ending June 30, 2017 $ 1226
Twelve months ending June 30, 2018 $ 751
Twelve months ending June 30, 2019 $ 453
Twelve months ending June 30, 2020 3 360

NOTE 8 SHORT TERM FINANCING

The Company has a $2 75 billion , 364 -day credit agreement with a group of lenders that matures in June 2016 In addition, the Company has a five -year $3 25
biullion credit facility matuning 1n June 2019 that contams an accordion feature under which the aggregate commutment can be increased by $500 0 million , subject
to the availability of additional commitments The Company also has a $2 25 billion five -year credut facihity that matures in June 2020 that also contains an
accordion feature under which the aggregate commitment can be increased by $500 ¢ million , subject to the availability of additional commitments The interest
rate applicable to commutted borrowings 15 tied to LIBOR, the effective federal funds rate, or the pnnte rate depending on the notificaton provided by the
Company to the syndicated financial institutions prior to borrowing The Company 15 also required to pay facility fees on the credit agreements The pnmary uses
of the credit facilities are to provide hquidity to the commercial paper program and funding for general corporate purposes, 1f necessary  The Company had no
borrowings through June 30, 2015 under the credit agreements

Our U S short-term funding requirements related to client funds are sometimes obtained through a short-term commercial paper program, which provides for the
1ssuance of commercial paper, rather than hquidating previously-coliected chient funds that have already been invested in available-for-sale secunties Dunng fiscal
2015 , this commercial paper program provided for the 1ssuance of up 10 $7 5 billion 1n aggregate matunty value, 1n July 2015 , we increased our U S short-term
commetrcial paper program to provide for the 1ssuance of up to $8 25 billion in aggregate manunty value The Company’s commercial paper program 1s rated A-1+
by Standard & Poor’s and Pnime-i by Moody's These ratings denote the highest quality commercial paper securities Matunties of commercial paper can range
from overmght to up to 364 days At June 30, 2015 , the Company had no commercial paper outstanding At June 30, 2014 , the Company had $2 2 bilhon of
commercial paper outstanding, which was repard on July 1,2014 In fiscal 2015 and 2014 , the Company's average daily borrowings were $2 3 billion at a
werghted average inierest rate of 0 1% The weighted average matunty of the Company’s commercial paper i fiscal 2015 and 2014 was approximately two days

The Company’s U § and Canadian shont-term funding requirements related to chient funds obligauons are sometimes obtained on a secured basis through the use
of reverse repurchase agreements, which are collateralized principally by government and government agency securities, rather than liquidating previously-
collected chent funds that have already been invested in avalable-for-sale secunties These agreements generally have terms ranging from overmight to up to five
business days At June 30, 2015 and 2014 , there were no outstanding obhigations related to the reverse repurchase agreements In fiscal 2015 and 2014 , the
Company had average outsianding balances under reverse repurchase agreements of $421 2 million and $361 7 million, respectively, at weighted average interest
rates of 0 4% and 0 5% , respectively 1n additton, the Company has $3 25 illion available on a committed basis under the U S reverse repurchase agreements

NOTE 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
A Stock-based Compensation Plans. Stock-based compensation consists of the following
*  Stock Options Stock options are granted to employees at exercise prices equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the dates
of grant Stock options are 1ssued under a graded vesting schedule and have a term of 10 years  Options granted pnor to July 1, 2008 generally vest
ratabty over five years and opttons granted after July 1, 2008 generally vest ratably over four years Compensation expense 15 measured based on the

fair value
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of the stock option on the grant date and recogmzed over the requisite service period for cach scparately vesting portion of the stock option award
Stock options are forferted 1f the employee ceases to be employed by the Company prior to vesting

+  Restricted Stock

Time-Based Restricted Stock and Time-Based Restricied Stock Umits Time-based restricted stock and time-based restricted stock umits
granted prior to fiscal 2013 are subject to vesting periods of up to five years and awards granted n fiscal 2013 and later are subject to a vesting
period of two years Awards are forfeited 1f the employee ceases to be employed by the Company prior to vesting

Time-based restricted stock cannot be transferred dunng the vesting period Compensation expense telating to the issuance of tume-based
restricted stock 1s measured based on the fair value of the award on the grant date and recognized on a straght-lime basis over the vesting period
Dividends are paid on shares awarded under the ime-based restricted stock program

Time-based restricted stock umits are setiled 1n cash and cannot be transfemred dunng the vesung period Compensation expense relatng to the
1ssuance of time-based restricted stock umits 1s recorded over the vesting pentod and 15 imitally based on the fair value of the award on the grant
date, and 1s subsequently remeasured at each reporting date dunng the vesting penod No dividend equivalents are paid on units awarded under
the ime-based restricted stock umit program

Performance-Based Restricted Stock and Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unts, Performance-based restncted stock and performance-
based restricted stock umits generally vest over a one to three year performance period and a subsequent service period of up to 26 months

Under these programs, the Company communicates "target awards” at the beginning of the performance period with possible payouts at the end
of the performance penod ranging from 0% to 150% of the "target awards " Awards are forferted 1f the employee ceases to be employed by the
Company pnor to vesting

Performance-based restncted stock cannot be transferred during the vesting penod Compensation expense relating to the 1ssuance of
performance-based restnicted stock 1s recognized over the vesting peniod based on the fair value of the award on the grant date with subsequent
adjustments to the number of shares awarded durmng the performance period based on probable and actual performance against targets After the
petformance pertod, if the performance targets are achieved, employees are ehgible to receive dividends dunng the remaining vesting period on
shares awarded under the performance-based restricted stock program

Performance-based restricted stock umts are settled m either cash or stock, depending on the employee's home country, and cannot be transferred
dunng the vesting penod Compensation expense relating to the 1ssuance of performance-based restricted stock umts settled in cash s
recogmzed over the vesting period itially based on the fair value of the award on the grant date with subsequent adjustments to the number of
umis awarded during the performance peniod based on probable and actual performance agamst targets [n addiuon, compensation expense 1
remeasured at each reporting perod during the vesting peniod based on the change in ADP stock price Compensation expense relating to the
1ssuance of performance-based restricted stock units settled 1n stock 15 recorded over the vesting penod based on the fair value of the award on
the grant date with subsequent adjustments to the number of umits awarded based on the probable and actual performance aganst targets
Drvidend equivalents are paid on awards settled mn stock under the performance-based restncted stock umit program

Employee Stock Purchase Plan  The Company offers an employee stock purchase plan that allows eligible employees to purchase shares of common

stock at a pnce equal to 95% of the market value for the Company's common stock on the last day of the offening penod This plan has been deemed
non-compensatory and, therefore, no compensation expense has been recorded

The Company currently utilizes treasury stock to satisfy stock option exercises, 1ssuances under the Company's employee stock purchase plan, and restneted stock
awards From time to tume, the Company may repurchase shares of 1ts common stock under s authonized share repurchase programs The Company repurchased
18 2 million shares 1n fiscal 2015 as compared to 9 0 million shares repurchased in fiscal 2014 The Company considers several factors m determining when to
execute share repurchases, including, among other things, actual and potential acquisition activity, cash balances and cash flows, 1ssuances due to employee benefit
plan activity, and market condittons Cash payments related to the settlement of vested time-based
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restricted stock umts and performance-based restricted stock umits were approximately $25 2 million , $1 2 rulhon , and $17 8 million duning fiscal years 2015,
2014 , and 2013

The following table represents stock-based compensation expense and related income tax benefits in each of fiscal 2015, 2014 , and 2013 , respectively

Years ended June 30, 2015 2014 2013

Operating expenses 5 270 § 217§ 150
Selling, general and admunistrative expenses 958 795 547
System development and programming costs 204 159 123
Total pretax stock-based compensation expense $ 1432 % 1171 § 820
Income tax benefit $ 511 § 422 § 294

Stock-based compensation expense attributable to employees of the discontinued operations are included in discontinued operations on the Statements of
Consolidated Earmings and therefore not presented in the table above For fiscal 2015, 2014 , and 2013 , such stock-based compensation expense was $5 5 million
, 521 2 million, and $14 4 million , respectively

As a result of the spin-off of CDK, the number of vested and unvested ADP stock options, their strike price, and the number of unvested performance-based and
time-based restnicted shares and umts were adjusted to preserve the mirinsic value of the awards immediately prior to the spin-off using an adjustment ratio based
on the market close price of ADP stock prier to the spin-off and the market open price of ADP stock subsequent to the spin-off Since these adjustments were
considered to be a modification of the awards 1n accordance to ASC 718, "Stock Compensation,” the Company compared the fair value of the awards immediately
pror to the spin-off to the fair value immechately after the spin-off to measure potential incremental stock-based compensation expense, if any The adjustments
d1d not result i an increase in the fair value of the awards and, accordingly, the Company did not record mcremental stock-based compensation expense Unvested
ADP stock options, unvested restricted stock, and unvested restricted stock umts held by CDK employees were replaced by CDK awards immediately following
the spin-off The stock-based compensation expense associated with the original grant of ADP awards to remamning ADP employees will continue to be recogrzed
within earnings from contimung operations in the Company's Statements of Consolidated Eamings

As of June 30, 2015 , the total remaming unrecogmzed compensation cost related to non-vested stock options, restricted stock umts, and restnicted stock awards
amounted to $14 6 millien , $17 3 mullion , and $86 5 mullion , respectrvely, which will be amortized over the weighted-average remaiming requisite service penods
of 1 9years, 1 1 years , and 1 4 years , respectively

In fiscal 2015, the following activity occurred under the Company’s existing plans, mcluding the impacts related to the CDK spm-off described above

Stock Options:

Number Weighted

of Options Average Price

Year ended June 30, 2015 (1n thousands) (1n dollars}
Options outstanding, beginning of year 7931 § 52
Opuions granted 949 § 86
Options exercised (2,843 $ 40
Options canceled (175 § 59
Options increased for spin-off adjustment ratio 849 § 47
CDK employee options replaced at spim-off with CDK awards 823 % 54
Options outstanding at fune 30, 2015 5888 § 55
Options exercisable at June 30, 2015 3177 % 42
Shares available for future grants, end of year 24,209
Shares reserved for 1ssuance under stock option plans, end of year 30,007
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Time-Based Restricted Stock and Time-Based Restricted Stock Umits

Number of Shares Number of Units

Year ended June 30, 2015 {1n thousands) (in thousands)
Restricted shares/umits outstanding at July 1, 2014 2,341 571
Restricted shares/umts granted 949 218
Restncted shares/units vested (1,083) (252)
Restricted shares/umits forferted (148) (72
Share/unit 1ncrease for spin-off adjustment ratio 267 64
CDK employee restricted shares/units replaced at spin-off with CDK awards (189) (43)
Restricted shares/uruts outstanding at June 30, 2015 2,137 486

Performance-Based Restricted Stock and Performance-Based Restricted Stock Units

Number of Shares Number of Units

Year ended June 30, 2015 (1n thousands) (in thousands)
Restncted shares/units outstanding at July 1, 2014 803 kI E:
Restricted shares/units granted 339 217
Restricied shares/umts vested (224) (13)
Restncied shares/umts forfeited (88) (20)
Share/umt increase for spin-off adjustment mtio 118 67
CDK employee restricted shares/units replaced at spin-off with CDK awards (45) (35)
Restricted shares/umts outstanding at June 30, 2015 903 534

The aggregate mntrinsic value of stock options outstanding and exercisable as of June 30, 2015 was $152 6 million and $120 3 muthon , respectively, which has a
remaining Life of 6 years and 4 years , respectively The aggregate intrinsic value for stock options exercised 1n fiscal 2015 , 2014 , and 2013 was $125 3 milbon,
$156 3 million , and $135 1 mullion , respectively

The fair value for stock options granted was estimated at the date of grant using the following assumptions

2015 2014 2013
Risk-frec interest rate 15% I 7% 10%
Dividend yield 23% 24% 29%
Weighted average volatility factor 23 4% 23 8% 23 5%
Weighted average expected life (1n years) 54 54 54
Weighted average fair value (in dollars) (A) $ 1429 3 11 89 3 759
The weighted average fair values of shares granted were as follows
Year ended June 30, 2015 2014 2013
Performance-based restncted stock (A) $ 6491 § 5308 3 48 46
Time-based restnicted stock (A) $ 7383 % 6285 % 5162

(A) The weighted average fair values of grants before September 30, 2014 were adjusted to reflect the impact of the spm-off of CDK
B, Pension Plans

The Company has a defined benefit cash balance pension plan covenng substantially all U § employees, under which employees are credited with a percentage of
base pay plus interest The plan mterest credit rate vartes from year-lo-year based on the ten-year U S Treasury rate  Employees are fully vested upon completion
of three years of service The Company's policy 1s to make contnbutions within the range determined by generally accepted actuanal principles Effective January

1

r
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2013, associates hired on or afier this date are not ehigible to participate n the Company's U S pension plan In addition, assocrates retured on or afier January 1,
2015 will no longer be ehgible to earn additional contributions but will continue to earn interest on any balance that remams 1n the pension plan The Company
also has varnious retirement plans for its non-U § employees and maintains a Supplemental Officers Retirement Plan (“SORP”) The SORP 1s a defined benefit
plan pursuant to which the Company pays supplemental pension benefits to certain key officers upon retirement based upon the officers' years of service and
compensation As of Jannary 23, 2014, newly apponted corporate officers are no longer eligible to participate in the SORP

A June 30 measurement date was used 1n determining the Company's benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets

The Company 1s required to (a) recogmze 1n 1ts Consolidated Balance Sheets an asset for a plan's net overfunded status or a hability for a plan's net underfunded
status, (b) measure a plan's assets and 1ts obligations that determune its funded status as of the end of the employer's fiscal year, and (c) recogmze changes n the
funded status of a defined benefit plan 1n the year in which the changes occur 1n accumulated other comprehensive income {loss)

The Company's pension plans' funded status as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 1s as foliows
June 30, 2015 2014

Change 1n plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginmng of year $ 20241 § 1,676 1
Actual return on plan assets 606 311
Employer contributions 99 847
Currency translation adjustments (88) 42
Benefits paid (76 0) (520)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 20098 § 2,024 1

Change 1n benefit obhigation

Benefit obhigation at beginmng of year $ 15987 § 1,427 8
Service cost 68 4 664
Interest cost 628 626
Actuanal losses 217 872
Currency translation adjustments (17 5) 67
Curtailments and special termtnation benefits 29 —
Benefits paid (76 0} (520)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year 5 16610 § 1,598 7
Funded status - plan assets less benefit obligations $ 3488 § 4254

The amounts recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 consisted of

June 30, 2015 2014
Noncurrent assets § 4757 § 5514
Current habiliies (59) (56)
Noncurrent habilities (121 0} (120 4)
Net amount recogmzed 3 3488 § 4254

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $1,645 4 mullion and $1,581 9 mulhon at June 30, 2015 and 2014 , respectively
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The Company's pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations 1n excess of plan assets as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 had the following projected benefit

obligation, accumulated benefit obhgation and fair value of plan assets

June 30, 2015 2014
Projected benefit obligation 1315 § 142 6
Accumulated benefit obligation 174 8 1278
Fair value of plan assets 45 $ 167
The components of net pension expense were as follows

2015 2014 2013
Service cost — benefits eamned during the period $ 68 4 664 § 672
Interest cost on projected benefits 628 626 551
Expected retum on plan assets (129 7) (119 4) (109 5)
Net amortization and deferral 172 201 309
Special termination benefits and plan curtailments 32 — —
Net penston expense ) 219 297  § 437

Net pension expense for fiscal 2015 , 2014 | and 2013 nctudes $4 3 million , $5 4 mullion , and $6 1 mullion , respectively, reported within eamings from
discontinued operations on the Statements of Consolidated Earnings Included within pension expense related to discontinued operations for fiscal 2015 were total
one-time charges of $3 2 million for curtailment charges and special termmation benefits directly attnbutable to the spin-off of CDK

The net actuanal loss, prior service cost, and transition obligation for the defined benefit pension plans that are included m accumulated other comprehensive
mcome that have not yet been recognized as components of net penodic benefit cost are $259 1 milhion , $2 7 million , and $C 2 nilhon , respectively, at June 30,
2015 ‘The estimated net actuanal loss, pnor service cost, and transition obligation for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from accumulated
other comprehensive income mto net penodic penston cost over the next fiscal year are $10 4 millron , $0 5 mllon , and $0 2 mullton , respectively, at June 30,

2015

Assumptions used to determine the actuanal present value of benefit obligations were

Years ended June 34, 2015 2014
Discount rate 425% 4 05%
Increase 1n compensation levels 4 00% 4 00%
Assumptions used to determine the net pension expense generally were

Years ended June 30, 2015 2014 2013
Discount rate 405% 4 50% 3 90%
Expected long-term rate of return on assets 725% 725% 725%
Increase in compensation levels 4 00% 4 00% 4 00%

The discount rate 15 based upon published rates for high-quahty fixed-income mvestments that produce cash flows that approximate the iming and amount of

expected future benefit payments

The expected long-term rate of retumn on assets 15 determined based on histoncal and expected future rates of return on plan assets considering the target asset mix

and the long-term 1investment strategy
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Plan Assets

The Company's pension plans’ asset allocations at June 30, 2015 and 2014 by asset category were as follows

2015 2014
Cash and cash equivalents 9% —%
US fixed income secunties 33% 33%
US equity securitics 17% 20%
International equity secunties 19% 21%
Global equity secunties 22% 26%
100% 100%

The Company's pension plans’ asset investment strategy 1s designed to ensure prudent management of assets, conststent with long-term return objectives and the
prompt fulfillment of all pension plan obligations The investment strategy and asset mix were developed in coordination with an asset habihity study conducted by
external consultants to maximze the funded ratio wath the least amount of volatihity

The pension plans' assets are currently invested in vanous asset classes with differing expected rates of return, correlations, and volatilities, including large
capitalization and small capitahization U § equities, international equities, U § fixed income secunties, and cash

The target asset allocation ranges for the U S plan are generelly as follows

U S fixed income securities 35%-45%
US equity secunties 14% - 24%
International equuty secunities 11% - 21%
Global equity secunties 20% - 30%

The pension plans’ fixed income portfolio s designed to match the duration and Liquidity charactenstics of the pension plans’ habilities In addition, the pension
plans invest only i investment-grade debt securities to ensure preservation of capital The pension plans’ equity portfolios are subject to diversificatton guidelines
to reduce the impact of losses in single investments Investment managers are prohibited from buying or selling commodities and from the short selling of
secunties

None of the pension plans’ assets are directly invested 1n the Company's stock, although the pension plans may hold a mmimal amount of Company stock to the
extent of the Company's participation m equity mdices

The penston plans’ investments included in Level 1 are valued using closing pnces for identical instruments that are traded on active exchanges The pension plans'
investments ncluded in Level 2 are valued uthizing inputs obtained from an independent pricimg service, which are reviewed by the Company for reasonableness
To determne the fair value of our Level 2 plan assets, a variety of inputs are utihzed, including benchmark yields, reported trades, non-binding broker/dealer
quotes, tssuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark secunties, bids, offers, reference data, new 1ssue data, and monthly payment information The pension plans
have no Level 3 investments at June 30, 2015

The following table presents the imvestments of the pension plans measured at fair value at June 30, 2015

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Commingled trusts 5 — 3 1,027 § — 3 1,082 7
US government securities — 27107 — 2707
Mutual funds 890 — — 890
Comerate and municipal bonds — 3475 — 3475
Mongage-backed secunty bonds — 345 — 345
Total pension assets $ 890 § 1,7354  § — % 1,824 4
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In addition to the iInvestments n the above table, the pension plans also held cash and cash equivalents of $185 4 mithon as of June 30, 2015 , which have been
classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the mvestments of the pension plans measured at fair value at June 30, 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Commungled trusts $ — % 1,2611 § — % 1,261 1
U S government securities — 2719 — 2719
Mutual funds 882 — — 882
Corporate and mumecipal bonds — 3683 — 368 3
Mortgage-backed secunty bonds — 229 — 229
Total pension assets $ 882 § 19242 § — % 20124

In addition to the mvestments 1n the above table, the pension plans also held cash and cash equivalents of $11 7 mitlion as of June 30, 2014 , which have been
classified as Level 2 n the fair value huerarchy

Contnbutions

Dunng fiscal 2015 , the Company contributed $9 ¢ million to the pension plans The Company expects to contnbute $10 7 milhon to the pension plans dunng
fiscal 2016

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The benefits expected to be paid 1n each year from fiscal 2016 to 2020 are $71 9 million, $78 1 milhien , $86 2 mathon , $93 4 million and $101 2 miihion,
respectively The aggregate benefits expected to be paid 1n the five fiscal years from 2021 to 2025 are 3630 2 million  The expected benefits to be paid are based
on the same assumptions used to measure the Company's pension plans' benefit obligations at June 30, 2015 and mncludes estimated future employee service

C. Retirement and Savings Plan. The Company has a 401(k) retirement and savings plan, which allows eligible employees to contribute up to 50% of their
compensation annually and allows highly compensated employees to contnbute up to 12% of their compensation annually The Company matches a portion of

employee contributions, which amounted to approximately $69 7 million , $66 0 milhion , and $61 2 milhon for the calendar years ended December 31, 2014 ,
2013, and 2012, respectively

NOTE 10 INCOME TAXES

Earmings from continung operations before income taxes shown belew are based on the geographic location to which such earmings are atinbutable

Years ended June 30, 2015 2014 2013

Earmungs from continutng operations before income taxes

United States $ 18953 § 1,6356 § 1,4577
Foreign 1754 2436 2524
§ 20707 8§ 1,8792 § 1,7101
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The provision (benefit) for mcome taxes consists of the following components

Years ended June 30, 2015 2014 2013
Current

Federal ) 5763 §$ 5521 % 4258

Foreign 931 713 808

State 401 511 476
Total current 7095 674 5 5542
Deferred

Federal (13) (327 387

Foreign (170) (103) (107

State 30 51 57
Total deferred (15 3) (379) 137
Total provision for income taxes s 6942 § 6366 § 5879

A reconciliation between the Company's effective tax rate and the U S federal statutory rate 15 as follows

Years ended June 30, 2018 % 2014 % 2013 Y%

Provision for taxes at U S statutory rate 5 7248 50 % 6577 350 % 598 4 350

Increase (decrease) i provision from

State taxes, net of federal tax benefit 348 17 134 18 259 15
U S tax on foreign income 1553 75 266 14 852 50
Uulzaton of foreign tax credits {177 1) 86) (26 2) (14) 9s1) {55)
Sectien 199 - Quahfied production activities (289) (14) 230) (12) (223) {13)
Other (A) (14 7) ()] {319 (17 42) 03)
3 694 2 335§ 6366 339 % 5879 344

{A) Fiscal 2013 includes $16 0 million for the tax impact of the non tax-deductible goodwill impairment related to ADP AdvancedMD which mcreased our fiscal
2013 effective tax rate O 8 percentage points
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The sigmficant components of deferred income tax assets and trabilities and their batance sheet classifications are as follows

Years ended June 30, 2015 2014

Deferred tax assets

Accrued expenses not currently deductible $ 2406 % 2167
Stock-based compensation expense 723 756
Net operating losses 475 596
Other 235 34
3839 3833

Less valuation allowances (237) (35 5)
Deferred tax assets, net $ 3602 § 3478

Deferred tax habilities

Prepaid retirement benefits $ 1479 § 1837
Deferred revenue 366 425
Fixed and intangible assets 1225 116
Prepaid expenses 1085 985
Unrealized investment gains, net 719 1123
Tax on unrepatnated eamings 51 14 ]
Other 1¢ —_
Deferred tax liabihities 5 4944 % 5672
Net deferred tax liabilities $ 1342 § 2194

There are $33 0 million and $21 6 million of current deferred tax assets included 1n other current assets on the Consohidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2015 and
2014 , respectively There are $61 9 million and $72 2 million of long-term deferred tax assets included 1n other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at
June 30, 2015 and 2014 , respectively There are $57 0 rmlhon and $97 3 mill:on of current deferred tax Liabilities included in accrued expenses and other current
habilives on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2015 and 2014 , respectively

Income taxes have not been provided on undistnbuted earmings of certain foreign subsidiaries 1n an aggregate amount of approximately $417 6 million as of
June 30, 2015 , as the Company considers such eamings to be permanently reinvested

outside of the United States The addiuonal U S income tax that would anse on repaination of the remaimng undistnbuted earnings could be offset, in part, by
foreign tax credits on such repatnation However, 1t 1s impracticable to estimate the amount of net income tax that might be payable

The Company has esumated foreign net operating loss carry-forwards of approximately $57 4 million as of June 3¢, 2015 , of which $42 8 mullion expire through
2035 and $14 6 milhion has an mdefinute utilization peniod As of June 30, 2015 , the Company has approximately $50 2 mullion of federal net operating loss carry-
forwards from acquired compames The net operating losses have an annual utilization limitation pursuant to secuion 382 of the Internal Revenue Code and expire
through 2030

The Company has state net operating loss carry-forwards of approximately $164 1 milhon as of June 30, 2015 , which expire through 2034

The Company has recorded valuation allowances of $23 7 mullion and $35 5 million at June 30, 2015 and 2014 , respectively, to reflect the estimated amount of
domesuc and foreign deferred tax assets that may not be reahized

Income tax payments were approximately $773 3 million , $821 5 million , and $691 0 milhon for fiscal 2015 , 2014 , and 2013 , respectively

As of June 30, 2015 , 2014 , and 2013 the Company's habihties for unrecogmzed tax benefits, which include interest and penalties, were $27 1 million , $56 5
million , and $67 0 mullion respectively The amount that, if recogmzed, would impact the

65




effective tax rate 1s $16 9 mullion , $31 0 nuliion , and $35 1 million , respectively The remaimder, if recogmized, would principally impact deferred taxes

A reconcibiation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits 15 as follows

2015 2014 2013
Unrecogmzed tax benefits at beginning of the year $ 565 § 670 § 792
Additions for tax positions 24 36 50
Additions for tax positions of pnior peneds 31 68 51
Reductions for tax positions of prior peniods (65) 37N 34)
Settlement with tax authonties (122) (4 4) (103)
Expiratron of the statute of hmitations (14 0) (137 ()]
Impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations (22) 09 11
Unrecognized tax benefit at end of year s 271§ 565 % 670

Interest expense and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions have been recorded in the provision for income taxes on the Statements of Consolidated
Earmings Dunng the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015, 2014 , and 2013 , the Company recorded interest (benefit) expense of $(2 7) million , $(3 4} million , and
$0 4 mullion , respectively Penalties incurred dunng fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 , 2014 , and 2013 were no t matenal

At June 30, 2015 , the Company had accrued interest of $3 8 million recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, of which $0 ¥ millicn was recorded within
mcome taxes payable, and the remainder was recorded wathun other habilities At June 30, 2014 , the Company had accrued interest of $10 6 milhon recorded on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets, of which $0 1 million was recorded within income taxes payable, and the remainder was recorded within other habilities At
June 30, 2015, the Company had accrued penalues of $0 3 rillion recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets within other hiabihiies At June 30, 2014 | the
Company had accrued penalties of $0 6 million recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, of which $0 1 million was recorded within income taxes payable,
and the remainder was recorded within other habihities

The Company 1s routmely examined by the IRS and tax authorities m forergn countnies in which it conducts business, as well as tax authonities in siates i which 1t
has signuficant business operations The tax years currently under examination vary by junsdiction Exammations 1n progress in which the Company has sigmificant
business operations are as follows

Taxing Junsdiction Fiscal Years under Examination

US (IRS) 2014-2015
Anzona 2010-2013
Ilhnos 2004-2014
Minnesota 2009-2013
New York 2007-2009
New Jersey 2002-2014
India 2004-2013
Brazil 2010

The Company regularly considers the hkelihood of assessments resulting from examinations in each of the junsdictions The resolution of tax matters 15 not
expected 1o have a matenal effect on the consolidated financial condition of the Company, although a resolution could have a material impact on the Company's
Statements of Consolidated Eamings for a particular future penod and on the Company's effective tax rate

If certain pending tax matters setile within the next twelve months, the total amount of unrecogmzed tax benefits may increase or decrease for all open tax years
and junsdictions Based on current estimates, settlements related 1o various junisdictions and tax periods could increase earmings up to $5 million 1n the next twelve
months Audit outcomes and the iming of audit settlements are subject to sigruficant uncertainty We continually assess the likelithood and amount of potential
adjustments and
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adjust the income tax provision, the current tax Lability and deferred taxes m the period m which the facts that give rise to a revision become known

In fiscal 2015 , the Company reached agreements with the IRS regarding all outstanding tax audit tssues 1n dispute for the tax years through and including June 30,
2013 , which did not have a material impact to the consolidated financial statements of the Company

NOTE 11 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has obhgations under vartous facthties and equipment leases and software license agreements Minimum commstments under these obligations with
a future life of greater than one year at June 30, 2015 are as follows

Years ending June 30,

2016 $ 896
20t7 806
2018 636
2019 401
2020 266
Thereafier 204

$ 3209

In addition to fixed rentals, certain leases require payment of mamtenance and real estate taxes and contain escalation provisions based on future adjustments n
price indices

As of June 30, 2015 , the Company has purchase comantments of approxumately $743 7 million , including a retnsurance premium with ACE American Insurance
Company for the fiscal 2016 policy year, as well as obligations related to purchase and maintenance agreements on our software, equipment, and other assets, of
which $358 7 mallion relates to fiscal 2016 , $114 8 milhon relates to the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 and the remaining $270 2 mullion relates to fiscal years
ending June 30, 2018 through fiscal 2020

1n June 2011, the Company received a Commssioner’s Charge from the U S Equal Employment Opportunity Commssion (“EEOC”) alleging that the Company
has viotated Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 by refusing to recruit, hire, transfer and promote certam persons on the basis of therr race, in the State of
1lhnois from at least the perod of January 1, 2007 (o the present The Company continues to investigate the allegations set forth m the Commussioner’s Charge
and 1s cooperating with the EEOC’s mvestigation

The Company 1s subject to various claims and litigation 1 the normal course of business When a loss 1s considered probable and reasonably estimable, the
Company records a hiability in the amount of 1ts best estmate for the ultimate loss At this time, the Company 1s unable to estimate any reasonably possible loss, or
range of reasonably possible loss, with respect to the matters described above This 1s primanly because these matters involve complex 1ssues subject to mherent
uncertanty There can be no assurance that these matters will be resolved 1in a manner that 15 not adverse to the Company

It 15 not the Company’s business practice to enter into off-balance sheet arrangements b the normal course of business, the Company may enter tnto contracts in
which it makes representations and warranties that relate to the performance of the Company's services and products The Company does not expect any matenal
losses related to such representations and warranties

NOTE 12. RECLASSIFICATION OUT OF ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income 1s a measure of income that mcludes both net earmngs and other comprehensive income (less) Other comprehensive income (loss) results

from rtems deferred on the Consolidated Balance Sheets in stockholders’ equity Other comprehensive income (loss) was $(350 6) nullion , $162 8 mullion , end
$(214 8) milhon n fiscal 2015 , 2014, and 2013 , respectively Changes m Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income ("AOCI") by component are as follows
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Currency Net Gains on Accumulated Other
Translation Avalable-for-sale Comprehensive
Adjustment Securities Penston Liability Income

Balance at fune 30, 2012 $ 420 $ 461 3 b 273 1) $ 2302
Other comprehensive (loss) mcome before
reclassification adjustments 24) (394 6) 68 2 (328 8)
Tax effect — 138 5 257 1128
Reclassification adjustments to
net earmings — (28 6) (A) 317 (B) 31
Tax effect — 101 (120 (t9
Balance at June 30, 2013 b 396 $ 186 7 $ (210 9) $ 154
Other comprehensive income before
reclassification adjustments 584 535 1028 2147
Tax effect (182) 397 579
Reclassification adjustments to net earnings 15 (8] {1635) (A) 207 (B) 57
Tax effect 61 (58) 03
Balance at June 30, 2014 $ 995 b 2116 $ (1329 $ 178 2
Other comprehensive loss before

reclassification adjustments (240 8) (103 0} (874) (4312)
Tax effect 386 27 73
Reclassification adjustments to

net earmings 12 ) 49 (A) 179 (B} 142
Tax effect 16 (6 35) 49
Reclassification adjustments to

retained earnings (882) (D) — — (88 2)
Balance at June 30, 2015 s (228 3) 5 1439 s (176 2) 3 (260 6)

(A) Reclassification adjustments out of AOCI are included within Other income, net, on the Statements of Consel:dated Earnings

(B} Reclassification adjustments out of AQCI are included 1n net pension expense (see Note 9)

(C) Reclassification adjustments out of AOCI are included within net earnings from discontinued operations, on the Statements of Consohdated Earmings

{D} Reclassification adjustment out of AOCI 15 related to the CDK spin-off and included in retained earmings on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

NOTE 13 FINANCIAL DATA BY SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA

Based upon similar economic and operational charactenstics, the Company’s strategic business units have been aggregated into the following two reportable
segments Employer Services and PEO Services The pnmary compoenents of the “Other” segment are the results of operations of ADP Indemmnity (a wholly-
owned captive insurance company that provides workers’ compensation and employer’s habtlity deductible reimbursement insurance pretection for PEO Services

worksite employees), non-recurring gans and losses, miscellancous processing services, such as customer financing transactions, the ehmination of intercompany
transactions, and certain charges and expenses that have not been allocated to the repontable segments, such as stock-based compensation expense

Centain revenues and expenses are charged to the reportable segments at a standard rate for management reasons Other costs are recorded based on management
responstbility  There 1s a reconciling ntem for the difference between actual interest income earned on mvested funds held for chents and interest credited o
Employer Services and PEO Services at a standard rate of 4 5%  Ths allocation 1s made for management reasons so that the reporiable segments' results are
presented on a consistent
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basis without the impact of fluctuations 1n interest rates This reconciling adjustment to the reportable segments’ revenues and carnings from continuing operations

before income taxes 15 ehminated i consohdation

Year ended June 30, 2015

Revenues from contimuing operations

Earmings from continuing operations before income taxes
Assets from continuing operations

Capital expenditures from continuing operations
Depreciauon and amortization

Year ended June 30, 2014

Revenues from continuing operations

Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes
Assets from continuing operations

Captial expenditures from continuing operations
Depreciauon and amortization

Year ended June 30, 2013

Revenues from continuing operations

Earmings from continuing operations before income taxes
Assets from continuing operations

Capital expenditures from continuing operations
Depreciation and amortization

Year ended June 30, 2015
Revenues from continuing operations

Assets from continuing operations

Year ended June 30, 2014
Revenues from continuing operations
Assets from continuing operations

Year ended June 30, 2013
Revenues from continuing operations

Assets from continung operations

Employer Client Fund

Services PEO Services Other Interest Total
$ 88973 § 26472 $ (124) § (5936) $ 10,9385
2,694 2 3036 (333 5) {593 6) 20707
27,5547 3777 51781 — 13,1105
952 13 747 — 171 2
2266 12 501 — 2779
3 85060 § 22709 § 09 $ (5496) $ 10,226 4
25173 2344 (3229 (549 6) 1,879 2
21,7363 4726 74207 — 29,6296
908 09 693 — 1610
216 6 12 488 — 266 6
s 789920 § 19732 % 17 % (4319) §$ 9,442 ¢
22157 1997 273 4) (431 9) 1,7101
24462 8 4114 51675 — 30,0417
761 06 527 — 1294
1903 12 597 — 25112

United States Europe Canada Other Total
91018 § 10866 $ 3208 § 4293 § 10,938 5
28,138 1 20595 8§ 243889 % 4240 § 33,1105
83542 § 1,1327 8 3347 % 4048 § 10,226 4
252288 § 20572 % 1,8986 $ 4450 § 296296
76996 S 1,0325 % 3392 § 707 § 94420
259587 § 1,7329 % 19587 § 3914 § 300417
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NOTE 14. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

Summanzed quartedy results of our operations for the two fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014 are as follows

First Third Fourth
Quarter Second Quarter Quarter Quarter
Year ended June 30, 2015
Revenues from continuing operations $ 25661 § 26536 § 30243 8§ 2,694 5
Gross profit from contmuing operations $ 1,0078 8§ 1,6703 § 1,3400 § 1,082 7
Earmings from contimuing operations before income taxes ) 4504 3 4988 § 7399 8§ 3816
Net eamings from continuing operations $ 2966 % 3325 § 4903 % 2570
Net (loss) / eamings from discontinued operations $ (14 % (10) § on s 792
Net earnings 5 952 % 3315 % 4896 § 3362
Basic per common share amounts
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations b 062 % 070 % 104 § 055
Basic earmings per share from discontinued operations 5 — 3 — 3 — 3 017
Draluted per common share amounts
Diluted earmings per share from continuing operations $ 062 § 069 3 103 8§ 055
Dhiuted earnings per share from discontinued operations $ —  § — 5 — 3 017
First Third Fourth
Quarter Second Quanter Quarter Quarter
Xear ended June 30, 2014
Revenues from continuing operations $ 23554 § 24866 $ 28178 § 2,566 6
Gross profit from contnuing operations $ 9178 % 1,0115  § 1,2356 3§ 1,020 7
Eammgs from continuing operations before income taxes $ 4026 $ 4605 § 6592 % 3570
Net earmings from continuing operations ) 2642 % 3132 % 4321 % 2332
Net earmings from discontinued operations s 644 % 638 § 895 § 555
Net earmings $ 3286 $ 3o 3 5216 % 2887
Basic per common share amounts
Basic earmings per share from continting operations $ 055 § 065 § 0% 3 049
Basic earmings per share from discontinued operations $ 013 3 013 S 019§ o2
D:luted per common share amounts
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations $ 055 % 065 3% 089 % 048
Daluted earnings per share from discontinued operations $ 013 % 0i3 019 § 0tl

NOTE 15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Wath the exception of the July 2015 increase in the commercial paper program discussed in Note 8, and the items hsted below, there are no further subsequent
events for disclosure

The Company's subsidiary captive insurance company, ADP Indemmnety, paid a premium of $202 0 million 1n July 2015 to enter into a remsurance arrangement
with ACE Amencan Insurance Company to cover substanually all losses for the fiscal 2016 policy year on terms substantially simular to the fiscal 2015 reinsurance
pelicy te cover losses up to §1 nullion per occurrence related to the workers' compensation and employer's liability deductible reimbursement msurance protection
for PEO Services worksite employees

In Avgust 2015 , the Company signed an agreement to sell its AdvancedMD business, which 15 currently included within the Employer Services segment The
Company expects the sale to be completed duning the first or second quarter of fiscal 2016,
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subject to normal and customary closing conditions The transaction 1s expected to create a fiscal 2016 pre-tax gain of approximately 330 milhon
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Item 9 Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Attached as Exlubits 31 1 and 31 2 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K are cenufications of ADP's Chief Executive Officer and Chuef Financial Officer,
which are required by Rule 13a-14(a) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™) This “Controls and Procedures” section should be
read 1 conjunction with the report of Deloitte & Touche LLP that appears on page 75 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and 1s hereby incorporated hereimn by
reference

Management's Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company carried out an evaluation (the “evaluation™}, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management, including us
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act Disclosure controls and procedures include, without hmitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act 1s accumulated and communicated to the Company's
management, including 1ts Chuef Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, or persons performing sumilar functions, as appropnate to allow umely decisions
regarding required disclosure Based on the evaluation, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company's
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30, 2015 1n ensunng that (1) information required to be disclosed by the Company n reports that 1t
files or submuts under the Exchange Act 1s accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including ts Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and (n) such information 1s recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time pertods specified 1n the Secunties and Exchange Commussion’s rules and forms

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

[t1s the responsibility of Automatic Data Processing, Inc 's (“ADP”) management to establish and mawtain effective internal control over financial
reporting (as defined 1 Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act Internal control over financial reporting 1s designed to provide reasonable assurance to ADP's
management and board of directors regarding the preparation of reliable financial statements for external purposes 1 accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles

ADP's internal contro! over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of ADP, {u) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 1n accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of ADP are
being made only in accordance with authonzations of management and directors of ADP, and (in) provide reasonable assurance regarding the prevention or timely
detection of unauthonzed acquisition, use or disposition of ADP's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements of ADP

Because of 1ts inherent hmitations, 1nternal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Thercfore, even those systems
determmined to be effective can provide only reasenable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation

Management has performed an assessment of the effectiveness of ADP’s internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2015 based upon criteria
set forth i Internal Control - Integrated Framework (201 3) 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgamizations of the Treadway Commussion Based on this
assessmient, management determmined that ADP’s intemal control over financial reporting was effective as of June 30, 2015
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Delontic & Touche LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited and reported on the consolidated financial statements of ADP

ncluded tn this Annua! Report on Form 10-K, has 1ssued an atiestation report on the operating effectiveness of ADP's internal control over financial reporting The
Deloitte & Touche LLP attestation report 1s set forth below

fs/ Carlos A Rodnguez
Carlos A Rodriguez
President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Jan Si1egmund

Jan Siegmund
Chief Financial Officer

Roseland, New Jersey
August 7, 2015
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Changes in Internal Control over Financizal Reporting

There were ne changes in ADP's internal control over financial reporting that occurred dunng the quarter ended June 30, 2015 that have matenally
affected, or are reasonably likely to matenally affect, ADP's internal control over financial reporting
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Automattc Data Processing, Inc

Roseland, New Jersey

We have audited the internal conirol over financial reporting of Automatic Data Processing, Inc and subsidianes (the “Company™) as of June 30, 2015,
based on ¢ntena established mn Intemnal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) 1ssued by the Commutitee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commssion The Company’s management 1s responsible for maimainng effective nternal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our
responsibifity 1s to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audt

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audst to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained 1n all matenal
respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the nsk that a matenal weakness exists, testing and
evaluaung the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
n the circumstances We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opimion

A company’s internal control over financial reporting 1s a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal executive and
princtpal financtal efficers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the rehability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes n accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles A company's iternal control over financial reportng includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, {2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permut preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company, and (3} provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthonzed acquisttion, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a matenal effect on the
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of iternal control over financial reporting, including the possibihty of collusion or improper management overnde of
controls, matenal misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a imely basis Also, projecuens of any evaluation of the effectiveness of
the internal control over financial reporting to future penods are subject to the nisk that the controls may become 1nadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of comphance with the polictes or procedures may detenorate

In our opiion, the Company maintained, in all matenal respects, effective interal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2015, based on the
cniena established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013} 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsonng Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financral
statements and consolidated financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015 of the Company and our report dated August 7, 2015
expressed an unqualified opimon on those consolidated financial statements and conschidated financial statement schedule

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Parsippany, New Jersey

August 7, 2015
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Part 111

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The executive officers of the Company, their ages, positions, and the pertod during whach they have been employed by ADP are as follows

Employed by

Name Age Position ADP Since
Brock Albinson 40 Corporate Controller and Principal Accounting Officer 2007
John Ayala 43 President, Small Business Services, Reirement Services and 2002

Insurance Services
Mark D Benjamin 44 President, Global Enterprise Solutions 1992
Mana Black 41 President, ADP TotalSource 1996
Michael A Bonarti 49 Vice President General Counsel and Secretary 1997
Deborah L Dyson 49 Vice President Cltent Expertence and 1988

Continuous fmprovement
Michael C Eberhard 53 Vice President and Treasurer 1998
Edward B Flynn, [11 55 Executve Vice President Worldwide Sales and Marketing 1988
Demnot ] O'Brien 49 Chief Human Resources Officer 2012
Thomas Perrott1 46 President, Major Account Services and ADP Canada 1963
Douglas Polits 53 President, Added Value Services 1992
Carlos A Rodriguez 51 President and Chief Executive Officer 1999
Stuart Sackman 54 Vice President, Global Product and Technology 1992
Jan Siegmund 51 Chief Financial Officer 1999
Joe Timko 55 Chief Sirategy Officer 2013

Brock Albinson jomed ADP 1n 2007 Prior to hus appomntment as Corporate Controiler and Principal Accounting Officer in March 2015, he served as
Assistant Corporate Controller from December 2011 to February 2015, as Vice President, Corporate Finance, from January 2011 to December 2011, and as Vice
President, Financial Policy, from March 2007 to January 2011

John Ayala joined ADP m 2002 Prior to lus appointment as President, Small Business Services, Retirement Services and Insurance Services n
July 2014, he served as Vice President, Client Expenience and Continuous Improvement from 2013 to June 2014, as Semor Vice President, Employer Services -
Small Business Services from 2011 to fanuary 2013, and as Semor Vice President, Service and Operations, TotalSource from 2008 to 2011

Mark D Benparmn jomed ADP 1n 1992 Prior 10 his appontment as President, Global Enterpnise Solutions, which includes Employer Services -
International, National Account Services, Benefit Services, Recruitment Process Qutsourcing, and Multinational Comparues, tn July 2013, he served as President,
Employer Services Intemational from July 2011 to June 2013, and as Semor Vice President, Small Business Services and TotalSource from 2008 1o June 2011

Maria Black joined ADP 1n 1996 Prior to her appointment as President, ADP TotalSource in July 2014, she served as General Manager, ADP Umnited
Kingdom from July 2013 to June 2014, and as General Manager, Employer Services - TotalSource Western Central Region from 2008 to June 2013

Michael A Bonart: joined ADP 1n 1997 He has served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary smce 2010
Deborah L. Dysen joined ADP 1 1988 Prior to her appointment as Vice President, Chient Experience and Continuous Improvement in July 2014, she
served as Division Vice President / General Manager, Employer Services - Major Account Services South Service Center from July 2012 10 June 2014, and as

Diviston Vice President / General Manager, Employer Services - Major Account Services Northwest Service Center from July 2006 to June 2012

Michael C Eberhard jomed ADP in 1998 He has served as Vice President and Treasurer since 2009
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Edward B. Fiynn, 1II joined ADP 1n 1988 Pnor to his appointment as Executive Vice President, Worldwide Sales and Marketing in 2013, he served as
Vice President, Employer Services - Sales from 2009 1o 2013

Dermot J O’ Brien joined ADP in 2012 as Chief Human Resources Officer Pnor to joiming ADP, he was Executive Vice President of Human Resources
at TIAA-CREF from 2003 to 2012

Thomas Perrottt yomed ADP 1in 1993 Prior to his appointment as President, Major Account Services and ADP Canada 1n July 2015, he served as
Corporate Vice Preswdent and Sentor Vice President, Service and Operations, Major Account Services from July 2014 to June 20185, as Senior Vice President,
Service & Operauons, Small Business Services from Apnl 2013 to June 2014, as Semor Vice President, Sales, Small Business Services from Apnl 2011 to March
2013, and as Division Vice President, Global Sales Operations, Employer Services from November 2009 to March 2011

Douglas Politt yjorned ADP 1n 1992 Prior to lus appointment as President, Added Value Services tn 2013, he served as Senior Vice President, CFO Suite
(AVS) from 2011 to 2013, and as Seruor Vice President, Retirement Services from 2006 to 2011

Carlos A Rodriguez jomed ADP 1n 1999 Pnor to lis appomntment in November 2011 to President and Chief Executive Officer, he served as President
and Chief Operating Officer from June 2011 to November 2011, and as President, Employer Services - National Account Services, ADP Canada, and Global View
and Employer Services Intemational, from 2010 to May 2011

Stuart Sackman jowed ADP 1in 1992 Pnor to his appomtment as Vice President, Global Product and Technology in March 2015, he served as Cormporate
Vice President and General Manager of Multinational Corporations Services from 2012 to February 2015, and as Division Vice President and General Manager of
the National Account Services’ East National Service Center from 2008 to 2012

Jan Siegmund yoined ADP 1n 1999 Pnor to hus appeintment as Chief Financial Officer i 2012, he served as President, Added Value Services and Chief
Strategy Officer from 2009 to 2012

Joe Timko jomed ADP 1n June 2013 as Chief Strategy Officer Pnor to Joiming ADP, he was Executive Vice President, Chief Technology & Strategy
Officer at Pitney Bowes Inc from Apnl 2012 to June 2013, Chief Strategy & Innovation Officer at Pitney Bowes from February 2010 to Apnl! 2012, and a partner
in the Technology, Telecom & Industnal Sector practices at McKansey & Company from 2001 10 2010

Directors
See “Election of Directors™ in the Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which information 1s incorporated heren by
reference

Section 16(a) Benefictal Ownership Reporting Compliance

See “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance™ in the Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders,
which information 1s incorperated herein by reference

Code of Ethics

ADP has adopted & code of ethics that applies to 1ts pnincipal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer and persons perforring
similar functions The code of ethics may be viewed online on ADP's website at www adp com under “Corpotate Social Responsibality”” mn the “Who We Are”
section Any amendment to or waivers from the code of ethics wall be disclosed on our website within four bustness days following the date of the amendment or
waiver

Audit Committee

See “Election of Directors - Corporate Governance - Commuttees of the Board of Directors™ and * Audit Commuittee Report” in the Proxy Statement for the
Company’s 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which information 1s incorporated heremn by reference
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Item 11 Executive Compensation

Sec “Election of Directors - Corporate Governance - Compensation of Executive Officers™ and “Election of Directors - Compensatton of Non-Employee
Directors™ 1n the Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which iformation 15 mcorporated herein by reference

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

See “Election of Directors - Secunty Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managers™ and “Election of Directors - Equity Compensation Plan
[nformation™ 1 the Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which information 1s incorporated heremn by reference

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

See “Election of Directors - Corporate Govemnance™ m the Proxy Statement for the Company's 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which informauion
18 incorporated herein by reference

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

See “Independent Registered Public Accountng Firm's Fees™ 1n the Proxy Statement for the Company's 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which
information 1s incorporated herein by reference

Part IV
Item 15 Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules

1 Fimancial Statements

The followng report and consolidated financial statements of the Company arc contamed in Part IL, liem 8 hereof
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Statements of Consolidated Eamings - years ended June 30, 2015 , 2014 and 2013

Consolidated Balance Sheets - June 30, 2015 and 2014

Statements of Consohdated Stockholders' Equity - years ended June 30, 2015 , 2014 and 2013

Statements of Consclidated Cash Flows - years ended June 30, 2015 , 2014 and 2013

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

2 Financial Statement Schedules

Page 1n Form 10-K

Schedule 11 - Valuation and Quahfying Accounts 82

All other Schedules have been omitted because they are inapphcable or are not required or the information 15 included elsewhere 1n the financial
statements or notes thereto

(b) Exhibits

The following exhibuts are filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated heremn by reference to the document set forth next to the exhibit in
the hst below

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation dated November 11, 1998 - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 1 to the
31 Company's Registmtion Statement No  333-72023 on Form 5-4 filed with the Commission on February 9, 1999
Amended and Restated By-laws of the Company - mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 1 to the Company's Current Report on
32 Form 8-K dated Apnil 9, 2015
Separation and Distnbution Agreement, dated as of March 20, 2007, between Automatic Data Processing, Inc and Broadndge
Financial Solutions, LLC - mncorporated by reference to Eximbut 10 | to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
101 March 21, 2007
Separation and Distnbution Agreement, dated September 29, 2014, by and between Automatic Data Processing, Inc and CDK
Global Holdings, LLC - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 1,
102 2014
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103

104

105

106

107

108

109

1010

1011

1012

013

10 14

1015

1016

1017

10 18

1019

Letter Agreement, dated as of March 15, 2012, between Automatic Data Processing, Inc and Dermot O'Brien - incorporated by
reference to Extubit 10 1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 19-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2013
(Management Contract)

Separation Agreement and Release, dated Apnl 21, 2014, by and between Regina R Lee and Automatic Data Processing, Inc -
mcerporated by reference to Exhibit 10 1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 21, 2014

Amended and Restated Supptemental Officers Retirement Plan - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 4 1o the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 12, 2009 (Management Compensatory Plan)

Automatic Data Processing, Inc 2000 Stock Option Plan - incorporated by reference to Extubrt 10 8 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2009 (Management Compensatory Plan)

Automatic Data Processing, Inc Deferred Compensauon Plan, as Amended and Restated Effective July 25, 2014 - incorpomied by
reference 10 Exhibit 10 7 10 the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 (Management
Compensatory Plan)

Automatic Data Processing, Inc Change 1n Control Severance Plan for Corporate Officers, as amended - incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10 8 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 (Management
Compensatory Plan)

Automatic Data Precessing, Inc 2003 Director Stock Plan - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 4 1o Registration Statement No
333-147377 on Form S-8 filed with the Commission on November 14, 2007 (Management Compensatory Plan)

Automatic Data Processing, Inc Amended and Restated Employees’ Savings-Stock Purchase Plan - incorporated by reference to
Exhibn 10 11 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 (Management Compensatory
Plan)

364-Day Credit Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2015, among Automatic Data Processing, Inc , the Lenders party thereto,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A , as Admimistrative Agent, Bank of Amenca, N A , BNP Panbas, Wells Fargo Bank, N A , and
Ciibank, N A , as Syndication Agents, and Deutsche Bank Secunties Inc , Barclays Bank PLC, and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubish:
UFJ, Ltd, as Documentation Agenis - incorporated by reference to Exlubit 10 12 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated June 19, 2015

Five-Year Credit Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2015, among Automauc Data Processing, Inc , the Lenders party thereto,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A , as Admmistrative Agent, Bank of Amenca, N A , BNP Panbas, Wells Fargo Bank, N A |, and
Citibank, N A , as Synd:cation Agents, and Deutsche Bank Secunties Inc , Barclays Bank PLC, and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubisha
UF), Ltd, as Documentation Agents - mncorporated by reference o Exhibit 10 14 10 the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated June 19, 2015

Amended and Restated Five-Year Credit Agreement, dated as of June 19, 2013, among Automatic Data Processing, Inc , the
Lenders Party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A , as Administrative Agent, Bank of Amenca, N A , BNP Panbas, Wells Fargo
Bank, N A, Barclays Bank PLC, and Ciubank, N A | as Syndication Agents, and Deutsche Bank Secunties Inc , as Doecumentation
Agent - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 18 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 20, 2013

2000 Stock Option Grant Agreement {Form for Employees) for grants prior to August 14, 2008 - incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10 1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2004 (Management
Compensatoty Plan)

2000 Stock Option Grant Agreement (Form for Non-Employee Directors) for grants pnior to August 14, 2008 - incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10 3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2004
{Management Compensatory Plan)

2000 Stock Option Grant Agreement (Form for Employees) for grants begimmng August 14, 2008 - incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10 25 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 13, 2008 (Management Compensatory Plan)
Non-Employee Pirector Compensation Summary Sheet - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 19 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 (Management Compensatory Plan)

Automatic Data Processing, Inc 2008 Omnibus Award Plan - incorporated by reference 1o Appendix A to the Company's Proxy
Statement for its 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed with the Commussion on Septemnber 26, 2008 (Management
Compensatory Plan)

French Sub Plan under the 2008 Ommbus Award Plan effecuve as of January 26, 2012 - incorporated by reference to Exhibat 10 2
to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2012 (Management Compensatory Plan)
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1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

10 30

1031
1032
21

23
311
312
321

322

101 INS
101 SCH
101 CAL
101 LAB
101 PRE
101 DEF

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2008 Ommbus Award Plan - incorporated by reference to Exiubit 10 31 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2008 (Management Compensatory Plan)

Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement under the 2008 Ommibus Award Plan (Form for Non- Employee Directors) for grants prior
to November 12, 2008 - mncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 27 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
guarter ended December 31, 2008 (Management Compensatory Plan)

Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement under the 2008 Ommubus Award Plan (Form for Non- Employee Directors) for grants
beginmng November 12, 2008 - incorporated by reference to Extubit 10 28 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 (Management Compensatory Plan)

Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement under the 2008 Ommibus Award Plan (Form for Employees) - incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10 29 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 (Management Compensatory
Plan)

Form of Deferred Stock Uit Award Agreement under the 2008 Ommbus Award Plan - incorporated by reference to Extubu 10 33
1o the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 (Management Compensatory Plan)

Automatic Data Processing, Inc Executive Retirement Plan - mcorporated by reference to Eximbit 10 1 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2015 (Management Compensatory Plan)

Automatic Data Processing, Inc Retrrement and Savings Restoration Plan - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 2 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2015 {(Management Compensatory Plan)

Automatic Data Processing, Inc Corporate Officer Severance Plan - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 3 to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2015 (Management Compensatory Plan)

Form of Performance Stock Unit Award Agreement under the 2008 Omnibus Award Plan (Form for Corporate Officers) -
mncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,
2015 (Management Compensatory Plan)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2008 Ommbus Award Plan (Form for Corporate Officers) - incorporated by
reference to Exlubit 10 5 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2015
{Management Compensatory Plan)

Form of Stock Option Grant urder the 2008 Ommbus Award Plan (Form for Corporate Officers) - incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10 6 1o the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2015 (Management
Compensatory Plan)

Form of Performance Stock Umit Award Agreement under the 2008 Ommbus Award Plan - incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10 30 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013) (Management Compensatory Plan)

Form of Performance-Based Restncted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the 2008 Ommbus Award Plan
Subsidiaries of the Company

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Certification by Carlos A Rodnguez pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Secunities Exchange Act of 1934
Certification by Jan Siegmund pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934

Certification by Carlos A Rodnguez pursuant 1o 18 U S C Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act 0£2002

Certification by Jan Siegmund pursuant to 18 U S C Section 1350, &s adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002

XBRL mstance document

XBRL taxonomy extension schema document

XBRL taxonomy extension calculation linkbase document
XBRL taxonomy label linkbase document

XBRL taxonomy extension presentation linkbase document
XBRL taxonomy extenston definition linkbase document
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AUTOMATIC DATA PROCESSING, INC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

{In thousands)

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Addions
(1) (2)
Balance at
beginming of Charged to costs and Charged to other Balance at end
period expenses accounts (A) Deductions of penod

Year ended June 30, 2015
Allowance for doubtful accounts

Current $ 42749 S 15554 § (1,862) § (20948) (B) § 35,403
Long-term $ 8349 § 746 § 39 $ (8,422) (B) $ 634
Deferred tax valuation allowance $ 35,542 § 1,551 § (3.801) § (9,584) $ 23707

Year ended June 30, 2014
Allowance for doubtful accounts

Current $ 37393 § 13,575 400 § (8619) (B) $ 42,749
Long-term $ 9,033 § 2964 $ 79 § G727 (B) $ 8,349
Deferred tax valuation allowance $ 33724 § 6,254 § 3000 §$ (7,436) $ 35,542

Year ended June 30, 2013
Allowance for doubtful accounts

Current $ 33850 § 16002 § (109) $ (12,350) (B) § 37,393
Long-term 3 8812 % 2,687 S (50) § (2,416) (B) & 9,033
Deferred tax valuation allowance $ 39,116 $ 1,674 % 652 § {7,718) $ 33,724

(A) Includes amounts related to foreign exchange fluctuation

(B} Doubtful accounts wntten off, less recovenes on accounts previously wntten off
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d} of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned, thereunto duly authonzed

AUTOMATIC DATA PROCESSING, INC
(Registrunt)

August 7, 2015 By /s/Carlos A Rodnguez
Carlos A Rodnguez

President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secunttes Exchange Act of 1934, thus report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant in
the capacittes and on the dates indicated

Signature Thtle Date
fs/ Carlos A Rodnguez President and Chief Executive August 7, 2015
{Carlos A Rodnguez) Officer, Director

(Prnincipal Executive Officer)

/s/ Jan Siegmund Chief Financial Officer August 7, 2015
(Jan Siegmund) (Pnincipal Financial Officer)

/s/ Brock Albmson Corporate Controller August 7, 2015
{Brock Albmnson) {Pnincipal Accounting Officer)

fs/ Ellen R Alemany Dhrector August 7, 2015

(Ellen R Alemany)

s/ Peter Bisson Director August 7, 2015
(Peter Bisson)

/s/ Leshe A Brun Director August 7, 2015
(Lestie A Brun)

/s/ Richard T Clark Director August 7, 2015

(Rachard T Clark)

s/ Enc C Fast Director August 7, 2015
{Enc C Fast)
fs/ Linda R Gooden Director August 7, 2015

(Linda R Gooden)

/sf Michael P Gregoure Durector August 7, 2013
(Michael P Gregoire)
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fs/ R, Glenn Hubbard Director
(R Glenn Hubbard)

/s/ John P Jones Director
{John P Jones)

August 7, 2015

August 7, 2015




L3R

AUTOMATIC DATA PROCESSING, INC (the “ Company "), pursuant to the 2008 Ommbus Award Plan (the “ Plan ™), hereby urevocably
grants you (the * Participant ™), on [DATE] (the * Grant Date "), a Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Award (the “ PRSU Award ) of forfeitable
performance-based restncted stock units of the Company (* PRSUs ™), each PRSU representing the night to receive one share of the Company’s Common Stock,
par value $0 10 per share (“ Common Steck ™), subject to the restrictions, terms and conditions herem

AUTOMATIC DATA PROCESSING, INC 2008 OMNIBUS AWARD PLAN
PERFORMANCE-BASED RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the Compensation Commutiee (the * Commutiee ') of the Board of Directors of the Company has determmed that 1t would be m the
best interests of the Company and 1s stockholders to grant the award provided for heremn to the Participant, on the terms and conditions descnibed in this
Performance-Based Resincted Stock Unit Award Agreement (this * Agreement ™)

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the promises and the covenants of the parties contmined i this Agreement, and for other good
and valuable consideratton, the receipt and sufficiency of which 15 hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, for themselves, and thewr permitted successors and
assigns, hereby agree as follows

1 Temms and Condrtions,

(&) Vestng of PRSUs  Subject to the other terms and conditions contaned 1ttus Agreement, the PRSUs shall vest upon the satisfaction of both
a tiume-based vesting condition and a performance-based vesting condition

(1) The ume-based vesting condition shall be satisfied as to [XX]% of the PRSUs on July 1, 20{XX], and as to the remaimng [XX]% of the PRSUs
on July 1, 20[XX]

{2) The performance-based vesting condition shall be sansfied as to 100% of the PRSUs as of June 30, 20[XX), provided that the Company has
achieved the performance metnc established by the Company and scparately communicated to the Participant, such achuevement to be
determined by the Commuttee at 1ts regularly scheduled meeting on or around August 20[XX], provided , howgver , that tn the event of a Change
1n Control, the performance-based vesting condition shall be deemed satisfied (as of immediately prior to such Change in Control) as to 100% of
the PRSUs

{(3) [fthe Participant’s employment with the Company or its Affihates {or any successor thereto) 1s termmated within 24 months following a Change
mn Control esther (x) by the Company or its Affiliates {or any successor thereto) without Cause (as defined m the Company’s Change m Control
Severance Plan for Corporate Officers, as amended (the * CIC Plan ™), or (y) by the Participant with Good Reason (as defined in the CIC Plan),
then 100% of the PRSUs granted hercunder shall vest n full as of such termination

(4) If in connection with a Change in Control the successor company, or a parent of the successor company, tn the Change in Control does not agree
to assume, replace, ot substitute the PRSUs granted hereunder (as of the consummation of such Change in Control} with PRSUs on substantially
identical terms, as determined by the Committee, then the PRSUs granted hereunder shall vest i full as of immediately pnor to such Change m
Control

Dock US| 10031525v5




(b) Settiernent  Subject 1o the other terms and conditions contamed 1n this Agreement, the Company shall setile the PRSU Award by causing
one share of Common Stock for each PRSU that 1s outstanding (and not previously forfeited) as of the Payout Date (as defined below) to be registered 1n the name
of Participant and held 1n book-entry form on the Payout Date As used heremn, * Payout Datg  shall mean, (w) with respect to the portion of the PRSU Award that
vests on July 1, 20[XX], as soon as admimistratively feasible (but not iater than 60 days) thereafier, {x) with respect to the portion of the PRSU Award that vests on
July 1, 20[XX], as scon as admimstratively feasible (but not later than 60 days) thereafier, (y) if Section t1{a)}(3} applies, as soon as administratively feasible (but
not later than 6C days) afier termination of employment, and (z) if Section 1(a)(4) apphes, immediately pnor to the Change 1n Contrel

{c) Dividend Equivalents  Unuil shares of Common Stock are delivered to the Participant in respect of the settlement of the PRSU Award, at no
tume shall the Participant be deemed for any purpose to be the owner of shares of Common Stock 1n connection with the PRSU Award, provided , however . that
each time the Company pays a dividend with respect to a share of Common Stock dunng the penod from the Grant Date to the Payout Date, the Participant shall be
credited with or paid a cash amount equal to the product of (1) the number of PRSUs then outstanding hereunder muitiphed by (u1) the per-share dividend payable
to holders of record of the Common Stock (the * Dividend Equivalent Amount ), as follows (x) with respect to each such dividend payable on or prior to the date
on which the performance-based vesting condition 15 satisfied or deemed satisfied (the ** Performance Vesting Date ™), the Participant shall be credited with the
applicable Dividend Equivalent Amount to be paid, without mterest, as soon as adrmumstratively feasible (but not later than 60 days) after the Performance Vestng
Date, or if either Section 1(a)(3) or Section 1(a)(4) apphes, the Payout Date, 1f earher, and (y) with respect to each such dividend payable after the Performance
Vestmg Date, the Participant shall be paid the Dividend Equivatent Amount on the same date on which such dividend 15 payable to the Company’s shareholders

{d) Forfeiture of PRSUs  Except as otherwise determined by the Committee 1n 1ts sole discretion or as set forth i this Section 1, unvested
PRSUs (1 e, PRSUs a5 to which either or both of the vesting conditions have not been satisfied), and any associated unpaid Dividend Equivalent Payments, shall
be forfeited without consideration to the Participant upon the Participant’s termmation of employment with the Company or its Affiliates for any reason For the
avoidance of doubt, all PRSUs and Dividend Equivalent Payments shall be forfeited as of June 30, 20[XX], 1f the performance-based vesting condition 1s not been
achieved

2 Restnctive Covepany, Clawback, Incomomtion by Reference
(a) Restnctive Covenant  The effectiveness of the PRSU Award granted hereunder 15 conditioned upon the execution and dehvery by the Partictpant

within mnety (90) days from the date of this PRSU Award of the restnctive covenant furmished herewith If the Company dees not recerve the signed (whether
electromically or otherwise) restnctive covenant within such mnety (90) day period, this PRSU Award shall be terrminable by the Company

(b) Clawback/Forfeiture  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the PRSUs may be forfeited without consideration if the
Participant, as determined by the Commuttee 1n 1ts sole discretion (1) engages n an activity that 1s in conflict with or adverse to the interests of the Company or any
Affiliate, including but not limited to fraud or conduct contributing to any financial restatements or wrregulanties, or (11} without the consent of the Company, while
employed by or providing services to the Company or any Affiliate or after termination of such employment or service, violates a non-competition, non-solicttation
or non-disclosure covenant or agreement between the Participant and the Company or any Affihate [f the Participant engages in any activity referred to in the
preceding sentence, the Participant shall, at the sole discretion of the Commuttee, forfeit any gain realized 1n respect of the PRSUs (which gain shall be deemed to
be an amount equal to the Fair Market Value, on the applicable Payout Date of the shares of Common Stock delivered to the Participant plus the amount of any
Dividend Equivalent Payments), and repay such gain to the Company In addition to the foregomg, the PRSUs (and any gain reahzed in respect thereof) shall in all

respects be
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subject to the terms and condittons of any Company clawback/forfenture policy as tn effect from time to time to which the Participant 15 subject

(c)  lpcorporauvon by Reference Ete The provisions of the Plan are hereby incorporated herem by reference Except as otherwise expressly set forth
heretn, this Agreement shall be construed m accordance with the provisions of the Plan and any capitalized terms not otherwise defined i thus Agreement shall
have the defimtions set forth in the Plan In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and the terms of the CIC Plan that would otherwise apply to the
PRSUs herem granted, the terms of this Agreement shall control For the avoidance of doubt (1) the terms of Section 1 2 of the CIC Plan shall not apply o the
PRSUs granted under this Agreement, and (2) any acceleration of vesting of the PRSUs herein granied shall be deemed to be accelerated under the terms of the
CIC Plan for purposes of Section 1 3 of the CIC Plan

3 Complance with Legal Requirements  The granuing and delvery of the PRSU Award, and any other obligations of the Company under this Agreement,
shall be subject to all apphcable federal, state, local and foreign laws, rules and regulations and 10 such approvals by any regulatory or governmental agency as
may be required

4 Transferability  Until 1t has fully vested in accordance with Section 1, no PRSU may be assigned, alienated, pledged, attached, sold or otherwise transferred
or encumbered by the Participant other than by wall or by the laws of descent and distnbution and any such purported assignment, alienation, pledge, attachment,
sale, transfer or encumbrance shall be void and unenforceable against the Company or any Affilate

5  Miscellanegus

{8} Waver Any nght of the Company contained m this Agreement may be waived 1n wniting by the Committee No waiver of any nght hereunder by
any party shall operate as a waiver of any other nght, or as a waiver of the same nght with respect to any subsequent occasion for its exercise, or as a waiver of any
nght to damages No waiver by any party of any breach of (hus Agreement shall be held to constitute a warver of any other breach or a waiver of the continuation of

the same breach

{b}  Sevembility The mvahdity or unenforceabihity of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other

provision of this Agreement, and each other provision of this Agreement shall be severable and enforceable 1o the extent permited by law

(c) No Rught to Emplovment Nothing contamed 1n this Agreement shal be construed as giving the Participant any nght to be retained, 1n any
position, as an employee, consultant or director of the Company or its Affiliates or shall nterfere with or restnict in any way the nght of the Company or ats
Affiliates, which are hereby expressly reserved, to remove, termmate or discharge the Participant with or without cause at any tume for any reason whatsoever

Although over the course of employment terms and conditions of employment may change, the at-will term of employment wili not change

(d) Successors The terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon and mmure to the benefit of the Company, 1ts successers and assigns, the Participant

and the beneficianes, executors, administrators, heirs and successors of the Participant

{e) Enure Agreement This Agreement and the Plan contain the entire agreement and understanding of the parties hereto with respect to the subject
maiter contamed herein and supersede all pnor communications, representations and negotiations n respect thereto No change or modification of any provision of
thus Agreement shall be valid unless the same be tn writing and signed by the parties hereto, except for any changes permitted without consent of the Participant

under the Plan
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(f) Goveming Law This Agreement shall be constmed and mierpreted 1 accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware withowt regard 1o
prnciples of conflicts of law thereof, or principles of conflicts of laws of any other junsdiction which could cause the apphication of the laws of any junsdictzon

other than the State of Delaware

(g) Headings The headings of the Sections hereof are provided for converience only and are not Lo serve as a basis for interpretation or construction,

and shall not constitute a part, of this Agreement

AUTOMATIC DATA PROCESSING, INC
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EXHIBIT 21

Junsdiction of

Name of Subsidiary Incorporation
ADP Atlantic, LLC Delaware
ADP Benefits Services KY, Inc Kentucky
ADP Brasil Lida Brazil
ADP Broker-Dealer, Inc New Jersey
ADP Canada Co Canada
ADP Employer Services GmbH Germany
ADP Europe SAS France
ADP France SAS France
ADP GSI France SAS France
ADP Indemmty, Inc Vermont
ADP, LLC Delaware
ADP Private Limited India
ADP Pacific, Inc Delaware
ADP Payroll Services, Inc Delaware
ADP Screemng and Selection Services, Inc Colorado
ADP Tax Services, Inc Delaware
ADP Technology Services, Inc Delaware
ADP TotalSource FL. XV, Inc Flonda
ADP TotalSource Group, Inc Flonda
Automatic Data Processing Insurance Agency, Inc New Jersey
Automatic Data Processing Limited Australia
Automatic Data Processing Limited (UK) United Kingdom

In accordance with [tem 601(b)}21) of Regulation S-K, the Company has omitted the names of particular subsidiaries because the unnamed subsidiaries,
considered 1n the aggregate as a single subsidiary, would not have constituted a sigmficant subsidiary as of June 30, 2015




CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference 1n Registration Statement Nos 33-46168, 333-10281, 333-10277, 333-110393,
333-146565, 333-147377, 333-155382, 333-1691 10, and 333-170506 on Form S-8 of our reports dated August 7, 2015, relating
to the consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement schedule of Automatic Data Processing, Inc
and subsidianies (the “Company™), and the effectiveness of the Company’s mternal control over financial reporting appearing
n the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Automatic Data Processing, Inc for the year ended June 30, 2015

{s/ Dejontte & Touche LLP
Parsippany, New Jersey

August 7, 2015




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
I, Cartos A Rodriguez, certify that

| I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Automatic Data Processing, Inc ,
2 Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omt to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleadg with respect to the peniod
covered by this report,
3 Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial mmformation included in this report, fairly present in all matenal
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the penods presented 1n this report,
4 The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and 1 are responsible for estabhshing and maintaiming disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(c) and 15d-15(e)} and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that matenal information relating to the registrant, including 1ts consolidated subsidiaries, 1s made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report 1s being prepared,
(b) Designed such mternal control over finaneial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rehability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes 1n accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the peniod covered by this report based on such evaluatien,
and
{d) Dusclosed in this report any change m the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter tn the case of an annual report) that has matenally affected, or 15
reasonably likely to matenally affect, the regisirant's internal control over financial reporting, and
5 The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commuttee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions)
(a) All sigmficant deficiencies and material weaknesses m the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting that are

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's abihty to record, process, summarize and report financial information, and
(b)  Any fraud, whether or not matenal, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting

Date August 7, 2015 /s/ Carlos A, Rodniguez
Carlos A Rodniguez

President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 312

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

I, Jan Siegmund, certify that

i I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Automatic Data Processing, Inc ,

2 Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a matenial fact or omut to state a matenial fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this repori,

3 Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented m this report,
4 The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and mternal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be destgned under our
supervision, to ensure that matenal information relating to the registrant, including 1ts consohdated subsidiaries, 1s made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly dunng the penod m which this report 1s being prepared,
(b) Designed such mternal contrel over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rehability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes 1n accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation,
and
(d} Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the reg:strant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has matenally affected, or 1s
reasonably likely to matenally affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting, and
5 The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit commuttee of the registrant's board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent
functions)
(a) All ssignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses n the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting that are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's abihity to record, process, summanze and report financial information, and
(b)  Any fraud, whether or not matenal, that nvolves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting

Date August 7, 2015 s/ Jan Siegmund

Jan Siegmund
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 US C SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Automatic Data Processing, Inc (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2015 as filed with the Securrties and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Carlos A Rodriguez, President and

Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U S C § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that

(1) The Report fully comphies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

(2) The information contained 1n the Report fairly presents, 1n all matenial respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company

/s Carlos A Rodriguez

Carlos A Rodnguez

President and Chief Executive Officer
Date August 7, 2015




EXHIBIT 322

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U S C SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Automatic Data Processing, Inc (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2015 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), 1, Jan Siegmund, Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U S C § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secunities Exchange Act of 1934, and
(2) The information contained 1n the Report fairly presents, m all matenal respects, the financial condition and results of operahons of the
Company

/s/ Jan Siegmund

Jan Siegmund
Chief Financial Officer
Date August 7, 2015




